Suffer the little children

Introduction

Suffer the children

For this paper I take this quote from the ASV Bible in a different sense to its real meaning.
Obviously the real interpretation of Matthew 19:14 is, ‘Let alone’ or ‘permit’.! However, this
paper regards the real suffering of children in this corrupt society. This Bible verse is one of
many that show Jesus’ concern for young children. In this he is manifesting the concern of
God in general for children, hence the Lord’s condemnation in the OT of hurting children.2

The iniquity of hurting children

Since God cares for children and commands his people to be good to their children, it is
anathema to hurt children; indeed this is ingrained upon the conscience of every rational
person. Thus the practice of abusing children is both irrational and worthy of God’s
condemnation to hell fire. Any government that presided over abusing children, or
knowingly tolerated this abuse, is insane, ungodly and worthy of condemnation.

The great sin of Israel

One of the key reasons given in the Old Testament for Israel’s judgment and condemnation
was that its idolatry from God to idols caused Israelites to sacrifice their children to
Molech. Israel’s apostasy was so great that its rulers ritually killed their own children.

Ritual killing of children was an evil practised by idolatrous nations and so God
commanded Israel, from the beginning, never to do such a thing. Indeed, God judged the
previous nations in Canaan for completing their iniquity and making their judgment
certain by sacrificing their children in the fulness of their sin.

You shall not let any of your descendants pass through the fire to Molech, nor shall you profane

the name of your God: | am the LORD. Lev 18:21

There shall not be found among you anyone who makes his son or his daughter pass through the
fire, or one who practices witchcraft, or a soothsayer, or one who interprets omens, or a sorcerer.
Deut 18:10

But Israel went the way of all flesh and continually performed this act, the most wicked
form of iniquity possible (killing your child — a gift from God that you are called to nurture;
plus offering that life to a demon). It constitutes multiple lawlessness: murder, child abuse
and idolatry.

He [Ahaz] walked in the way of the kings of Israel; indeed he made his son pass through the fire,
according to the abominations of the nations whom the LORD had cast out from before the
children of Israel. 2 Kg 16:3

They [Israel & Judah] caused their sons and daughters to pass through the fire, practised
witchcraft and soothsaying, and sold themselves to do evil in the sight of the LORD, to provoke
Him to anger. 2 Kg 7:17

1 ‘Let the little children come to Me’ NKJV. ‘Suffer little children’, AV (KJV). ‘Suffer the little children’, ASV.
‘Permit {the} little children’, Revised Webster Bible.

22 Kg16:3, 17:17; Jer 32:35, 39; Prov 20:7; Acts 2:39.



He [Manasseh] made his son pass through the fire, practised soothsaying, used witchcraft, and
consulted spiritists and mediums. He did much evil in the sight of the LORD, to provoke Him to
anger. 2 Kg 21:6

They [their kings, their princes, their priests, their prophets, the men of Judah, and the inhabitants
of Jerusalem] built the high places of Baal which are in the Valley of the Son of Hinnom, to cause
their sons and their daughters to pass through the fire to Molech, which | did not command them,
nor did it come into My mind that they should do this abomination, to cause Judah to sin. Jer

32:35
There are other texts on this matter, but this will do.

The fulness of evil in a nation

Thus the OT demonstrates that a nation comes to the fulness of it iniquity when it starts
sacrificing its own children in a satanic ritual offering to the devil or to a demon. There is
no greater national sin, after turning away from God, than ritual killing of children.

My claim in this paper is that abuse of children in institutional homes, sexual abuse of
children, torture of children and murder of children is being carried out on a regular basis
by the people at the very top of society right now. High level establishment figures,
including prime ministers and members of European royal families, have been involved in
paedophilia for decades; but only recently is the full extent of this wickedness coming to
light.

Should Christians get involved in this awful subject?

Some people tell me that the world is evil, there’s nothing we can do about it and we
shouldn’t get involved. This is false and is, in fact, disobedient. God tells us to get involved
when we know there is a wrong. At the very least we should publicly condemn the
wickedness of rulers in the name of Christ.

Open your mouth for the speechless, in the cause of all who are appointed to die. Open your
mouth, judge righteously, and plead the cause of the poor and needy. Prov 31:8-9

Learn to do good; seek justice, rebuke the oppressor; defend the fatherless, plead for the widow.
Isa1:17

For among My people are found wicked men; ... they surpass the deeds of the wicked; they do not
plead the cause, the cause of the fatherless; yet they prosper, and the right of the needy they do
not defend. Shall | not punish themfor these things?'says the LORD. Jer 5:26-29

Abused children are speechless, needy, poor, fatherless; therefore we must plead their
case.

The scale of the problem

It is my contention (and one reported by very many others, but kept back by the media)
that most western governments, and Britain in particular, has a portion of the ruling
establishment that knowingly participates (either directly or indirectly) in the systematic
abuse of children. This abuse runs the gamut from simple molestation (momentary
inappropriate touching) through to sexual abuse, rape, beatings, torture and murder. Yes;
some of the ruling elite is complicit in rape and murder of children, part of it involving
satanic ritual killings.

By the terms ‘establishment’ and ‘elite’ I include the following: the police force, the
judiciary, the civil service, the armed services, the secret service, the aristocracy, the royal
family, the entertainment world, bankers, social services, borough councillors, and the
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media. In short, anyone in a position of power. The people that abuse, or that cover up
abuse, are the rich and the powerful. The people who are abused are poor, vulnerable,
disabled and incarcerated children; very often children in care homes of one sort or
another.

Insidious aspects

There are two insidious aspects to this abuse. The worst aspect is the end result of children
old enough to identify and issue proceedings against the perpetrators. These are murdered.
In fact many are tortured and murdered as part of the abuse in ‘snuff films’. Many people
simply do not realise that 100,000 children disappear every year from care homes or
institutions and are never seen again. While some return and some end up lost and off the
radar on the street or to prostitution, most just vanish. There is a systematic killing of
young children every year in huge numbers. Poor Madeleine McCann is just one example.
Why is there no media reporting of this problem?

The second and shocking insidious aspect to this abuse is that much of it is connected with
Satanism in ruling authorities. Most people do not realise how widespread Satanism is
today and how it has risen in popularity since the works on magic of Gerald Gardner [1884-
1964] and Aleister Crowley [1975-1947] in the 40s and 50s. But ordinary populist Satanism in
the form of witchcraft3 is not in view here; this is the deep, dark Satanism that has
infiltrated the ruling classes for hundreds of years. The aristocracy and establishment has
been involved in Freemasonry, or other secret societies, and its relative Satanism, since the
beginning of time [see later].

To give you but one example; I doubt you know that, in recent years, Satanism has been
given the full support of the Crown in the Royal Navy.4 It is now legal to be a practising
Satanist whilst serving in the Royal Navy. Remember that until the early 1950s, witchcraft
was a crime.5

This is the level that we are dealing with.

The difficulty

Now there is a problem in reporting on this subject. That is, the level that the powers that
be will go to in order to protect themselves. It is incredibly difficult to get very hard facts
on this because people that try to expose the problem get killed or vanish. To begin with
they are threatened, and most just give up, scared to death. Then they are harassed, beaten
up, slandered, fitted up with crimes, incarcerated in mental institutions, and so on. If all
that fails they are killed. Many people who have tried to expose powerful figures have
vanished.

Another problem is that most of the hard evidence available is video clips of witnesses who
survived their ordeals. These are usually very troubled abuse victims. As a result of their
sufferings as a child, most of these victims succumb to various means to soften the
continuing psychological pain suffered every day: self-harm, alcohol, drugs etc. Some are
unable to fend for themselves, all are depressed and mentally ill, and some end up as
minor criminals and addicts. These people are then castigated as poor witnesses and their

3 Many witches would deny that they are Satanists, claiming to be ‘white witches’. In fact this is a charade
and all witches are really Satanists in the Biblical sense (followers of Satan).

4 BBC News; ‘Navy approves first ever Satanist’, 24 October 2004. Naval technician Chris Cranmer was
allowed to perform satanic rituals aboard HMS Cumberland based at Devonport, Plymouth. He was later
promoted to the Ministry of Defence.

5 The Witchceraft Act of 1735 was repealed in 1951. It is still legally in force in Northern Ireland.
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evidence is dismissed or destroyed. Some poor souls end up committing suicide after
trying.

Added to this is the alleged complicity of many in the police force. With few people to
support them, the victims are treated despicably by the police so that they usually give up
and go back to the hole they came from [see examples later]. The pressure put on victims
that come forward is immense and this is because there are allegedly large paedophile
rings in the police force and the judiciary who will allegedly do anything to prevent any
evidence coming to public view, let alone court.

So, with these difficulties in mind, I will try to bring the best evidence that I can to show
you that there are huge paedophile rings in the ruling classes today, involving very well
known figures and reaching to Number 10 Downing Street. The victories of paedophile
cases by the police are always of lesser figures, usually entertainers and media folk, or of
someone that has died (e.g. Jimmy Savile). It is suggested that the police do not want to
really investigate this matter as it would decimate their own ranks and bring society to
collapse.

The eschatological premise

I have written elsewhere® explaining that as the end approaches we see two things.

The fulness of man’s sin

The first is that man becomes the epitome of sin. In most people total depravity is a
potential not fully expressed. It means that every area of the human soul is damaged by sin
so that it is dead towards God; it does not mean that everyone is as evil as Hitler. However,
God has ordained it that man’s sinfulness comes to fulness at the end and only then is man
harvested for retribution on the Day of Judgment. The fulness of man’s sin coincides with
the last elect person to be converted.

Thus the Biblical revelation that the earth is getting worse and worse. Evil abounds at the
end as man fully expresses his sin, which comes to complete expression in a wicked,
dystopian world.

The antichristian world government
The second is that the devil is allowed by God to do what he has been hindered from doing
throughout history; that is to build a world empire and control it.

At the end Satan, through his agents, is allowed to build a totalitarian, despotic, world
empire that all nations submit to willingly. Through submission to this antichristian world
government, people are allowed to live a hedonistic, unrestrained evil life. They love it.
Part of the governance of this empire is the persecution of Christians and the attempt to
wipe out Christianity from the world. When this seems inevitable, then Christ returns in
glory and judgment.

Clearly, this empire is Satanism in full form. The world worships the beast (Rev 13:12, 14:9,
11). The world government has two aspects: complete civil power and a religious arm
promoting the worship of Satan through its religious system.

6 For example: ‘The Satanic Purpose’ or ‘The expression of the man of sin’.
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So, as the end approaches, Satanism in the ruling establishment becomes more pervasive.
That is a clear extrapolation of Biblical revelation, therefore we should expect to see it
operating now (at least in some measure). Secondly, the final world government, being the
expression of the man of sin, reveals the opposite of all godly virtues. Since one godly
virtue is nurturing and protecting children, child abuse and paedophilia are rampant. That
is another clear extrapolation.

Therefore, as society merges more and more into this end-time, global, evil government,
we should expect to see both Satanism and paedophilia increasing in the establishment.
And this is what is happening right now.

We need to watch (Mk 13:37; 1 Thess 5:6) and see what is happening before our eyes.
Christians should not be ignorant people but alive to what is really happening. Sadly, the
world is more informed in this matter, and declaring it, than evangelical churches; yet
another failing of the modern church.

Paedophilia at high levels in history

Sadly, there have always been a large number of child abusers in the ruling establishment
of most cultures, especially in the west.

Greece
Pederasty was somewhat common in Ancient Greece and was often a rite of passage.
However, in Athens, citizens who prostituted boys could be sentenced to death.

Alexander the Great, while certainly homosexual, is claimed by many to also be a
paedophile.

Rome

Decadence was not just rampant in the latter part of Roman history when the empire was
deteriorating. It was more open then but it was clearly evident at high levels from the
beginning.

Emperor Tiberius

Tiberius reigned at the height of Roman imperialism. His lust for children was well known.
In his later years he often retired to a vacation spot on the coast. Here he trained young
children to swim underwater and nibble his private parts while he was treading water.

Islam

Mohamed was betrothed to Aisha when she was six or seven years old but was married
when she was nine or ten. This is the traditional statement of history. A small number of
modern writers claim that she was 15 or 16. Some of Mohamed’s companions practised
paedophilia.

Paedophilia is permitted by the Qur’an and Islamic writings.? This is why some paedophile
rings in the North of England have been based in Muslim communities.

In Muslim countries the rigid morals regarding relationships with women resulted in
tolerance of homosexual paedophilia. For instance, until the 20th century, Algeria became a
haven for depraved pederasts. It was often stated that a woman was for reproduction but a
boy for pleasure.

7 Sahih Bukhari 7:62,63. Sahih Muslim 8:3311. Qur’an 65:4.



Europe
Until around 1800 it was common for girls to be married at the age of as young as twelve.

China
For thousands of years it was common to castrate young boys and sell them to rich
pederasts.

Joseph Smith
Smith, the founder of Mormonism, engaged in sex with underage girls and was a
philanderer.

We could continue with examples of kings, princes and popes, but we have made the point
that paedophilia has been rampant throughout history amongst elites.

The secondary circumstantial evidence of child abuse involving
(or tolerated by) senior establishment figures

In the UK, the United States, Germany, Switzerland and Australia, studies consistently find that

around 20% of women and around 8% of men suffered sexual abuse as children. In the current

population of UK, that would cover 1.5 million girls and 520,000 boys, a figure that is consistent
with the projection of 1.1 million offenders.8

When a person first hears that the ranks of police, judges, secret services, the armed forces,
royals, lords, MPs and prime ministers include paedophiles and murderers, one is too
shocked to accept that it could be true. Therefore, we need to give as much evidence as
possible to support such claims. We begin with confirmed facts that offer circumstantial
proof.

The influence of Jimmy Savile

The one good effect of the Savile scandal is that it has finally broken open the seams of
widespread paedophilia. More and more victims are now finding the strength to come
forward and give their testimony to abuses suffered as children.

Savile’s crimes are hard evidence but of a secondary nature to our purpose here. We have
clear documented evidence of Savile’s contact with very prominent people, indeed one
could say intimate contact, and it raises very serious questions. However, it does not mean
that his contacts were paedophiles, but they are possibly accessories. What it does prove is
that Savile had deep access to the highest establishment figures of all sorts and that his
paedophilia was known and protected.

More and more information is coming to light day by day as more witnesses finally speak
out. It would take an entire book to cover the crimes of Savile against thousands of
children and older victims over 60 years. We cannot cover that here but simply point out
certain aspects of the establishment that relate to Savile.

Savile and Thatcher

We must first say that it was widely known that Savile was a paedophile decades ago. It
was known locally in his hometown from the beginning and there were several police
investigations, after complaints, that were shut down. It was an open secret. The Daily

8 The Guardian; Nick Davies, ‘The sheer scale of child sexual abuse in Britain’, April 1998.
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Express reported that Savile kept a special room where he took young girls after appearing
at the Empire Ballroom in Leeds in the late 1950s.

Since Thatcher was no fool and very well informed, she must have known that Savile had
been accused of paedophilia. Yet she honoured Savile by inviting him to have New Year’s
Eve dinner with her for ten successive seasons on the trot.9 In addition there are many
photographs showing intimate friendship between Thatcher and Savile. What was going on
here?

The suggestion of Bill Maloney° is that he was giving Thatcher a regular update on
information regarding high level people that he incriminated. This enabled Thatcher to
have powerful blackmailing power over these people and that she used this to keep senior
figures in line and do what she wanted. Something has to explain he despotic power for
three terms of office that was unprecedented; there was something more than prime
ministerial authority; she controlled people ruthlessly. We now know that there were
several paedophiles in her cabinets [see later].

Thatcher was so close to Savile that she made four attempts to get him knighted, despite
the warnings of senior Whitehall mandarins that he was unsuitable. Cabinet Office papers
reveal that the highest levels of government knew about Savile’s activities. Lord Armstrong
(then Robert Armstrong) told Thatcher that honouring Savile was ‘difficult’.* Eventually
Savile was knighted in 1990. Harold Wilson had refused to give Savile an MBE in 1970.

Files released in 2012, though heavily redacted for forty more years, show Savile’s
extraordinary access to the highest levels of society. It shows that he attended high-level
lunches with the PM, exchanged personal letters with the PM and was granted access to
Chequers. In one letter he said that he loved Thatcher. One file shows that a suggestion
from Savile later resulted in new legislation in the following budget (on the covenant
system for charities).!2

Savile and Prince Charles's

After an appeal by a newspaper, the censored sections of Thatcher’s papers were made
available. These showed that Prince Charles had agreed to be a patron of one of Savile’s
charities'4 — yet someone in high office had decided that the public should not know. This
turned out to be Cabinet Secretary Sir Jeremy Heywood. The prince first met Savile during
a disability charity function in the late 70s; apparently he was introduced by Lord
Mountbatten.!s

9 The Independent; Cahal Milmo, ‘Revealed: Jimmy Savile’s close friendship with Margaret Thatcher’, 28
December 2012.

10 An independent documentary filmmaker and powerful activist regarding children rights. He is director of
Pienmash films. See pienmashfilms.com

11 The Independent; Jonathan Brown, ‘Margaret Thatcher made repeated attempts to get Jimmy Savile
knighted — despite pleas from concerned aides’, 17 July 2013.

12 The Independent; Cahal Milmo, ‘Revealed: Jimmy Savile’s close friendship with Margaret Thatcher’, 28
December 2012.

13 Charles has been accused of befriending many paedophiles: ‘His perverted chums have included child
rapist DJ Jimmy Savile, science fiction author and boy rapist Arthur C. Clarke, filthy bishop Peter Ball, ....
and the paedo-guru Sai Baba’. The Coleman Experience, 23 June 2013.

14 Letter dated 6 March 1980, headed ‘Prime Minister’. The letter was originally released under the 30-year
rule. It is now held at the National Archives, Kew.

15 Some allege that Reggie Kray was involved in introducing Savile to Mountbatten. Reggie Kray allegedly
supplied elite paedophiles with boys. Ian Bone; ‘Louis Mountbatten Introduced Savile to Prince Charles’, 25
October 2012 and comments; plus many other sources.
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It was already common knowledge that the prince and Savile were pals; indeed Charles
had sent Savile cigars and gold cufflinks on his 8oth birthday.:6 In 1999 Charles accepted an
invitation to a private meal at Savile’s Glencoe home, where three young girls were dressed
as French maids; Charles later wrote a letter of thanks sending his love to these girls. The
salmon he served was stolen by poachers.?7 Savile had visited Charles at St James’ Palace
several times in the 80s. Even then he raised eyebrows when he rubbed his lips up the
arms of Charles’ young female assistants as a greeting.'8 Charles led tributes when Savile
died, aged 84, in October 2011. All this shows how well connected Savile was to high level
public figures. Princess Diana described Savile as a sort of mentor to the prince.9

Savile and the royals

Again, the royal family must have known about the accusations against Savile. Despite this
he was very friendly with some of them (see Prince Charles) and was knighted by the
Queen in 1990. He had previously received an OBE in 1972. In 1966 Savile was introduced
to Prince Philip by Lord Mountbatten. Savile was a regular visitor to Buckingham Palace,
Kensington Palace (where Princess Diana lived) and Highgrove (Prince Charles’ country
estate). Savile was quoted as saying, ‘The thing about me is | get things done and | work deep
cover. I've known the Royal Family for a million years’.2° Savile was said to be a close friend of
Prince Philip until they had a serious falling out.

In 2009 the police interviewed Savile, following accusations by three teenage victims, but
sent the transcript to Buckingham Palace (why?). It came back seven months later with 96
deletions regarding the Royal Family.2! The interview mentioned a friendship with the
Queen’s cousin, Princess Alexandra, which was also mentioned in his 1974 autobiography.
He visited a Surrey school with the princess — the same place where he was later accused of
abusing young girls. The police decided not to charge Savile but the process was later
criticised in a CPS review.22

The death of Princess Diana

The death of Diana in 1997 was certainly an assassination in my view and this is the
conclusion of very many people, including professionals and at least one barrister;
however, this is not the place to air the evidence.23 The question is, why was she killed?

There are allegations that Diana was about to reveal networks of paedophilia connected to
the royal family, and that the secret services arranged the assassination.24 If the paedophile
ring claim is true, then Savile would be a likely suspect to be providing victims. Remember

16 Daily Star Sunday; Jonthan Corke, Deborah Sherwood, Rick Lyons, ‘Charles’ links to Savile’, 12 May 2013.
17 The Coleman Experience, 23 June 2013. The Guardian; Robert Booth, ‘Jimmy Savile caused concern with
behaviour on visits to Prince Charles,” 29 October 2012.

18 The Guardian; Robert Booth, ‘Jimmy Savile caused concern with behaviour on visits to Prince Charles,” 29
October 2012.

19 The Coleman Experience, 23 June 2013. The Guardian; Robert Booth, ‘Jimmy Savile caused concern with
behaviour on visits to Prince Charles,” 29 October 2012.

20 David Icke; ‘Jimmy Savile ... Doorway to the cesspit’, 14 October 2012; quoting Esquire magazine.

21 Mail Online; ‘Police censored 2009 interview with Jimmy Savile so it removed all reference to the Royal
Family’, 20 October 2013. Note that Savile was found dead about a year later. Did this blabbing about the
royals seal his fate?

22 Mail Online; ‘Police censored 2009 interview with Jimmy Savile so it removed all reference to the Royal
Family’, 20 October 2013.

23 Just one point, years after the event it was proved that the blood sample used to prove that her driver was
drunk was really the blood of somebody else and was switched by the police. The drunkenness of the driver
was the basis of the official claim that the car crash was an accident. He was not drunk and did not appear to
be so on camera footage going to the car.

24 E.g. Barrister Michael Shrimpton; interviewed on Bristol Community Radio; 11 January 2013.
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what Savile said, ‘The thing about me is | get things done and | work deep cover. I've known the
Royal Family for a million years’.

Savile and the pope

In the same year that he was knighted, Pope John Paul II made Savile Knight Commander
of the Pontifical Equestrian Order of Saint Gregory the Great — the Catholic Church’s
highest honour. Considering the Catholic Church’s prolific problem with paedophilia, this
connection seems at least intriguing.

For the record, Savile was also made Order pro meriot Melitensi by the Knights of Malta, a
very rare honour.

Savile and the establishment

Savile was given unprecedented privileges and access into various institutions with no
reason given. We will see later because this was to allow him to procure children for high
powered figures from these institutions supposed to care for them, and also to carry on his
own perverse crimes (such as necrophilia).

In an interview with the police in 2009 he boasted that he ‘owned’ Stoke Mandeville
hospital.25 Savile was a frequent guest at Duncroft Approved School for girls.

Savile and Tony Blair
On 28 March 2004 Savile was invited to dinner with Tony Blair.

Savile and the army
In 1966 Savile was awarded an honorary Green Beret by the Royal Marines. This was
arranged by Lord Mountbatten, who was Commandant General of the Royal Marines.

Savile and the police

Savile was literally beloved by the police. He was given at least 14 awards by various police
departments. For example: the Fraud Squad gave Savile an expensive onyx lighter
inscribed, ‘ To Jimmy Savile from his friends at the Fraud Squad'. The Metropolitan Police gave
him a special medal in 1979. He also received a wall plaque and his own inscribed Met.
Police helmet. In 1974 Leicestershire police gave him a truncheon, badge and handcuffs on
a mahogany base; the year he molested Karin Ward. He also received two wall plaques.
West Yorkshire police (who investigated him in 1958 for molesting young girls) gave him a
plaque.2¢ Tayside police gave Savile an award in 1996.

Savile and gangsters
Savile boasted of knowing gangsters, which included the Krays.2” He also boasted of his
violence and links to gangsters in the BBC documentary with Louis Theroux.

Savile and the IRA

Savile boasted about his friends in the IRA, saying that they would beat people up or
hospitalise enemies if he telephoned them.28 He used such threats of violence to shut his
victims up. He said, ‘All I have to do is call my friends in the IRA. They'll have someone waking
up in hospital the next morning eating their breakfast through a f....g straw’.

25 Mail Online; ‘Police censored 2009 interview with Jimmy Savile so it removed all reference to the Royal
Family’, 20 October 2013.

26 Daily Star; Jonathan Corke & John Ward, ‘Jimmy Savile was tops with the cops’, 21 October 2012.

27 Mirror; James Saville, ‘Jimmy Savile and the IRA’, 20 October 2012. Aangirfan; 21 October 2012.

28 Mirror; James Saville, ‘Jimmy Savile and the IRA’, 20 October 2012.
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The failure of the police to act on multiple accusations

There is no doubt that Savile was given protection by very senior levels in the police force.
If they had performed their job rightly, Savile should have been prosecuted decades ago
and accusations properly investigated. Instead they were dropped. Indeed, there were even
occasions when Savile was accosted by police officers whilst he was having sex with a
minor in his car and he still got off.

The police regularly dropped investigations into Savile going back to the 50s. For example:
In the late 70s a police officer told superiors about Savile’s child abuse at Stoke Mandeville
Hospital but was told to drop the investigation.29

Early concerns about Savile
Sir Roger Jones (former chairman of the BBC charity ‘Children in Need’, a BBC governor
from 1997 to 2002) refused to allow Savile to have anything to do with the cause.

Interim conclusion

One can only conclude that Savile was not only protected by the police and establishment,
but that he was given free reign in certain institutions and was on very friendly terms with
the very highest people in society for decades.

At the end of his life he started to become more loose in his comments (some think that he
was Kkilled for this3?). In one interview he stated openly that he would never be done for any
crimes because he had too much information on the top people and he would bring them
down with him. He called this ‘insurance’.

The legacy of Savile points to the collusion of the establishment in his crimes. It does not
prove it categorically, but it is important circumstantial evidence.

Abbreviated time-line of Savile’s career and allegations3:

1926-1960 Born in Leeds. Worked in the mines as a boy during WWII (‘Bevin’s Boys'). Claims to have been the first DJ to
use twin turntables. Recruited by Radio Luxembourg.

1955 Earliest recorded instance of child abuse by Jimmy Savile in a dance hall in Manchester.

Late 1950s Savile was suspected of working for MI5; visited Moscow.

1960-1969 Host of BBC’s Top of The Pops in 1964 onwards.

Joins radio 1in 1968.
Starts volunteering at Stoke Mandeville.
Two women have come forward with allegations of sexual offences when they were teenagers.

1970-1979 Clunk Click advert in 1973.

Hosts own BBC TV shows.

Jim'll Fix It.

OBE 1971.

Starts charitable work at Leeds General Infirmary and Broadmoor secure hospital.

Abuses young patients at Stoke Mandeville including molesting a brain damaged girl at LGl and assaulting a
12-year old at a Leeds children’s home.

1980-1989 Appointed chairman of a task force to advise on governing Broadmoor.
At least two women have come forward with allegations of sexual offences.

29 Daily Star; Jonathan Corke & John Ward, ‘Jimmy Savile was tops with the cops’, 21 October 2012.

30 Especially after the loose talk shown in the documentary made with Louis Theroux. In his old age he
seemed to not care less and posed a risk to high level figures.
31 Source: BBC News; The Independent.
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1990-1999 Jim’ll Fix It continues until 1994.
Knighted in 1990.

2000-2009 2007 police question Savile over allegations of child abuse in the 1970s. CPS drop the case.
2008 Sussex police receive allegation of sexual assault in Worthing in 1970. Case dropped.
Savile named during the police investigation into abuse at Haut de la Garenne.

29 Oct 2011 Savile found dead at home in Roundhay, Leeds. Buried in Scarborough.

Dec 2011 A 6-week Newsnight investigation into claims that Savile abused minors and whether there were failings by the
police and CPS is dropped. Instead tribute programmes are broadcast.

2 Oct 2012 Newsnight editor Peter Rippon writes that Newsnight investigation was dropped for editorial reasons.

3 0ct 2012 ITV airs its investigation into Savile ‘The other side of Jimmy Savile’, in which several women allege sexual
abuse. Karin Ward accused Savile of abusing her and others at Duncroft Approved School stating that he had a
caravan on the grounds.

9 Oct 2012 More allegations emerge and police have 120 leads. Commander Peter Spindler says that Savile was ‘a
predatory sex offender’.

11 Oct 2012 The Sun reported that David Nicolson (a director on Jim'll Fix It) claimed to have caught Savile having sex with
a girl in his dressing room but was ignored when he voiced concerns.

Police state that they have 340 lines of enquiry.

12 Oct 2012 BBC anounce two enquiries into sex abuse claims.

13 Oct 2012 Police say allegations span from 1959-2006.
Number of victims estimated as 60.

14 police forces involved.

14 Oct 2012 Derek Chinnery (Radio 1 controller 1976-85) states that he questioned Savile about rumours in the 80s but
was told that they were nonsense.

15 Oct 2012 Maria Miller (Culture Sec.) refuses Ed Miliband’s call for a single independent enquiry.

19 Oct 2012 Met. Police launch formal criminal investigation. 400 leads being followed; over 200 potential victims.

22 Oct 2012 Peter Rippon steps aside during an enquiry. His earlier statement is said to be inaccurate. Panorama
broadcasts their review of the mess.

23 Oct 2012 BBC Director General George Entwistle faces questions from MPs at Culture Select Committee. States that the
Newsnight piece should not have been dropped. Maria Miller says trust in the BBC being questioned.

24 Oct 2012 Dir. of Public Prosecutions to review decision of CPS to drop case in 2009.

25 Oct 2012 Police state that 400 lines of enquiry being followed into 300 victims. Other abusers being named as well.

28 Oct 2012 Gary Glitter first person to be arrested in connection with Savile case.

1 Nov 2012 Freddie Starr is arrested.

10 Nov 2012 George Entwistle resigns over Newsnight report wrongly alleging a leading Tory abused a child in a Welsh care
home.

12 Dec 2012 Police say victims now number 450. Operation Yewtree record 199 crimes in 17 police force areas. 589 victims
come forward.

19 Dec 2012 Enquiry states that there was chaos and confusion at the BBC over the Newsnight affair but no evidence of a
cover-up.

Radio producer Ted Beston is arrested.
11 Jan 2013 Met. Police / NSPCC report is published detailing child abuse of Savile over 50 years. Police say there are 214

offences, including 34 rapes on victims as young as 8.

Sir Leon Brittan

Brittan was a former Tory Home Secretary in Thatcher’s cabinet, and later a European
Commissioner, who has been repeatedly accuseds2 of being a paedophile but evidence
given to the police has not yet resulted in any charges. It is alleged that he was a regular at
Elm Guest House.

In November 1983 Brittan was given a dossier by the late Geoffrey Dickens as part of his
campaign against PIE. It contained allegations of paedophilia in Buckingham Palace, the
civil service and the diplomatic service. When he was asked by The Independent about this
dossier, Brittan said, ‘/ have no recollection of these matters, sorry .

32 On many websites and YouTube interviews.
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Patrick Rock

Rock, deputy director of the Downing Street policy unit, was closely involved in drawing up
the government’s policy on Internet porn filters. He is close to Cameron and has held
senior posts in the Tory party and was tipped for a peerage. He was forced to quit after it
was discovered that he was the centre of a police probe over child porn images. He
resigned from Downing Street and was arrested on 13 February 2014 on suspicion of an
offence relating to child abuse imagery.33

Tony Blair

Blair, allegedly, received two convictions for cottaging in 1974 and 1983 and was allegedly
known to MI5 for being caught importuning young boys in public toilets around London in
the 1970s. Police information on these incidents has been subject to a D-Notice. He has
been allegedly exposed as a bi-sexual cross-dresser whose nickname when he was a lawyer
was ‘Miranda’.34

It is also alleged that the FBI Operation Ore paedophile investigation threw up a large
number of names of senior Labour MPs and cabinet members involved in the
BBC/Jersey/Islington scandals. It is also alleged that the police discovered links between
the Labour government paedophile suspects and the trafficking of children for prostitution
from Belgium and Portugal. It is alleged that Blair stopped any police investigations by
claiming a threat to national security and put a D-Notice on it. Some think that the
Americans used this information to blackmail Blair to support the Iraq War; I could not
possibly comment.35

The Sunday Times is reported to have obtained the FBI list (Operation Ore) of Labour MPs
who used credit cards to pay for internet child pornography. Blair responded by imposing a
news blackout, which is we we cannot access these items today; but Philip Lyon was still
caught out.36

Peter Mandelson
Raised to the peerage by Blair in 2008 after amassing a fortune in politics. He is openly
Gay and is a strong supporter of lowering the age of consent.

There are all sorts of claims and allegations about his deeds in this connection but his life
is subject to several D-Notices by Blair (something Blair did quite often). One of the
common allegations is that he ran a paedophile ring; another is that his name appeared on
the Operation Ore list.37

Phillip Lyon
A multimillionaire convicted paedophile. He started his career at Islington Council.

Lyon was one of Blair’s closest political confidantes and a local neighbour in Islington. He
was jailed for a year in 2003 for child pornography found on his PC by a Civil Servant at
work. The police were stopped from searching his home after Blair claimed a threat to
national security.

33 BBC News; Victoria King, ‘Profile: Former David Cameron aide Patrick Rock’, 4 March 2014.

34 UK Column: ‘Child abuse — the deafening silence of a cover up’; comments, 8 October 2012.

35 People’s United Community; ‘Blair covering up paedophile scandal?’, 2007. Wikipedia’ ‘Operation Ore’.

36 People’s United Community; ‘Blair covering up paedophile scandal?’, 2007. The Register; Drew Cullen,
‘Child porn list leaked to Sunday Times, 27 January 2003. Wikipedia’ ‘Operation Ore’.

37 People’s United Community; ‘Blair covering up paedophile scandal?’, 2007. Before its news; ‘Paedo
politicians not to forget. Peter Mandelson.’, 26 October 2012.
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Lord George Robertson

Raised to the peerage by Blair in 1999. He has been accused in the Scottish press of using
his Masonic influence to get Thomas Hamilton a gun licence despite repeated police
objections — who then perpetrated the Dunblane Massacre (see timeline later). His
involvement in this was largely covered up in the English press and media.

He was also accused in Scotland of running a paedophile network involving Hamilton for
the BBC based in Scotland, Islington and Jersey. However, as claims heated up he was
moved out of Parliament and given the job of head of NATO. A 100-year D-Notice was put
on the press. Despite threatening to sue his accusers, he never did.38

The royal family

The Internet has many sordid claims about the involvement of aristocrats and the UK royal
family in sex abuses. However, none of these give any solid evidence that can be printed.
Nevertheless, the alleged antics of Lord Mountbatten are pretty well established.

Recently, a European Common Law court has served arrest warrants on Queen Elizabeth
and Prince Philip, and also David Cameron, for the abduction and sex abuse of ten boys
from Canada in the 60s; specifically from the Canadian Kamloops Residential School. The
boys (aged 10) were never seen again.39 ‘We have enough evidence to prosecute and hold both
the Prime Minister and Queen of England’, said ex-Royal Military Policeman Matt Taylor.

On 25 February 2013, six judges of a Brussels common law court [International Common
Law Court of Justice] found the Queen, Cameron, former Pope Ratzinger and 28 other
global elites guilty in the disappearance of 50,000 Canadian indigenous children. Cases
were prosecuted by the International Tribunal into Crimes of Church and State (ITCCS).
Two witnesses died of mysterious causes prior to the court case.4° The ITCCS was formed
by Canadian pastor Kevin Annett on the request of Canadian tribal leaders; efforts to bring
crimes against their children had all failed in the International Court.

Whether this common law court has any real authority is debatable and it is unlikely that
anything is going to happen anytime soon. Nevertheless, the story about the missing
Canadian kids lives on, which is associated with shocking stories of abuse in Canadian kids’
homes, and an explanation is required. Efforts to excavate mass gravesites on grounds of
government-owned residential schools run by Catholic priests and others have been
thwarted since the first was discovered in 2008.

They also claim that allegations threatened against Pope Ratzinger where what led to his
immediate resignation, which shocked the Catholic world. They also claim that the present
Pope Bergoglio is alleged to be part of a child trafficking paedophile ring. Victims who were
prostituted as children have come forward to give evidence against senior Catholics,
European judges and politicians, Prince Bernhard of Holland4! and members of the British
royal family.

38 People’s United Community; ‘Blair covering up paedophile scandal?’, 2007. The Scottish newspaper, The
Sunday Herald. Daily Alternative; ‘Did Tony Blair cover up paedophile scandal?’ Aangirfan; ‘Dunblane
shootings — paedophile ring’, 5 March 2013. Illuminati News; ‘Blair’s protection of elite paedophile rings’.
Mike James.

39 Examiner; Judy Byington, Saratoga Springs Child Abuse, ‘Queen Elizabeth and Cameron issued warrants
for a paedophile ring?' 21 January 2014.

40 One was teenager Harry Wilson who sustained massive head injuries from an unexplained cause.

41 This man has been repeatedly accused of sexual crimes against children by witness after witness.



14

A child abuse advocate (David Compan) and his wife who posted Brussels common law
court arrests on the Queen, Cameron and former Pope Ratzinger and 28 global elite figures
resulted in their arrests and forced detainment in a psychiatric facility (The Park Royal
Mental Health Centre). Newly passed English law has allowed the imprisonment of anyone
indefinitely and without charges if they are considered to be fixated on public figures or the
Royal Family. Bet you didn’t know that.

Matt Taylor, standing for MP in Brighton Kemp Town in 2015, has issued an order for the
immediate arrest of Cameron and the Queen on charges of High Treason for sexual crimes
on children.42

Two appointed sheriffs of the ITCCS attempted to arrest the Queen during her visit to see
Pope Francis in Rome. However, the meeting had been relocated at the last minute. The
sheriffs found the location (the Domus Sanctae Marthae) but were met by a sizeable
security force, not of Vatican police but the National Police.

Kevin Annett (field secretary of the ITCCS) stated on 8 February 2014 that he had been
informed by a British MP that the Crown’s Privy Council is considering issuing an order to
the Canadian government to have him arrested and prosecuted for sedition.

Annett later stated that his organisation revealed that on 16 September 2010 the Vatican
and the crown, through their chief officers, entered into a formal agreement of union at
Holyrood Castle in Edinburgh. This occurred between the Queen and Pope Ratzinger. This
agreement included a formal conspiracy to traffick children and support paedophiles by
agreeing a condition of the merger being the placing of all Anglicans under the Catholic law
known as ‘Crimen Sollicitationias’, which requires all child abuse to be covered up within
the church.

The present pope, Jorge Bergoglio has recently been accused by an eyewitness of
organising the trafficking of the children of political prisoners in Argentina under the
military dictatorship there.43 Victims claim that as orphans of the 30,000 missing people,
they were placed in satanic ritual abuse paedophile rings, some going to the Vatican.

Interim conclusion

Already we can see that there are some huge problems here. The number of allegations
against very senior public figures is astounding;44 allegations of crimes committed by the
very top people in society.

While much of this information is circumstantial to our chief point,45 it already highlights a
number of questions. For instance, why did Tony Blair put so many D-notices on personal
information about his cabinet members? Why was this claimed to involve national security
when it was about personal issues? Why has the Queen’s secretary not issued a statement
denying or ridiculing the charges against her? Why has the media ignored such a massive
story? Why has former pope Ratzinger not made a response to the charges against him?
Why did Ratzinger resign from the papacy (something almost never done4¢) immediately

42 Getting Ready for 2015; 25 January 2014 (gettingreadyfor2015.wordpress,com). ITCCS.org. International
Common Law Court of Justice, (icicj.com). Child Abuse Recovery (childabuserecovery.com)..

43 Getting Ready For 2015; Matt Taylor, ‘Breaking news about the Queen’. 8 February 2014.
44 T have only supplied the tip of the iceberg here.
45 That is, that very prominent people in the ruling establishment are directly involved in paedophile rings.

46 The pope is supposed to be God’s vicar, his representative on earth. Therefore, popes reign until their
deaths. There is a severe ecclesiastical problem if a man is appointed to the papacy as God’s vicar, but then
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after the charges against him? Why has Leon Brittan not sued his many accusers?47 Why
was Savile so close to politicians, the police and the royals when allegations of his child
abuse were well known? How can a man twice interviewed under caution as a murder
suspect, and who was a friend of the actual murderer (Peter Sutcliffe) be best friends with
the royals, Thatcher, the police etc? How could Savile be good friends with Prince Philip
and Prince Charles when Savile boasted of his friendship with the IRA who allegedly blew
up Lord Louis Mountbatten, Charles’ great uncle?

There is something rotten going on here!

The hard evidence of child abuse involving (or tolerated by)
senior establishment figures

Cyril Smith - confirmed but not convicted paedophile

In his lifetime Smith (MP for Rochdale) was a popular, larger than life character who
frequently guested on news media programmes; he died in 2010. Yet a 2013 investigation
revealed that the secret services held a file that contained evidence of the Liberal MP’s
child abuse.48 The fact that nothing was done shows that the secret services were complicit
in his crimes. In April 2014 the CPS stated that he should have been prosecuted 40 years
ago.

As early as the 1960s, Lancashire police carried out investigations into Smith’s paedophilia
compiling an 80-page dossier. Veiled threats from the political establishment stopped the
police prosecuting. The file was locked away by Special Branch (that has responsibility for
national security). This means that the political establishment is complicit in his crimes
against children. They knew he was abusing kids and they did nothing.

After this MI5 requested the file and Special Branch detective Tony Robinson sent the file
to them.

The case of Smith alone proves that the secret services, the police and the political
establishment are complicit in paedophile crimes.

Smith had set up a hostel in Rochdale (Cambridge House) supposedly to help boys in need.
However, he used this to abuse kids. One former resident, Kevin Griffiths, bore witness to
Smith’s abuse on the TV programme Dispatches. Smith set up another hostel in Rochdale
(Knowl View School) for which he held a set of keys. Another resident there (Chris
Marshall) explained how, as an 8-year old boy, he was a victim to Smith.

Smith was also a regular visitor to the famous paedophile ring institution, ElIm Guest
House in South West London in the 80s, as confirmed by the Metropolitan Police.

Smith’s guilt is certain and more evidence has come to light since his death. However, what
is also certain is that the ruling establishment protected him and covered up his crimes
against children for decades.

resigns and is still alive while another man becomes God’s vicar. The result is two men considered to be
worthy of being God’s vicar at the same time.

47 Such as David Icke. It is interesting that Icke was one of the few people that dared to go public naming
Savile, Heath and Lord McAlpine as paedophiles many years ago.

48 Channel 4 News; 12 September 2013, ‘How Cyril Smith got away with child abuse’.
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While I was finalising this paper Smith’s guilt made national headlines after the
publication of a book demonstrating his crimes.49 This began a debate about the cover up
of child abuse by prominent people.

Edward Heath — confirmed but not convicted paedophile

It was widely known that Heath was a homosexual paedophile even before he became
Prime Minister.5° Former openly Gay London Assembly member Brian Coleman stated
that it was common knowledge among Conservatives that Heath had been given a stern
warning about cottaging by the police when he underwent background checks for the post
of Privy Councillor. Coleman added that homosexual men had run the Tory Party in the
capital for many years, whether as officials, councillors or volunteers.5* When Baroness
Blatch was asked who ran the Tory Party in London she replied, ‘the Gay men of course’.52

Gay rights leader of OutRage Peter Tatchell said of Heath, ‘/t's a long-standing open secret.
It's amazing his sexuality wasn't the subject of tabloid revelations during his lifetime’.53

Heath was warned on at least four occasions by the head of the Metropolitan Police not to
loiter in lavatories trying to pick up young boys. Indeed, he was severely reprimanded by
the security services for picking up a rent boy who was a double agent.54 A Freedom of
Information request to the Met. received a refusal to disclose any information they had.55

Heath was named as a visitor to the Kincora Boys Home in East Belfast, the location of a
known paedophile ring. He was a visitor at Haut de la Garenne, regularly travelling to
Jersey on his yacht, Morning Cloud. His bodyguards called this boat, ‘Morning Sickness’.

To distance himself from being identified in dodgy places, Heath is alleged to have later
used Jimmy Savile to procure boys for him, particularly from Haut de la Garenne.5¢ Some
websites allege that some of these boys were subsequently murdered and dumped out at
sea. It is claimed that this solves the problem of missing boys from the home which were
not found in local grave sites — the bodies are in the channel.

One key witness in this is barrister Michael Shrimpton who has gone public in interviews
about Heath’s involvement in murder.5? Shrimpton is currently a barrister and was
previously an immigration judge and intelligence and national security consultant.
Shrimpton claims that the murdered boys were the ones old enough to recognise who was
abusing them. Shrimpton also alleges that the cabinet secretary at the time (Mr Hunt) was
also Gay and in on the crimes, covering up the tracks.

When Tory conferences were held in Blackpool, Heath’s yacht would be moored offshore.
A former member of the Special Boat Service assigned to guard the boat says that Savile
was regularly seen taking young boys on board Heath’s yacht. It is also claimed that Savile
procured boys for many other MPs.58

49 Simon Danczuk MP & Matthew Baker; ‘Smile for the camera: the double life of Cyril Smith’, April 2014.
50 215t Century Wire; Peter Sterry, ‘Sir Jim’ll Fix it alright (sic)’ 15 October 2012.

51 Article for New Statesman; ‘The closet is a lonely place’, Brian Coleman, 23 April 2007.

52 Tbid.

53 215t Century Wire; Peter Sterry, ‘Sir Jim’ll Fix it alright’ 15 October 2012.

54 The English Rag; ‘Edward Heath — Young boys’. Aangirfan; ‘Saville, Heath, MI5’, 12 October 2012.

55 What do they know? Roger Phillips, ‘Edward Heath’.

56 215t Century Wire; Peter Sterry, ‘Sir Jim’ll Fix it alright’ 15 October 2012.

57 Michael Shrimpton interviewed on Bristol Community Radio; 11 January 2013.

58 215t Century Wire; Peter Sterry, ‘Sir Jim’ll Fix it alright’ 15 October 2012.
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As an aside, it is now common knowledge that Heath admitted to lying to the electorate
regarding the entry into the Common Market (EEC, EU as was). He denied at the time that
there were any plans for a developing political union, it was just a trade agreement.
Researchers now speculate whether Heath was blackmailed into pushing the UK into the
EU. In fact, many suspect that he was set up to be PM, despite Enoch Powell being more
gifted, clever, popular and suitable for the job. It is without doubt that Heath was an
absolutely useless PM (remember the three-day week and constant blackouts?).

David Icke publicly outed Heath not only as a paedophile but a murderer, torturer and a
Satanist in a book many years ago.59 Despite journalists questioning Heath about this, he
never sued Icke.

Kenneth Clarke — accused paedophile; evidence destroyed by conspiracy

Ken Clarke is a famous longstanding MP, barrister, Queen’s Counsel and cabinet minister
who was made Lord Chancellor in 2010. He is currently Minister without Portfolio in the
coalition government.

Clarke is accused by Ben Fellows, a former prolific stage, TV and film child actor (trained
by the RSC from the age of 10), reporter and photographer. The substance of his testimony
is available on many platforms: websites, letters, YouTube videos, and interviews. Fellows
is a credible witness who has suffered for his allegations. He had filmed proof of the sexual
assault on him by Clarke, which has gone missing due to a conspiracy led, he alleges, by
David Cameron. His testimony of certain claims is backed up by secret audio-taping and
secret filming, such as his arrest by the Metropolitan Police.

One of the earliest outings of Clarke was on a YouTube interview posted by Bill Maloney
interviewing Fellows,%° as a victim of child abuse when he was in his early teens. Fellows
gives a cogent description of many famous people involved in the procuring of teenagers
for entertainment celebrities and offered to take a lie detector test to prove his story. The
people alleged to be involved in this include Kenneth Clark, Max Clifford, Tom Cruise and
others. Fellows was often sent by Clifford to parties at Stringfellow’s where, aged 13, he was
plied with alcohol and cocaine and then packed of to after parties where abuse took place
upon various under-aged hopeful actors, boys and girls as young as 13. He claims that
sexual abuse of child actors and models is rife in the BBC at recording after parties, and in
film and TV casting processes.

In his testimony Fellows claims that there was filmed proof of an assault on him by Clarke
as part of a separate sting when he worked for the Cook Report.¢t Clarke was filmed as part
of an investigation into the ‘cash for questions’ scandal but during this he molested
Fellows, who was a minor. This matter was later covered up, according to Fellows’
allegations, by David Cameron in his earlier role as an executive for Carlton TV. Central,
the TV company owning the tape, was taken over by Carlton TV and then the tape was
mysteriously burned in a warehouse fire. Fellows volunteered to take a lie detector test to
confirm his statements.62

59 The Biggest Secret.

60 YouTube; ‘Lie Detector. Ben Fellows tells Bill Maloney ‘T will take a lie detector test on my accusations’.
61 The Cook Report, 1984 investigation into Greer Associates.

62 Which included being sexually abused by Lord Andrew Lloyd Webber.
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The rest of his story is complicated. I think it best to try (from a wide variety of sources®3)
to attempt a timeline. His story is important because it shows how victims are abused and
threatened by the authorities when they try to bring prosecutions of high level people.

® 1994: The Cook Report conducted an investigation for Central television into the ‘cash
for questions’ scandal and set up a sting involving Ben Fellows as a child actor who was
then 17-years old but appeared to be 15 and was told to say that he was 15. The
investigation was into the criminal involvement of Ian Greer (a political lobbyist
investigated in the ‘cash for questions’ sandal). This investigation alleged that the
scandal went far higher then than Neil Hamilton, the main scapegoat,®4 and reached
the PM. This was explosive and could have brought down the government (of John
Major). Fellows claimed that Clarke was repeatedly in Greer’s office (something Clarke
denies as it poses serious questions).

® A secret film showed Ken Clarke (a then cabinet minister) in Greer’s office (in itself a
significant problem). By chance it also showed something else.

® Fellows was groped by Clarke in Ian Greer’s office while the secret cameras rolled.

® The secret film of this event was held by Central Television and was taken by a lawyer
dealing with the Cook Report. Subsequently that investigation was terminated. David
Cameron, whilst working as an executive for Carlton Television (a client of Greer)
secured the tapes after Carlton Television hastily acquired Central Television.65 The
tapes were sent by Carlton to a storage facility called ‘Iron Mountain’. Mysteriously, the
Iron Mountain facility burned down soon afterwards, destroying the evidence. The
police told Fellows that there was a high level conspiracy regarding those tapes as they
blew open the ‘cash for questions’ scandal involving the Tories (as well as incriminating
Clarke).

® The Times journalist Jack Malvern (not the police) found out about the Iron Mountain
fire.

® A certain Sylvia Jones admitted to Jack Malvern that she had seen the tape, but did not
see the assault. She later denied seeing this tape when questioned by the police.

¢ When Fellows went public with the story when he got older (after the Savile affair
opened the door for victims of child abuse), journalists and bloggers who published it
on the Internet were threatened.

® 13 April 2013: DC Ben Lambskin and a colleague called Andy arrived at Fellow’s house
to question him about his accusations.

® On 8 August 2013: the police called Fellows in to make a statement as part of Operation
Fairbank (the covert aspect of Operation Yewtree into Savile’s connections, demanded
by Tom Watson MP into accusations of child abuse in Westminster). This is part of the
Metropolitan Police’s Paedophile Unit.6¢ DCI Paul Settle, who was in charge of the
investigation, led this request.6”

63 Letter from Ben Fellows to Ken Clarke (chrisspivey.org); YouTube ‘Esther Ranzen holds teen drug parties
for the BBC truthferretfilms Bilderberg 2013 Shocking’. 6.11. Before Its News; ‘Ken Clarke is above the law’ 10
May 2013. UK Column; Interview: Brian Gerrish and Ben Fellows.

64 Neil Hamilton lost a libel case against Mohamed Al-Fayed in 1997, regarding charges of corruption.

65 Cameron joined Carlton in July 1994 as Director of Corporate Affairs; he stayed until February 2001, his
only venture into the commercial world outside politics. Carlton acquired 81% of Central Television in 1996.
[ITV; About ITV, History. The Wikipedia entry is incorrect in stating 1994. Fellows states that the take-over
of Central was a planned strategy but alleges that it was hastened in order to obtain these tapes and that this
was facilitated by Cameron.]

66 More properly, ‘The Specialist Crime Directorate Child Abuse Investigation Command’.

67 Interestingly, Settle used to be a Royal protection officer.
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® Fellows was whisked off by the CID and interrogated for 8 hours compiling a statement
15 pages long. [The background to this was secretly filmed by his associates.]%8

® During this, Fellows was arrested for ‘conspiring to pervert the cause of justice’. This
allowed the Met. to get a warrant to break into the house where he was staying with
someone in Uxbridge and take all the computers to steal any evidence. In the end
Fellows was released without charge. Remember that Fellows is a victim who is being a
good citizen giving evidence on a crime committed. Instead he is treated as a criminal.

® At this time Detective Ben Lambskin formally stated that even if the police interviewed
Clarke, he would lie. He also is alleged to have stated that Clarke was, ‘above the law'.
He also stated that the matter of the tape was ‘corporate’ and that the police were
powerless in investigating large corporations.

® QOther police officers named by Fellows in this connection are: Detective Chief Inspector
Paul Settle, Detective Constable Nathan Jones (who threatened Fellows to give the
police statement on Clarke), Detective Sergeant James Townly; Detective Constable
Ben Lambskin, and the clerks who took his statement were called Andy and Julia-Anne.

® Despite all the detailed evidence given by Fellows, the police decided not to question
Clarke.

® The police told Fellows that the treatment and suffering he had experienced since going
public was a ‘demoralisation exercise’ to stop the complaint.

® The police told Fellows that there were protocols in place preventing them from
speaking to Clarke about the complaint of sexual abuse.

e After this Fellows made a speech at the Bilderberg Fringe which was filmed by
Pienmash films.® [Clarke was on the steering committee of the Bilderbergers.] After
the event, the hotel where he spoke was investigated by police in forensic suits. An
Inspector Knight told Fellows at 3 am that the men were collecting DNA!

® After being threatened and warned to stay low by the police, Fellows kept a low profile
for a time.

® Fellows then complained to the IPCC and was told by Dave Bird that the police had re-
opened his case, despite Det. Ben Lambskin formerly informing him that it was closed.

® In 2013 Fellows took part in a “‘Walk Against Corruption’ walking from Plymouth to
London to draw public attention to his story.

® TFellows wrote a public letter to Clarke challenging him to either sue him or to appear on
Newsnight or Question Time with him to answer publicly why he was preventing the
police doing their job.

e Ken Clarke’s formal response to these allegations is that he had never been in Greer’s
office and that it was a case of mistaken identify (despite Greer introducing Clarke to
Fellows formally). He has not sued Fellows so far.

® Note: Ken Clarke is allegedly a Freemason. The police officers in Operation Fairbridge
are allegedly all Freemasons.7°

Summary
Attempts to initiate a police investigation were dismissed, allegedly by the paedophile unit,
as Clarke was untouchable, ‘he is above the law and cannot be questioned.7* Fellows was

68 YouTube: ‘Ben Fellows Arrest 8th August 2013’; 6.38.

69 Bill Maloney; pienmash films.com

70 Ben Fellows; Before Its News, ‘Ken Clarke MP is above the law and cannot be questioned says
Metropolitan Police Paedophile Unit’, 10 May 2013.

71 Before its news; Before Its News, ‘Ken Clarke MP is above the law and cannot be questioned says
Metropolitan Police Paedophile Unit’, 10 May 2013.
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subsequently threatened by masked men and feared for his life. He was later arrested by
the Metropolitan Police but was not charged. Clarke denies the allegation but the police
have not charged Fellows with conspiring to pervert the cause of justice, which they should
if he lied.

This is a case where hard evidence was available but has been deleted by a conspiracy.
However, it is also evidence of the refusal of the police to process a written witness
statement against a senior politician.”2 It appears that the police paedophile unit actually
protects paedophiles, if they are of the ruling elite.

Peter Morrison — confirmed but not convicted paedophile

Morrison was the MP for Chester and deputy chairman of the Tory Party. Morrison had
twice been caught cottaging in public toilets with underaged boys but was only released
with a caution. There was no record kept in police files. Dissatisfied police officers tipped
off The Guardian complaining that a less powerful man would have been charged with
gross indecency. Evidence coming to light later shows him connected to paedophile rings.

When confronted by journalists Morrison used libel laws to block publication of the story.
The news only came out after Morrison died and could not sue. This is a common
situation.”3 The libel laws are often used as a threat by paedophiles to protect themselves.

Graham Ovenden — convicted paedophile, and a friend: Lord McAlpine

Ovenden is a world famous artist / photographer who has been accused of child abuse for
over 40 years. His works have been investigated as possible child pornography by the US
and UK authorities years ago.

He has been prosecuted and tried in the past but got off as a result of power applied by
high level friends, including judges and lords (e.g. a 2009 prosecution).

However, in April 2013 he was accused of six charges of indecency with a child and one
case of indecent assault at Truro Crown Court. The four children involved are now adults
and the offences occurred between 1972 and 1985. He was found guilty of these but
acquitted (on the judge’s direction) of other assaults.74 Incredibly, on 4 June 2013 he
received a suspended sentence by a judge (Graham Cottle) known to give light sentences to
paedophiles. The Attorney General reviewed this case and on 9 October 2013 and Ovenden
was jailed for two years and three months by the Court of Appeal.”s

What is interesting is that alleged paedophile Lord McAlpine owned a collection of photos
and erotic art by Ovenden, now a convicted paedophile. Indecent images of children
created by paedophiles at an ordinary person’s home, or even just on his computer, have
led to jail sentences, but Lord McAlpine’s stash is considered as ‘art’.76

McAlpine’s name had previously arisen, after the Savile exposure, as one of the predators
in a Tory ring who abused children in care homes. [See later.] Due to his threats of using
libel laws, the BBC paid him £185,000 even though the programme involved (Newsnight)
never actually named him. Sally Bercow was found guilty by a friend of his, in a High Court
libel suit in May 2013, for simply tweeting: ‘Why is Lord McAlpine trending?

72 When two gay men complained to a policeman about a Christian preacher expressing a Biblical opinion, he
was immediately arrested and deprived of food, water and necessary medication for 19 hours.

73 The Guardian; Nick Davies, ‘The sheer scale of child abuse in Britain’, April 1998.

74 The Independent; 8 April 2014.

75 Wikipedia on Ovenden.

76 The DuckShoot Blog; Dave Knight, ‘Lord McAlpine is a paedophile’, Update 17 January 2014.
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This is an example of how powerful people can shut down accusers that have no money
and how people connected to judges get preferential treatment.

Messham’s apology to Lord McAlpine

Abuse survivor Steven Messham was interviewed on Newsnight about allegations of high
level abusers during the North Wales enquiry. He later apologised to Lord McAlpine,
though he was not named on the Newsnight broadcast.

The mistake made by witness Steven Messham should have been properly investigated by
Newsnight. What Messham claimed was that the police showed him photographs and he
identified abusers. One of the men he identified as an abuser was stated to be Lord
McAlpine BY THE POLICE; so Messham implicated him (though not broadcast on
Newsnight). Clearly this was deliberate disinformation and misdirection to scupper the
case and make Messham sound like an unreliable witness. Newsnight should have
searched out the policeman who did this and tried to obtain the correct photos. We would
then have had a prime suspect. As it is now, the victims have not had justice.

The Royal Courts of Justice — tolerated paedophile venue

Complaints that under-age boys are being abused in a toilet will normally result in a police
investigation and arrest. Many famous people have been arrested for such ‘cottaging’.7”
However, in the case of the Royal Courts of Justice in the Strand this will not happen under
the terms of a long-standing Metropolitan police policy. An operation will only be given the
go-ahead here if it has the approval of an officer of the rank of commander or above.

The reason is obvious, and is confirmed by experienced police officers, that those toilets
are used by High Court judges and barristers, and the Met. has always said that it does not
want to grapple with such a powerful offender without special authority.”8

Interim conclusion

We have shown some hard evidence of high level paedophilia and the cover-up of evidence
by the police and senior figures. This may only involve a few people but it shows that the
problem exists and that police and state corruption is involved in protecting senior
offenders.

As we examine further evidence, we will see that this pattern keeps emerging — allegations
against senior figures followed by state corruption and a cover-up.

Paedophile rings

PIE: The Paedophile Information Exchange

This, now outlawed, organisation was once formally supported by politicians that are now
high-level public figures, such as Harriet Harman and Patricia Hewitt. Old information is
coming back to haunt them. One of the goals of this group was to bring the age of consent
down to 4-years old, or even eradicating the age of consent completely, and yet it managed
to exist openly for ten years.

In the late 70s PIE was affiliated with the National Council for Civil Liberties, now Liberty.
In 1976, in a submission to the Criminal Law Revision Committee, the NCCL asserted that
‘childhood sexual experiences, willingly engaged in, with an adult result in no identifiable

77 Such as singer George Michael.
78 The Guardian; Nick Davies, ‘The sheer scale of child sex abuse in Britain’, April 1998.



22

damage’.79 Consequently they opposed the Protection of Children Bill. Harriet Harman and
Patricia Hewitt were leaders of the NCCL at this time. When PIE argued for incest to be
decriminalised and photos of naked children not to be considered as indecent, Harman
argued that the alternative view would ‘increase censorship’.8° In 1978 the NCCL passed
motions supporting PIE’s rights, condemning attacks on paedophiles and their
supporters.8t

The leaders of PIE openly stated that they were paedophiles (such as Keith Hose, the first
chairman). Amazingly, PIE received grants totalling £70,000 from the Home Office in
1980, but this did not emerge until 2014 when a whistleblower told the police.

PIE was formed in 1974 campaigning for ‘children’s sexuality’. At this point is ought to be
said that many council and government led education schemes are doing this right now.
These schemes sexualise children as young a four with graphic explanations of sexual
intercourse, oral sex, and contraception.

PIE gained support from professional bodies and academics, receiving invitations from
student groups and media news outlets. PIE tried to conflate its cause with Gay rights,
which was burgeoning at the time (homosexuality had only been decriminalised in 1967
and the age of consent for Gay people was 21).

In 1977 the Campaign for Homosexual Equality condemned the harassment of PIE in the
press. Many people wrote to The Guardian defending sex with children, after articles had
attacked PIE, often giving their names. The Young Liberals (apart from its leader) openly
supported PIE. The group was growing in numbers and influence.

Things changed in the 80s. In 1982 Geoffrey Prime (a KGB spy and member of PIE) was
jailed for 32 years for passing on secrets and for sex attacks on young girls. A scoutmaster
resigned after being exposed as a member of PIE in 1983. A Scottish headmaster gave a
dossier on PIE to Scotland Yard after infiltrating the group. PIE chairman Tom O’Carroll
was jailed for two years for ‘conspiracy to corrupt public morals’ in 1982. However, the
NCCL (Liberty) continued to defend the group. As late as 1983 the NCCL was campaigning
to lower the age of consent to 14 and only excluded PIE during 1983.82 In 1984 two former
leaders of PIE were convicted on child pornography charges, while other leaders fled the
country. PIE disbanded in 1984.83

Harman and Hewitt still need to explain why their organisation continued to support PIE
until 1983, even after prosecutions for paedophilia. Harman constantly lobbied
government to legalise child pornography, paedophilia and incest. Despite her denials of
this, released government documents have her signature on them proving it.

Hewitt (NCCL general secretary for nine years) issued an apology, after being hounded,
saying that she had been ‘naive and wrong’. Harman (NCCL’s in-house solicitor), however,
has not apologised, though she expressed ‘regref at the involvement. Harman’s husband
MP Jack Dromey, was also involved as a member of the NCCL executive committee.

79 Wikepedia on PIE.

80 Wikepedia on PIE.

81 The Observer; Jamie Doward, ‘How paedophiles infiltrated the left and hijacked the fight for civil rights’, 2
March 2014.

82 Shami Chakrabati, director of Liberty, issued an apology for the previous links with PIE in February 2014.
83 BBC News Magazine; ‘How did the pro-paedophile groups PIE exist openly for 10 years’, 27 February
2014.
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Note: three current MPs openly supported a paedophile organisation for years, whose
leaders had been convicted for sexual abuse, and even openly campaigned to lower the age
of consent. Two have not apologised. The Home Office also gave this paedophile ring
grants.

MP Tom Watson’s evidence

On 24 October 2012 Watson spoke at PM questions saying that a powerful paedophile
network may have operated in the UK with links to Parliament and Downing Street. He
said, ‘The evidence file used to convict paedophile Peter Righton, if it still exists, contains clear
intelligence of a widespread paedophile ring. ... One of its members boasts of a link to a senior
aide of a former prime minister, who said he could smuggle indecent images of children from
abroad. The leads were not followed up.’84

As a result of Watson’s questions, Operation Fernbridge was launched by the PM.

Elm Guest House — paedophile ring HQ

Many news services carried stories on the paedophile ring that operated out of EIm Guest
House and the Grafton Close care home in Barnes, London.85 It is claimed that sex parties
at this house were frequented by politicians in the late 70s and 1980s.

Operation Fairbank was led by the police into this network, which began in 2012 for a
preliminary assessment of evidence rather than a formal enquiry. It was a secret
investigation that was later merged into Operation Fernbridge.

Those alleged to have attended this place include: Sir Anthony Blunt (the Soviet spy), Cyril
Smith MP, Sir Peter Hayman, a bishop (later charged), pop stars, an MI5 officer, a judge
and other politicians from the Tories, Labour and Sinn Fein.8¢ A Met. spokesman said, ‘We
can confirm Cyril Smith visited the premises’ .87

The police arrested two obscure men88 as part of Operation Fernbridge, launched after
concerns by MP Tom Watson.89 The evidence had arisen in the file of convict Peter
Righton showing intelligence of a sex abuse gang. One witness had told Watson of links
with a senior aide to a former prime minister. Watson expressed concerns that this ring
was protected by connections to Parliament.

The guest house was run by Carole Kasir, who died in 1990 aged 47 of an overdose. Surely
this death is questionable? Two people claimed it was murder at the time but were
ignored.o° In 1982 the police raided a party where 12 boys gave evidence of their abuse by
men at the house. Kasir was convicted of running a disorderly house but the child abuse
was not pursued — why? It turns out that two policemen were in the house at the time of
the raid, claiming to have been undercover. Kasir had logbooks, names, times, dates and
pictures of visitors. What happened to these? It is claimed that Special Branch took over
from local police and covered the whole thing up.

84 This can be found on YouTube.

85 Such as Channel 4 News; 6 February 2013, ‘Arrests over historic south west London child sex abuse’.
86 The Independent; “Tory MP warned of powerful paedophile ring 30 years ago’, 22 February 2013.

87 BBC News; ‘Visited alleged sex abuse guest house’, 12 September 2013.

88 One was a Catholic priest.

89 The information was passed on to him by the investigative website Exaro.

90 E.g a child protection campaigner from the National Assoc. of Young People in Care, who called for a
criminal investigation.
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In February 2013 it was reported that police were also investigating the Grafton Close
Children’s Home in Richmond and that Kasir had pictures of many establishment figures
at Elm Guest House and one of a former cabinet minister in a sauna with a naked boy.9* A
document later appeared on the Internet showing a list of visitors on one occasion.92 Police
received testimony from boys who had been sent to Elm Guest House and abused while
they were residents at Grafton. At least three men named in documents as visitors to Elm
Guest House were later convicted of multiple sex offences against children.93

Some of those children that were abused later committed suicide.94

Dolphin Square

Dolphin Square is a collection of the largest blocks of flats in Europe set in Pimlico,
containing its own shops, bars and restaurants, within convenient reach of the House of
Commons. About 50, mostly Tory, MPs live there.

Ian Greer [see earlier on Ken Clarke] threw gay parties in suites hired in Dolphin Square
by his company. Scallywag magazine (now defunct) exposed a story claiming that boys
from children’s homes in North Wales were procured for a paedophile network running
out of these premises. When this was published in 1994-5 there was at least one
resignation from the Conservative Office. A number of other sources also identify this area
as being the base of paedophile sex parties hosted by Greer and others.9

One person alleged to be involved in this connection is Derek Laud, a personal friend of
David Cameron and who contributed to speeches of well known Tories including Thatcher.
He has many close friends in Conservative halls of power. It is alleged that he ran a Pimlico
PR agency (Ludgate Communications) which supplied young boys for politicians taken
from children’s homes in North Wales. It is alleged he did this in connection with Ian
Greer Associates. This was partially investigated as a ‘boys for questions’ case, at the time
of the ‘cash for question’ scandal. Laud threw parties at Dolphin Square and one victim
swears that he was molested there by a Tory peer.9¢ However, despite many websites
outing him, there is very little evidence supplied.

Ben Fellows also confirms, in his various testimonies, that Dolphin Square was used to
host parties where children where drugged and abused. [See ‘Ken Clarke’.]

It is difficult to get real evidence supporting exactly what went on, but there are enough
testimonies from victims to warrant a new police investigation looking at all the various
claims regarding this site (some of which have already been supplied). The truth could
range from Gay parties that were not illegal to a paedophile ring supplying under aged
boys to be abused by politicians. Until there is a prosecution we cannot be certain.

91 Daily Mail’ ‘Timebomb at Elm Guest House: pop stars, a bishop and a top politician appear on a list seized
by police’ 2 February 2013.

92 See Database of UK and Eire paedophiles / child abusers: ‘Elm Guest House — Child sexual abuse — ONE
BIG cover up’ website.

93 The Independent on Sunday; ‘Police failings put dozens of children at risk from notorious paedophile
ring’, 4 March 2013.

94 E.g. Peter Hatton-Bornshin. Database of UK and Eire paedophiles / child abusers: ‘Elm Guest House —
Child sexual abuse — ONE BIG cover up’ website.

95 E.g Before Its News; ‘Swansong for David Cameron — Porn advisor nicked for kiddie porn’, 4 March 2014.

96 Scallywag Magazine also Before Its News; 4 March 2014.
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The BBC paedophile ring

Claims of institutional child abuse in the BBC have been raised by very many victims over
the years, but these are now gathering momentum. Savile was not alone in his crimes. New
victims have gone public after the Savile affair claiming that the BBC had a, ‘very organised
paedophile ring operating out of BBC HQ.9” They claim they were abused by Savile and a
number of other BBC staff. Liz Dux leads a legal team representing over 20 victims, and
says, ‘The calls are coming in day by day, including victims as well as witnesses who saw things
take place’. Nine serving BBC employees are under investigation for serious allegations.

One witness (Leisha Brookes) claims that she was, ‘abused repeatedly by up to 35 men
including Savile over a two year period whilst visiting the BBC HQ in White City, West London’.98
She alleges that the abuse was co-ordinated by a BBC cameraman and occurred between
the ages of 9 and 11.

Other victims claim that Top of the Pops was a centre of abuse involving a number of men
who would procure girls and boys then take them to after parties where they were abused.

Ben Fellows’ testimony

Fellows has given much information in a variety of sources (film, interviews, websites,
letters99) in which he claims that the BBC was riddled with child abuse during his time
there in various capacities, such as castings. He alleges that it was commonplace for after
parties to occur on the premises following recordings, say of Top of the Pops or some other
programme. Here under aged children would be plied with alcohol and cocaine and then
subjected to indecent assaults. He strongly avers that Savile was not alone in his behaviour
but that it was common practice amongst many BBC staff. He states that inappropriate
behaviour with unsupervised minors was seen as normal by BBC staff. He also alleges that
a top female BBC producer is a paedophile having seduced him as a minor.100

The Gill Statue

On the front of the BBC headquarters in London there is a statue depicting a man holding a
naked boy next to his groin. The artist involved, Eric Gill, was a paedophile who abused his
sisters, two daughters and even his dog. It is supposed to represent Shakespeare’s Ariel
and Prospero. There have been calls for it to be removed. Why did the BBC choose such a
grotesque image to front its HQ?

Jill Dando

It is alleged that Jill Dando was assassinated on the orders of the highest levels of power
because she was about to blow the whistle on the exploits of the BBC paedophile ring.1o1
There is no doubt that the Metropolitan police’s investigation was a shambles (e.g. they
failed to question Dando’s neighbours and issued an e-fit photo of the suspect with brown
hair instead of blond) and then fitted up poor Barry George; falsely imprisoned for 8 years
and left without compensation.

There is no doubt that Dando’s assassination was a professional hit by an experienced
gunman and not some random act of violence by a bumbling stalker. Why did the police
not examine motive for such a professional hit by investigating what Dando was
considering?

97 London Evening Standard; Kiran Randhawa, 24 October 2012.

98 Anorak; 10 March 2013; referring to an article in the Sunday Express.

99 See ‘Ken Clarke’.

100 Aangirfan; Blogspot, ‘Police cover-up of child murders’, 13 October 2012.
101 Victims of the State; Norman Scarth, 22 July 2013.
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Proved paedophiles working for the BBC
e Jimmy Savile [see earlier.]

® BBC Bristol presenter Peter Rowell [also one of Prince Charles ambassadors entrusted
with assessing young people as part of the Prince’s Trust scheme] — jailed for six years
for abusing girls under 16-years old.1°2

® BBC presenter and predatory paedophile Michael Souter was jailed for 22 years for
sexually abusing seven boys.103

® Chris Denning was jailed for three years for indecent assault on a 13-year old boy and
possession of indecent photographs in 1988.

¢ An unnamed BBC presenterio4 was linked to the Paedophile Information Exchange
(PIE), which is now outlawed. He used a charity (Azimuth Trust) to cover up abuse of
young children on sailing trips. A certain Michael Johnson was later convicted of
abusing boys with him and the case is open regarding the presenter.1°5 The case is being
re-opened by the police.

e Stuart Hall: famous convicted paedophile. Hall was a very famous TV presenter of ‘It’s a
knockout’ and ‘Jeux Sans Frontieres’ shows and a BBC radio football commentator. In
April 2013 he pleaded guilty to indecently assaulting 13 girls aged between 9 and 17
between 1967 and 1986. He was sentenced to 15 months in prison, later increased to 30
months. Further charges followed.

® Jonathan King was convicted in 2001 for abusing boys. Between 1965 and 1975 he
appeared on Top of the Pops many times as a performer and was present as a producer
of pop singles. He was involved in many media projects and his series ‘Entertainment
USA’ was aired on BBC 2. He also hosted the BRIT awards for the BBC in 1987.

® The actor and writer Chris Langham; convicted under Operation Ore.

Freemasonry

A woman who was a secretary at the BBC claimed that it was, ‘full of Freemasons and
queers’. That many Gay people are employed by the BBC is common knowledge but she
alleged that she was given Masonic memos to type every day and Masonic literature would
be on the photocopier waiting to be copied.o¢ Strong links between BBC executives and
Freemasons would not be surprising.

Summary

We are again hindered by the lack of detailed hard evidence as to exactly what the scope of
guilt is. There appears to be little doubt that Savile and others were abusing many children
in after parties of one programme and another. There are also a number of prosecuted and
convicted BBC staff. But exactly how far paedophile rings were established and networked
is unknown, for now. However, again there is sufficient testimony for a thorough, detailed
police enquiry into the charge that the BBC was home to a paedophile ring, or at least
regularly used for paedophile activities.

The police
As you will see in this paper, the police are tacitly complicit in the guilt of paedophiles, at
least, through the neglect of duty in pursuing allegations and arbitrarily dropping

102 BBC News, Bristol; 2 March 2012.

103 Daily Mirror; Anthony Bond, 31 October 2013.

104 Later alleged to be a Clifford Luton. Spotlight; 11 April 2013, comments.

105 Spotlight; 11 April 2013.

106 Keith Sandwell regarding his wife, of Suffolk, Aangirfan, ‘Savile; murdered kids; banker; mind control’,
20 October 2012.
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investigations. They are also clearly guilty in protecting high-level public figures or those
(like Savile, Smith) connected to them in some way. It seems logical that Freemasonry has
something to do with this.

However, I have received personal testimony from former police officers that there are
powerful paedophile rings in the police force itself (which would explain the failure to
investigate abuse claims properly). Victims in various areas, such as Devon [see later],
have also alleged this.

I have known a number of conscientious police officers who were so disgusted with what
they experienced in the police force that they resigned and changed their jobs. These
include Christians and one pastor.

One non-Christian ex-police officer was a policewoman in Manchester. She discovered a
large paedophile ring in the Manchester police force and was disgusted. She tried to get an
investigation going into this and her life was made an absolute misery. The more she tried
the more she was harassed. In the end her life was threatened and she resigned on medical
grounds suffering from serious depression. Due to her fear of her life I am unable to name
her.

Such tactics are a good way to silence critics. Such claims can only ever be circumstantial
because witnesses are too scared to sign an affidavit or go public; thus any such claims can
be dismissed as merely anecdotal. However, they go a long way to explain why police
investigations have repeatedly been terminated with no explanation and why people like
Savile, Cyril Smith, Peter Morrison and Edward Heath (to name but a few) were never
prosecuted.

Hidden files

Over and over again, as we investigate specific cases of child abuse, we find that police
investigations are suddenly shut down and files either go missing or are placed on a
restricted list. This becomes obvious to any researcher; however, the Press has also noticed
it.

The Mail exposed that fact that celebrities and politicians had their sex attack files hidden
from investigating officers by senior coppers.107

It claims that hundreds of files were so heavily protected by senior police that investigating
officers could not access them. Information on elite figures was marked as ‘secret’ or
‘restricted’ and were only available to a small number of officers. Clearly this enabled
offenders such as Savile and Cyril Smith to escape justice. This was claimed in a report on
the effectiveness of the Police National Database in the wake of the Savile scandal.
Complaints made about Savile around the UK, for example, were not shared with other
detectives.

Past record
For anyone unconvinced of the almost total corruption of senior UK police (riddled with
Freemasonry), and especially the Metropolitan Police, note:

¢ The multiple, questionable, deaths in custody; sometimes of incapacitated people.
® The beating of innocent suspects in custody; sometimes requiring hospitalisation.

107 Mail Online; Martin Robinson, ‘Celebrities, politicians and VIPs had their sex attack files hidden’, 20
March 2013.
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The death of Blair Peach. [A teacher who was killed by police during an anti-racism
demonstration in London in April 1979. He died of head injuries sustained from the
Metropolitan Police Special Patrol Group. 14 witnesses claimed to see police strike
Peach. No one was charged. The police later reached an out-of-court settlement with
relatives in 1989. ]

The Cardiff Five. [Described as one of Britain’s worst miscarriages of justice by The
Independent.1o8 It led to the biggest police corruption trial, which collapsed costing £30
million and forcing two enquires. Five people were wrongly accused of the 1988 killing
of a Cardiff prostitute by fabricated police evidence.]

The Birmingham Six frame-up [see the film, ‘Sons of the fathers’].
The Guildford Four frame-up.
The Maguire Seven.

The killing of Daniel Morgan in Sydenham in 1987 who was about to expose police
corruption.

The Hillsborough Tragedy cover-up and smearing of innocents (now coming to light
slowly).

The Stephen Lawrence cover-up and discrediting of the Lawrence family (slowly
coming to light)

The shooting of Mark Duggan, an unarmed man (which sparked the London riots).
Original claims by the police that he had a gun were exposed as lies.

The assassination of innocent Jean Charles de Menezes in Stockwell by six shots to the
head.

The death of Ian Tomlinson. [Innocent bystander who died as a result of a police
beating while being ‘kettled’ during a demonstration. Initial police lies about not being
involved were proved wrong when a mobile telephone video emerged showing what
happened.]

The multiple crimes and planned crimes perpetrated by police officers, including
kidnap, perjury, burglary and robbery, recently reported in the Press.109

The ‘Plebgate affair’, concerted lying to smear Andrew Mitchell, an innocent politician.

Shredding ‘lorry-loads’ documents to cover-up crimes.!’0 This has happened many
times, but most highlighted was Operation Othona files (into police corruption) in
2003. Operation Othona included intelligence on detectives trafficking drugs,
fabricating evidence and selling police information to organised crime syndicates. A
leaked 2002 police report (Operation Tiberius) concluded that organised crime
syndicates were able to infiltrate Scotland Yard ‘at wilf.

Operation Zloty (the second recent Met. police corruption probe) found ‘dozens’ of Met.
detectives in the pay of organised crime.1t

We could go on. The conspiracy to protect paedophiles, and especially high level celebrities
and politicians, should come as no surprise. There have been previous periods of history
where it has been proved that many levels of the police force were corrupt; such as the
1960s-early 70s. The Kray brothers, for example, paid off many strata of police officers.
The film, “The Bank Job’, based on truth, gives an example of this at work.

108 The Independent; Paul Peachey; ‘Cardiff Five: “We've lived through hell since 1988, 22 December 2011.
109 For example: BBC News; Ed Davey, ‘Victim’s fury over corrupt Flying Squad kidnap plot’ 10 April 2014.

110 E.g. BBC News; Ed Davey, ‘Victim’s fury over corrupt Flying Squad kidnap plot’ 10 April 2014. The
Independent; Tom Harper, Paul Peachey, ‘Something rotten in the Met. Police’, 26 March 2014.

111 The Independent; Tom Harper, 26 March 2014.
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Note:

That particularly dubious constabulary merits careful investigation.
Lord Maginnis of Drumglass referring to North Yorkshire Police.

Corruption amongst police forces the length of this country ... systemic corruption from
a section of the police at all levels in the operation of all types of crime and involving
officers from professional standards.
Professor John Laird, Baron Laird FRSA of Artigarvan, referring to general police
corruption.

MPs condemn force as ‘out-and-out disgrace’.
The Independent.!:2

Police corruption is now so rife that radical reform is the only answer.
The Observer, headline, 20 October 2013.

See also the IPCC report: ‘Corruption in the police service in England and Wales: Second
Report based on the IPCC'’s experience from 2008 to 2011.

Example of a paedophile network web
For more information on the specifics of these people, see the relevant text in this paper.

The Greystone Heath ring*3
1965: Keith Laverack starts work at Greystone Heath and commits buggery and indecent
assault there raping at least 16 boys over the next four years.

Laverack shared some of these boys with his colleague Brian Percival, the clerk and
storeman.

Other abusers join the staff: Alan Langshaw raped at least 24 boys. Dennis Grain raped at
least 18. Roy Shuttleworth raped at least ten. Jack Bennett indecently assaulted two. Steve
Norris assaulted an unknown number.

Laverack moved to Cambridgeshire. At least four of his colleagues are suspected of
assaulting children.

Dennis Grain worked in Doncaster for the same group of private schools as Terence
Hoskins who became head-teacher of St Aiden’s Community Home in Widnes. He used his
connections with the South Yorkshire police to get access to his own file from the
supposedly secret National Criminal Intelligence Service (NCIS). His house-master Colin
Dick committed assaults.

Dennis Grain had previously attacked boys in Danesford children’s home in Congleton. He
opened the door there to three others: John Clarke, Joseph Smith and Brian Hudson.
Grain then went to work at Eton where has was a housemaster.

When he was principal of St Vincent’s, Alan Langshaw recruited a care worker named
Edward Stanton, via Roy Shuttleworth, where he abused children. Shuttleworth (still at
Greystone) knew Stanton from a course in residential childcare in Birmingham. This
course was lectured by Peter Righton, the notorious paedophile. Righton lectured at
numerous other colleges before he was convicted. He even became a consultant in child

112 The Independent; Tom Harper, Paul Peachey, ‘Something rotten in the Met. Police’, 26 March 2014.
113 The Guardian; Nick Davies, ‘The sheer scale of child sex abuse in Britain’, April 1998.



30

care and the Director of Education at the National Institute of Social Work in London,
where he influenced government policy.

Righton tried to legitimise his position by academic studies. He belonged to the Paedophile
Information Exchange, along with Jack Bennett. Righton had worked in the same
children’s home in Maidstone as Peter Howarth and went on to become an abuser in the
homes in North Wales along with Steve Norris, formerly of Greystone.

Though these men claimed to work alone, they were abusing victims yards away from each
other and even sharing the same boys.

Laverack, who started the abuse at Greystone Heath, went on to run the Guardian Ad
Litem panel for Cambridgeshire County Council, representing the interests of children in
court cases. This job introduced him to very vulnerable children and gave him access to
their files.

One can immediately see the complex web of interwoven relationships where people
collude to abuse and pave the way for other abusers; imagine the complications of the
national or international paedophile networks. Arresting a few low-level culprits here and
there is going to do nothing to break the bonds of institutional paedophilia. The whole
house of cards has to come down starting at the top.

Example of a weak prosecution regarding paedophile rings

Operation Orchid

Robert Oliver and Sidney Cooke and their friends abducted, drugged, raped and killed
Jason Swift, Barry Lewes and Mark Tildesley. They were only convicted of manslaughter.
Officers from Operation Orchid were frustrated, first because there was insufficient
evidence to convict them of murder, and second, because they were never able to bring
charges at all in relation to six other boys who, they believed, had also died at the hands of
the same ring.114

Institutional child abuse

After twenty years of scandal and alarm, after numerous inquiries and reports, and despite the best
efforts of those who work in it, we have created an elaborate and sophisticated failure, a child
protection system which does not protect the children.115

Care homes, approved schools, children’s homes, orphanages
‘During the last 30 years, children’s homes in Britain suffered an epidemic of rape and violent
assault. It was an epidemic that went unnoticed, like a plague that struck dumb its victims or else
blinded those around it.116

If 100,000 children disappear every year,!'” where do they go. Claims that they all return or
disappear on the streets or into prostitution are fallacious. Some may do but many simply

114 The Guardian; Nick Davies, ‘The sheer scale of child sex abuse in Britain’, April 1998.

115 The Guardian; Nick Davies, ‘The sheer scale of child sex abuse in Britain’, April 1998.

116 The Guardian; Nick Davies, ‘The sheer scale of child sex abuse in Britain’, April 1998. Aangirfan;
‘Paedophile ring in Prime Minster’s home?’, 24 October 2012.

117 Belfast Telegraph; 16 May 2011. Int. Centre for Missing & Exploited Children. Sky News 12 December
2008. The original figure came from Parents & Children Together (PACT). The charity Missing People issued
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vanish. Even if they were all on the streets, what is society doing to try to find them?
Nothing! Politicians work and play within a mile of very many homeless people but never
do anything for them.

But the real answer, that is being averred in article after article is that many are simply
being trafficked by paedophiles, abused and then murdered. Some are tortured and
murdered in ‘snuff films’. How do we know? Because the police regularly find these films
in raids. I have given one example of a torture film in this paper.

However, perhaps a worse ordeal is suffered by severely abused children whom no one
listens to, who suffer for years and then lead appalling lives, continuing their suffering in
depression, physical problems, addictions, self-harm, unemployment and eventual suicide.

We need to examine the scale of abuse and why it is pushed under the carpet.

Whistleblowers just get ignored and sacked or silenced by courts:8
I will just give a few examples.

Alison Taylor

In North Wales, where a huge paedophile ring was uncovered, Taylor was the manager of a
children’s home who spent five years chasing Gwynedd Council, the police, the Welsh
Office, the Dept. of Health and the Social Services Inspectorate regarding child abuse. They
ignored her. So she compiled a dossier of 75 allegations, was backed by two local
councillors, and finally secured convictions of four men. The government had to initiate its
public enquiry, which identified detailed complaints against 148 adults by 300 victims. By
this time, however, Taylor had been suspended and then sacked.

Karen McKaye

In South Wales McKaye was thrown out of her job after demanding that children’s
complaints be investigated. She was ignored but persistently and doggedly complained.
Her complaints finally resulted in a major police enquiry into Taff Vale children’s home in
Cardiff; now 32 other homes are being investigated. Three men await trial (at 2012);
Robert Starr was jailed for 15 years while three others were arrested.

Elaine Bowerman

In Warrington Elaine Bowerman spent ten years trying to get her union (Nalgo), her
employers (Lancashire County Council) and the police to deal with complaints of assaults
and violence upon children with learning difficulties at Massey Hall School. Eventually she
was forced to tell the parents of some abused children to warn them and was sacked for
gross misconduct. By 1996 she had lost everything when two boys approached her at home.
She put them in touch with the police who reopened an enquiry. In June 1997 they charged
Robert Boyle. He was later acquitted. It later turned out that he had a history of abuse
going back to 1977. Other staff were not charged.

Colin Smart
Smart was the Director of Social Services in Sunderland in the early 1990s. He complained
about child abuse to such a degree that Sunderland City Council took him to the High

a report saying that the figure was 150,000. Some claim the figure is 250,000 (700 a day). Two thirds of all
police missing person reports regard people under 18. In America the figure is over 800,000 a year. Crime
Library report that missing persons has increased six-fold in the last 25 years from 150,000 in 1980 to
€.900,000 today. In 2001 the Federal government counted 840,279 missing person cases; all but 50,000
were children.

118 The Guardian; ‘Silencing a scandal’, Nick Davies, April 1998.
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Court where he was threatened with losing his pension and paying a fortune in damages if
he ever spoke publicly about the charges.

It is said that North East is run by Catholics in Jarrow, the Freemasons who control many
local councillors and the Labour Party who run the cities, such as Sunderland, like a small
state.

A report by the NSPCC into a council home in Sunderland called Witherwack House
named 23 men and women who were identified as abusers of children during the 70s and
80s. It also showed that three people had been sacked at Witherwack around 1987 for child
abuse but no information had been given to the police, which is illegal. Smart went straight
to the police, avoiding local politicians. Smart had turned down an offer to join the Masons
in a city which had 34 lodges; including one (the Civic Lodge) entirely devoted to
councillors.

Smart’s own investigations revealed that the problem was not just the three who were
sacked but a wider problem of abuse existed. This included beatings, sexual assault and
children being restrained and locked in empty rooms for days on end. Smart went back to
the police and told them his findings as well as to the Dept. of Health in London, asking for
an enquiry using outside inspectors. Councillors now declared open war on Smart.

Smart had demanded that the abusive practices stopped but was informed that they had
continued and worsened. The Social Services Inspectorate drafted a report revealing ‘a
repressive regime’. Smart’s team compiled a list of offences affecting every children’s home
in the city, identifying 30 staff as possible abusers. He also found dirty rooms, broken
furniture, meals consisting of just an apple or a biscuit and thrashings if any child
complained. Smart then wrote a piece for The Guardian (‘Kids in Crisis’) without disclosing
details at Sunderland. He said, ‘/t is debatable whether the majority of children now in residential
care have been more harmed by the circumstances which brought them into the system, or by their
time with social services’.

Smart threatened the council to do a list of things to put things right or he would resign.
The chief executive accepted his resignation. The council then issued a stream of
disinformation to the press. The Detective Chief Inspector (David Wilson) that had worked
with Smart was attacked by Nalgo and by councillors. Wilson was moved off the enquiry.
The Inspectorate report was sidelined and another local report accepted which covered up
the scandal.

So Smart complied his own report in 1992 in five volumes, one of which regarded the care
of the elderly. This was sent to the police, the SSI, the Dept. of Heath and the Secretary of
State (Virginia Bottomley). The council sued him. They issued a writ for breach of
confidence. It turns out that two former residents were suing the council and Smart’s
report needed to be taken out of court. Smart went to court in 1993 while the council
wasted public money on his trial. The judge was lax and the two sides struck a deal. Smart
handed over his information and gave an undertaking not to speak out, and the bulk of the
costs were dropped. He was now gagged.

The original three sacked workers got off lightly, despite the stories of abuse seeing the
light of day in court. One was acquitted and the other two received suspended sentences.

Over the years residents, now grown up, brought suits against the council and a stream of
investigations began, leading to a full report by the NSPCC.
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Bryn Estyn, and other care homes in North Wales19
Bryn Estyn is a children’s care home in Wrexham, Clywd which closed in 1984.

The abuse at this home was so serious that victim Keith Gregory claims that at least a
dozen kids have killed themselves. Here children were whipped, beaten abused and raped
for decades. Visitors to the home who participated in the crimes included Jimmy Savile,
his brother Johnny*2¢ and two senior Tories. One of these was Sir Peter Morrison, who
died in 1995.

On occasions children would de taken to a hotel where they were gang raped and some
were beaten bloody. The deputy head, Peter Howarth, repeatedly raped Gregory and was
eventually jailed for abusing boys in 1994 for ten years.

In 1996 the Secretary of State for Wales (William Hague) ordered a Tribunal of Inquiry
into allegations of hundreds of cases of child abuse in care homes led by former judge Sir
Ronald Waterhouse QC. The Waterhouse Enquiry was a three-year, £13 million
investigation into child abuse at a number of homes in Clywd and Gwynedd occurring
between 1974 and 1990. It heard from over 650 people. Half of the witnesses needed
psychiatric help after giving evidence. The enquiry finished in 1998 with the report being
published in 1999 containing 700 allegations involving 170 kids, most of which involved
care staff. 80 were named as abusers. However, many names were redacted. It did
recognise that a paedophile ring existed in the areas of Cheshire and Wrexham but denied
that it involved famous names. It resulted in changes in policy about dealing with children
in care but many claim that it was a whitewash, protecting senior figures.

Keith Gregory (now a county councillor) was involved in the ‘Waterhouse Inquiry’ into
child abuse in Wales, and was told that he could not name a lot of people who visited. The
enquiry only focused on staff and care workers. When victims named powerful visitors the
names were crossed out. The police were not interested in investigating influential people
(like Savile or Morrison). Other victims, such as Steven Messham (who later appeared on
Newsnight) also named other high level politicians who raped him; but nothing was done.
He was told by one senior politician of the Thatcher years that he would be killed if he told
the police. A separate enquiry into investigating these claims was initiated in 2012 led by
Mrs Justice Julia Macur who would examine the Waterhouse Inquiry. Theresa May also
launched a separate new police enquiry into how the original claims were dealt with
(Operation Pallial).

The report of phase one of police investigation Operation Pallial was published on 29 April
2013 revealing 140 allegations of abuse at 18 children’s homes in North Wales between
1963 and 1992. Over 200 people gave evidence, but many victims had died by then.

Children at Bryn Estyn were not delinquents, but kids who had been abused or abandoned
and needed especial care and love. Instead they were raped by an institution. Staff had
made allegations of abuse long before any enquires but nothing was done, according to at

119 Mail Online; Larisa Brown, ‘Victims tell of horror inside North Wales care home ... 7 November 2012.
The Independent; Roger Dobson, ‘Child abuse scandal...” 22 April 1996. Wikipedia; ‘North Wales Child Abuse
Scandal’.

120 Who died in 1998 and was sacked as a recreation officer from a psychiatric hospital over claims that he
raped a former patient.
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least three reports by leading child care specialists which had not been published as of
1996.121

In this connection see earlier piece regarding Alison Taylor, whose own investigations
supported reports which had resulted in no disciplinary action. Her own reports to the
council resulted in no action. She then reported to the police and was suspended. The
council offered Taylor a termination agreement if she agreed to keep quiet; she refused and
was dismissed. More evidence of an official cover up would be hard to find. On taking the
council to an industrial tribunal the case was quickly closed in an out of court settlement
Waterhouse vindicated Taylor, saying that without her there would have been no enquiry.

Taylor then went to the local, Welsh and UK national media with her allegations including
further allegations about Bryn Estyn. She discovered that more than ten reports of child
abuse had been made to both councils before she raised concern. She compiled a dossier in
1991 of allegations from over 100 children, which she submitted to the police and copied to
the council and the Welsh Office. Only the police took action but had no co-operation from
the social services.

National concerns about care homes led to 10 public enquires between 1990 and 1996
which showed large scale institutional abuse of kids. In 1993 North Wales Police undertook
an enquiry taking 2,600 statements and 300 cases were sent to the CPS. Only seven people
were prosecuted and convicted. Six residential social workers were prosecuted for abuse,
three having worked at Bryn Estyn. Peter Howarth was jailed.

Following this, there were allegations that the police had covered up allegations. In 1994
Clwyd County Council commissioned a further enquiry (the Jillings Report). This met with
considerable opposition. The chief constable refused to co-operate with it and refused
access to data. The enquiry had to repeat 70 witness statements. 130 boxes of data given by
the council to the police were not made available to the enquiry. The council refused
permission to place a notice in the press seeking information. At this point the government
should have stepped in and prosecuted both the council and the police for perverting the
course of justice. Clearly the cover up was still going on.

The Jillings Report said that allegations into famous names were beyond its remit and
required yet another separate enquiry. It found that abuse, violence, beatings, indecent
assaults and rapes were common. It estimated that up to 200 children were abused as late
as the early 1990s. It found that 12 former residents had died from unnatural causes. It
also said that the panel members nearly quit due to ‘considerable constraints placed upon us’.
The final version of the report was not published due to fears about libel and legal advice
from the council’s insurers worried about compensation claims. The insurers, Municipal
Mutual, also suggested that the chair of the council’s social services committee be sacked if
he spoke out.

Thus the Jilling’s Report was suppressed and many guilty parties covered up. In 2012 Anne
Clwyd MP called for the report to be published saying, ‘it shows ... rape, bestiality, violent
assaults and torture’ on children. Jillings himself said, ‘What we found was horrific and on a
significant scale’. A redacted version was published in 2013.

When Messham appeared on Newsnight in 2012 he made further allegations of a wider
circle of abusers including businessmen, the police, and senior politicians and called for a

121 The Independent; Roger Dobson, ‘Child abuse scandal...” 22 April 1996. 1979 Internal investigation; 1986
report involving Ysgol Hengwrt to the Welsh Office and local council; 1988 Spastics Society report in
Hengwrt Hall to the council; the Jillings Report — Wikipedia, ‘North Wales Child Abuse Scandal’.
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further investigation. The new Children’s Commissioner for Wales supported this saying
that the Waterhouse Inquiry had been too narrow. Thus Julia Macur’s enquiry began. Tom
Watson MP called for a wider ranging enquiry and mentioned allegations of abuse by a
former cabinet minister. Thus Theresa May launched an investigation headed by Keith
Bristow (head of the National Crime Agency) to evaluate how the old claims were handled
and look a fresh allegations (Operation Pallial). In April 2013, 76 new complainants came
forward with allegations against 84 individuals; 16 had been named by more than one
complainant. In November 2013 police said that 235 people had given information with
over 100 alleged offenders.

Interim conclusion
This story is not just shocking but is a travesty; the country should be ashamed.

That it has had to take over a dozen enquiries, costing millions of pounds22 and still failing
to get to the whole truth is something to be deeply troubled by.

Aside: connection of North Wales and London

A group of men were believed by police to be abducting homeless girls from the streets of
London in the early 1990s and holding them in a converted garage with padded walls,
where they were abused and then killed. The man who disposed of the bodies was
identified by police in Wales but they were unable to identify those who had hired him or
to find evidence to charge him.:23

Kincora Boys Home, Belfast24
This was a home for orphans and abandoned boys, which closed in 1980.

The Irish Independent first broke the news that there was a sex scandal at this children’s
home. Allegations had arisen from 1977 involving prominent businessmen but the Director
of Public Persecutions did nothing. We see that this is a familiar story. Later in 1980 three
staff members were charged and then jailed.

Then allegations arose that the police had been informed about child abuse for many years
but did nothing. The press then linked the home with a number of establishment figures.
Private Eye magazine stated that senior Whitehall civil servants and British military
officers were involved. In response to Press allegations the Eastern Health and Social
Services Board decided not to employ homosexuals in any caring roles, and dismissed
some innocent people.

In 1982 a private enquiry was set up. This collapsed when the police failed to investigate
properly. In 1984 another enquiry was initiated which submitted a report in 1985. It made
certain recommendations including reversing the ban on Gay carers. It denied the
existence of a paedophile ring but said that the home suffered from the normal malaise
that affected all UK care homes. In 1982 a local councillor (Joshua Cardwell) committed
suicide after being questioned about Kincora.

In 2013 the police reopened the case amongst claims of a secret service cover up to protect
top level paedophiles. The enquiry is being led by retired judge Sir Anthony Hart, looking
into abuse in the wider area between 1922 and 1995. Former Army Press Officer (Colin

122 Waterhouse alone cost £12-13m.
123 Aangirfan; ‘Paedophile ring in Prime Minster’s home?’, 24 October 2012.

124 Wikipedia, ‘Kincora Boys Homes’. Mirror; Nick Dorman, Fiona O’Cleirigh, ‘Police re-open child sex abuse
investigation at Kincora boys home in Belfast’, 23 Mar 2013. Sunday People. Glasgow Herald; February 1982.
Database of UK and Eire paedophiles/child abusers; January 2014.
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Wallace) insisted that the authorities had known about boys being abused at Kincora for
many years. He was fired from his job and blacklisted. After resettling in England he was
framed for a mysterious manslaughter and jailed for six years. He claims that this was to
silence him.

In 1982 a prominent Ulster loyalist and paramilitary man, John McKeague, was
interviewed by detectives about Kincora and his involvement. Fearful of returning to
prison he said that he was prepared to name names in a large paedophile ring. Within days
he was shot dead by the INLA in his shop in East Belfast; it is said that this was organised
by military intelligence. Of the two gunmen, one was alleged to be a known Special Branch
agent and the other had military links.

Historic files from 1982 on Kincora released after the 30-year rule have been redacted,
with key papers removed and one file deleted. Claims that senior people in politics, the
civil service, secret services and the army continue to be aired but the establishment is still
hiding the facts. One of the men prosecuted, William McGrath, turned out to be on the
payroll of MI5 and M16 and had close links with Ian Paisley.

It also appears that murders took place. The body of ten-year old Brian McDermott was
found in a sack in the River Logan in September 1973, mutilated and burned, and the case
was linked to Kincora. No one was prosecuted. Information given to senior ministers
examining the case!25 was said to be conflicting with information given by the RUC but
connections between the murder and Kincora were discussed.!2¢

One person claimed to have visited Kincora is Edward Heath. Another named important
figure is the late Lord Mountbatten. McGrath also had contacts with Sir Knox
Cunningham, who himself has been allegedly linked to paedophile rings and was a friend
of Tony Blair. A mutual friend of Cunningham was Sir Anthony Blunt, who was also known
to McGrath.

A book by Martin Dillon (‘The Dirty War’, 1999) claims that McGrath was possibly
employed by MI5 since the 60s and was blackmailed by the secret services to provide
information on fellow loyalists in return for taking no action on his child abuse.

What is certain is that boys were certainly abused and possibly tortured and murdered.
These have not received justice. Due to repeated allegations over decades, it also seems
highly likely that top-level ruling establishment figures were involved and that these were
covered up in several investigations. It is doubtful that any enquiry will get to the bottom
of this if the RUC and the military intelligence services are involved, as is alleged.

Greystone Heath, Warrington

This was an approved school that had a number of paedophile staff who raped many
children. From there the abusers fanned out: Keith Laverack went to Cambridgeshire; Alan
Langshaw became Principal of St Vincent’s Catholic boy’s home in Formby; Dennis Grain
and Roy Shuttleworth were promoted to homes in Warrington; Steve Norris went to North
Wales. They continued their abuse at their new homes and connected with other
paedophiles.127

125 A private meeting in February 1982 attended by various senior people including Attorney General
Michael Havers, Secretary of State Jim Prior and Lord Chancellor Quintin Hogg.

126 BBC News Northern Ireland; ‘NI state papers: Kincora link to Brian McDermott murder discussed’, 27
December 2013.

127 The Guardian; Nick Davies, ‘The sheer scale of child sexual abuse in Britain’, April 1998.
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Islington Children’s homes

Background

Margaret Hodge MP (nee Oppenheimer) is a multimillionaire whose family allegedly made
£300 million during WWII collaborating with Nazis. She has been constantly linked to
Care Home child sex abuse allegations and the subsequent cover ip when she was Head of
Islington Council. Horrifyingly, Blair made her Minister For Children in 2003. She is very
close to Jack Straw and Harriet Harman [see those entries].

Patricia Hewitt is an ex-MP [see PIE] who ran Islington Care Homes and was once
Secretary of State for Health (2005-2007). She was also leader of the NCCL in the 70s. She
retired from frontline politics in 2007 and was suspended from the Labour Party in 2010
after the ‘Cash for questions’ scandal. She has argued that fathers are not a good influence
on children and was a major force behind the sex education of young children adopted by
Labour councils.

Islington Council ran 12 care homes for children who were in the care of the state and was
run by politically correct Labour party members. At the start of the 70s there were several
militant groups in London promoting sexual deviancies. These included: the Gay
Liberation Front (GLF), PIE (see PIE) and Paedophile Action for Liberation (PAL), which
were all funded by the government and shared an address.128

The GLF demanded that the care homes were handed over to its members to run and any
political resistance was met with charges of homophobia. The NCCL [see PIE] led by
Hewitt, lobbied the government for them and threatened legal action otherwise. By 1972
the GLF were in complete control of Islington Care Homes.

The care homes soon became the centre of an international child rape / pornography /
torture / murder ring, with connections to Jersey and elsewhere. Almost all children in
those homes were sexually abused between 1972 and 1997. Hundreds of kids went missing
after being taken on trips abroad. Some went to Haut de la Garenne others to Casa Pia
orphanages in Portugal. Non-compliant children were allegedly raped and murdered.
Compliant kids were trafficked to Portugal for European politician paedophiles. Despite
the hundreds of kids who travelled away, none are recorded as coming back.129

Jimmy Savile’s nephew, Guy Marsden, attended parties in London houses in the 70s run
by BBC executives which were attended by politicians, judges, BBC executives, and
celebrities where children as young as 9, mostly from Islington Care Homes, were raped
and tortured. [See Elm Guest House.]30

The GLF weeded out non-compliant staff and fired them as homophobic, such as social
workers Liz Davies and David Cofie. Victims repeatedly tried to get the police to intervene
to no avail. Scotland Yard refused to investigate. Nobody joined the dots between Islington
and Jersey. Why?

Eventually the Evening Standard covered the story with determined reporters and the can
of worms began to open.

The investigation
Investigations into terrible crimes of sex abuse and murder in Islington care homes were
plagued by children’s files mysteriously disappearing, claimed award winning reporter

128 UK Column; ‘Child abuse — the deafening silence of a cover up’, comments, 8 October 2012.
129 Tbid.
130 Thid.
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Eileen Fairweather.13: However, she managed to prove that every home included staff who
were paedophiles, child pornographers or pimps. The police later confirmed that several
Islington workers were ‘networkers’, major operators in the supply of children for abuse
and pornography.

Typically enough vehement denials of abuse emerged. Margaret Hodge, then council
leader, denounced Fairweather and others as ‘right-wing gutter journalists who bribed
children to lie, claiming that the kids were ‘mentally unstable and extremely disturbed .
Eventually Fairweather’s findings were verified by government ordered enquiries and
followed by two British press awards. Yet Fairweather said that they had only scraped the
surface of corruption. At this time Jack Straw was deputy to Hodge.

Only one serious conviction was obtained against Roy Caterer, who was sentenced to seven
and a half years in jail. The police then closed the case. He is said to have received a
£300,000 pay off for taking the fall. The same thing happened in Jersey.

A public outcry forced Margaret Hodge to resign as council leader. In 2003 Blair made her
Minister for Children [you couldn’t make this up!].

Nicholas John Rabet

Nicholas John Rabet was deputy superintendent of Islington council’s home at 114
Grosvenor Avenue. He, and a colleague who was barred from social work, took children on
unauthorised trips to Jersey. He became a key supplier of children from Islington’s care
homes to paedophile rings. He also inherited a fortune from a woman who suddenly died
after changing her will. Despite allegations, nothing was done.

Later, Rabet opened a children’s activity centre in the manor house he inherited near
Heathfield, East Sussex. Children from Islington care came to stay. Walter Clack was also a
volunteer there. When police raided this place Rabet had been given prior warning and had
removed all pornography. However, they found photos of a 10-year old boy from Islington.
On questioning him he confirmed months of abuse, but Islington Council hampered
further investigations.

Many professionals had expressed grave fears about Rabet but Islington council falsely
told Sussex police that it had no files on him or his victim! Staff had been ordered to locate
complaints and deliver them to Lyn Cusack, Asst. Director of social services. Only after
Fairweather explained their existence did police manage to get these files. A later enquiry
(the White Enquiry) found that the Asst. Director destroyed many files, but avoided calling
it a conspiracy. Islington also refused to identify other children or interview those in care.
In the end the police decided not to prosecute. The ten-year old victim was not surprised
and said, ‘You have no idea how big this is’.

One Turkish boy was regularly taken from Islington to spend weekends at Rabet’s house
and then just disappeared; but no one misses kids in care.

Rabet was eventually caught by police in Thailand, where he had fled after the White
Enquiry in Spring 2006 charged with abusing 30 boys as young as 6. The police believe he
had abused as many as 300. He died of an overdose in May 2006.

131 Mail Online; “I have known about Jersey paedophiles for 15 years”, says award-winning journalist’,
Eileen Fairweather, 2 March 2008.
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Jack Straw

Straw is implicated in many serious allegations on the web while he was Home Secretary.
However, my concern here is with his action in 2009 when he made it illegal for any child
to complain about abuse whilst in the care system.32 When confronted by a London taxi
driver about this, Straw stated (whilst being secretly recorded) that he did no such thing.
This blatant lie was exposed on a film by PieNMash Films.

One has to ask the question, why would a Home Secretary (and a socialist at that) stop
children victims reporting crimes against them?

Interestingly, it was Straw that placed all the Dunblane Massacre papers on Thomas
Hamilton under a 100-year secrecy law. This is allegedly to cover up the involvement of
fellow Freemasons and senior Labour Party figures who were complicit in the crime. A
100-year D-Notice is extraordinary.

It is also alleged that it was Straw that covered up the Hilsborough tragedy and the
BBC/Jersey/Islington abuse scandals.!33

Devon County Council

Thousands of allegations of child abuse and police cover-ups have been recorded in Devon.
From the sheer numbers of support groups established to help victims, something
seriously wrong has been going on. Freedom of Information requests to Devon and
Cornwall Constabulary into allegations of abuse by police officers failed to get results and
the information was said to be destroyed.134

Example: Malcolm Lidbury

One case involved that of Malcolm Lidbury who has repeatedly reported having been
abused by a teacher along with his clergy and police friends in 1987-88 aged 6 upwards. In
return the police bullied, threatened and intimidated him to try to shut him up. The Devon
& Cornwall Professional Standards Unit showed itself to be corrupt and also covered it
up.13s5

Lidbury has fully reported the details of his allegations to the police, with witness
statements, physical evidence and dates. Year after year he tried to get action from the
police and year after year they did nothing, except perjure themselves. On one occasion he
gave a six-hour statement recorded on video to the police; but they buried it. They later
refused a freedom of information request to access the video.

Lidbury claims to be able to name and identify the police officers that obstructed him.
Desperate and becoming suicidal he contacted Essex police. Essex police responded and
stated that they had criminal information on one of the men accused. Essex police have
now opened an investigation. Lidbury accuses the Devon & Cornwall police from the top
down, of disposing of evidence and corruption. Lidbury is now incapacitated as a result of
his ordeals and this is confirmed by a Consultant Clinical Forensic Psychiatrist.

Other allegations by other victims demonstrate that there is a serious problem with Devon
and Cornwall Constabulary that no one is dealing with.

132 The Times & The Independent; 15 February 2009.

133 UK Column: ‘Child abuse — The deafening silence of a cover up’, comments, 8 October 2012.

134 Whatdotheyknow.com; Sexual abuse involving a police officer, Paul Fay (not the writer of this paper).
135 Tbid.



40

The scope of the scandal

The Guardian reported that the child abuse cases might rival those of North Wales.13¢ The
original enquiry (Operation Lentisk, January 1988) into a Devon children’s home quickly
expanded into three more institutions. At least 80 children were allegedly abused in these.
A police spokeswoman then said that 650 children were allegedly abused in care homes
over 16 years. However, there were reports that 4,000 children might have been abused
between the mid-50s and the mid-8os.

The Guardian wrote that three people were awaiting trial, 75 people were pursuing a civil
action against Devon County Council, and other bodies, for negligence.

In the late 1990s the police conducted its biggest ever child abuse investigation. More than
300 people made allegations against 190 people from 41 residential care homes. Four
former Forde Park staff were convicted.

North Devon

One police officer, Danny Bryant, was convicted of child sex abuse.137 Victim Kelvin Whittle
was abused by Bryant when he was 24. He waived his right to anonymity to back fellow
victim Russel Dawson’s campaign into a public enquiry as to how the case was dealt with
by Devon and Cornwall Police.138 Both victims claim that the police covered-up
paedophilia amongst serving police officers. It was only though the Savile scandal being
publicised that both victims found the courage to speak out. Russel originally reported the
crime in 1988. He went back to the police in 2011 but the police dismissed the allegation. It
was only after the Savile scandal that pressure was put on the police to pursue it. MP Neil
Parish is helping to initiate a public enquiry into the extent of Bryant’s abuse.

Operation Mansfield
Devon & Cornwall Police launched this operation into a paedophile ring in Devon in
February 2011 after dozens of victims came forward.

William Goad - Plymouth

Police admitted that members of a paedophile ring in Devon linked to Britain’s most
prolific child abuser, William Goad, may still be at large.!39 This is nine years after Goad
was jailed for life in 2004. In usual form, one person took the fall while many other people
in the network escaped. After Goad’s death many more victims came forward and police
sources stated that Goad’s crimes may dwarf Savile’s.

A new enquiry was launched after complaints that police allegations were not fully
investigated in enquiries undertook in 1987, 1995 and 2005 (Operation Banner4°). A
confidential report (seen by the Plymouth Herald) says that ‘prominent men in society may
have links to the abuse ring and that abused boys were threatened to keep quiet. A former
detective, DC Shirley Thompson,4! stated that officers were told to ‘put a lid’ on the original
investigation when she raised fears that other paedophiles were at large. Police have

136 The Guardian; Sarah Hall, ‘Devon abuse inquiry may rival North Wales scandal’, 28 April 2000.

137 One News Page, Victims of North Devon sex abuse policeman Danny Bryant speak about ordeal’, 14
November 2013.

138 North Devon Journal; ‘Victims of North Devon sex abuse policeman Danny Bryant speak about ordeal’, 17
November 2013.

139 The Plymouth Herald; ‘Paedophile ring linked to Britain’s worst abuser “still at large™, 13 September
2013.

140 This followed Thompson’s complaints on Panorama, but was ineffective. However, it did lead to the
conviction of Peter Norsworthy in 2006, jailed for 15 years.

141 Thompson helped to secure Goad’s conviction in 2004 and left the police in 2012.



41

formally accepted that many victims were never fully interviewed and could hold key
information on suspects associated with Goad.

The victim who campaigned for years for a new enquiry is Paul Wyatt. He was later joined
by a local charity, an MP and Shirley Thompson. Thompson also contacted BBC’s
Panorama to shame the police into action; this was broadcast in February 2005. As well as
claims that others in the ring were not pursued, Thompson raised the point that Goad was
known to be paedophile as far back as 1972, 30 years before he was jailed. If the police had
acted correctly, hundreds of abused children could have been spared. She also criticised
the police for ignoring hundreds of victims and not investigating their complaints as well
as not cross-referencing victims’ statements.

Thompson also explained that senior police officers had warned her to watch her back and
that she would hit brick walls. She also claimed that Goad was protected for many years
and that Operation Emotion (the original investigation into Goad in 1994) was rendered
useless and enabled Goad to escape to Thailand.

Confidential records seen by the press also show that the local police were fully aware of
allegations that Goad was working with a network, including nationally prominent men, in
1996. This alone demonstrates corruption. In addition police log books revealing why
decisions were taken has gone missing.

In a video interview Goad named six other paedophiles but only one named Eddie Pratt
was investigated. He took his own life the next month, leaving a note saying, ‘Ha ha’.

Timeline of Goad investigations

1944 Goad born.

1957-51 Goad attends Forde Park Approved School where he was abused.

1964 Goad abuses a boy who worked for him selling rosettes at Plymouth Argylle.

1971 Convicted of indecency with a child and assault on a male. Subject of a probation order for three years.

1980 Convicted of two counts of indecent assault, two counts of procuring an act of gross indecency and one count of
indecency with children.

1987 Abused Paul Wyatt aged 13-16.

1987 Convicted of three counts of indecent assault on Wyatt. Sentenced to six months imprisonment suspended for
two years.

1995 Goad arrested for further information on assaults on Wyatt. CPS drop charges. Wyatt's life threatened.

1996 Confidential meeting regarding allegations against Goad and ‘prominent men in society’ in a network.

1996-7 Allegations against Goad by two victims.

1997 Goad attempts to run Wyatt down in a car.

1998 Operation Emotion 2 launched.

1998 Goad flees to Thailand

2003 Goad arrested in a train in UK on a false passport. 10 more victims come forward.

2004 Goad jailed for life

2005 BBC Panorama claims there are more abusers, including Eddie Pratt.

2005 Operation Faber launched to investigate Pratt, Peter Norsworthy and three others.

2005 Wyatt gives video evidence of abuse by seven men including Pratt. Wyatt suffers a number of attempts on his life.

2005 Pratt commits suicide in France.

2006 Norsworthy jailed for 15 years for nine rapes and three assaults.

2012 Goad dies in prison.

Interim conclusion

This survey only scratches the surface; I would need weeks of research to fully document
what went on in Devon alone. However, what is clear is: A) there are enormous numbers of
child abuse victims in Devon. B) Assaults on these kids has not been comprehensively
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documented or investigated. C) Individual enquiries by the police have been allegedly
severely hampered by corruption and cover-up. D) Those convicted are only the tip of the
iceberg. E) This cover-up appears to be motivated by protecting both offenders in the
police force and prominent public figures.

Haut de la Garenne

Jersey has been described as an ‘abuse-friendly enclave’. Paedophilia often follows money
and power, and Jersey, as a tax haven, has plenty of both. Victims of child abuse have
reported incidents at many care homes and institutions in Jersey, which still haven’t been
properly investigated. Even the Haut de la Garenne enquiry was shut down and covered up
when the original findings were becoming too serious.

A film by Bill Maloney*42 showed a private house near Haut de la Garenne where the front
garden prominently displayed two statues of infant children. One was fellating a large
phallus. These statues were altered on a daily basis. For instance the male fellating boy was
dressed in pigtails on one occasion. Firstly, this is surely illegal, constituting an illegal
image. Secondly, it throws suspicion on the owner being near to a paedophile crime ring.
But thirdly, there has been no local complaint or prosecution, despite being openly visible
to every passer by. Furthermore, in a local beauty spot in Jersey there is a statue of Satan,
literally bold as brass erected by the council. There is something seriously wrong in Jersey.

A 3-year long, £7.5 million police enquiry into historical child abuse was undertaken in
Jersey after allegations from former residents of Haut de la Garenne. From September
2007 police took 1,776 statements from 192 victims identifying 151 alleged abusers but only
seven low-level people were successfully prosecuted.

Solicitor Allan Collins represents 42 abused Jersey children and says that many of them
identified Savile in investigations.43 Nearly two hundred victims have told terrible stories
of abuse, torture and murder carried on at this site. Other witnesses have identified senior
public figures involved in a paedophile ring that ran from there. Regular visitors at Haut de
la Garenne included Jimmy Savile and Edward Heath.

One of the victims of paedophile Wilfrid Brambell (Steptoe and Son) was from Haut de la
Garenne whom he abused in a room at the Jersey Opera House in the 70s.

The police investigation
‘We know from court cases and statements made to my team that children in Jersey care homes
were “loaned out” to members of the yachting fraternity and other prominent citizens on the
pretence of recreational trips but during which they were savagely abused and often raped. 144

The initial States of Jersey Police enquiry was led by a conscientious competent officer, Len
Harper. Unfortunately he was too good at his job and ruffled many feathers. Harper faced
sustained obstruction from fellow policemen as well as threats from the Jersey government
and prominent citizens. He had to bring in colleagues from the UK to assist in the
investigation. Jack Straw was Home Secretary at the time. Eventually both Harper, and his
ally Chief Officer Graham Power, were ridiculed and criticised in a cover up. It is alleged
that Margaret Hodge was also involved in the cover up because she was Islington Council
leader from 1982-1992 when children were being trafficked to Jersey. She was in the
cabinet at this time with Straw.

142 Sun, Sea and Satan; Pienmash films.
143 215t Century Wire ‘Sir Jim’ll Fix it Alright’ 15 October 2012.
144 Det. Lenny Harper; Aangirfan; ‘Savile; murdered kids; bankers; mind control’, 20 October 2012.
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Barrister Michael Shrimpton states that Harper was up against a cabinet sponsored
paedophile ring and would never succeed in prosecuting the true offenders.!45 Shrimpton
also said that Harper’s life was at risk as the investigation was getting close to the London
cabinet and GO2,14¢ as well as the Jersey elite. Harper retired after death threats in 2008.

So it occurred that Harper was kicked off the case and replaced by David Warcup47 who
called Harper ‘a problem’.148 Then followed a complete whitewash with attempts to
discredit Harper. In fact the Jersey government issued an arrest warrant for Harper, after
he left the island, for falsifying evidence.

In April 2008 Harper had found forensic evidence that corroborated the reports given by
abuse victims. Stories had emerged that from the 1960s terrible sexual and physical abuse,
including torture and murder, had occurred in the care home. Search teams excavated
underground chambers where shackles and a blood-spattered concrete bath were found.
Victims identified these as ‘punishment rooms’ where children were kept in solitary
confinement, drugged, flogged and raped. The 160 victim’s testimony corroborated the
findings.

Harper found numerous milk teeth and bones that were identified by more than one
forensic lab as belonging to children. Some bones showed evidence of being cut while
others were burned, however there was conflict regarding their age. Throughout his
investigation Harper was plagued with criticism from politicians ‘at every opportunity’;
however, the scope of his enquiries were approved by his own staff and ACPO.

Then Harper retired and Power was suspended; after investigation by outside forces no
misconduct was found in either officer. Warcup was flown in from the UK and within
weeks claimed that Harper was discredited, the bones were centuries old and mostly not of
children, or even human, and that there was no forensic evidence of abuse. Harper was
made to look foolish when Warcup said that a ‘skull’ fragment was found to be a coconut
and shackles were bits of metal.

The forensic investigation was shut down and the home closed. The abuse enquiry
continued but lost public interest. A more complete and obvious whitewash could hardly
be imagined. At one point it was suggested that some of the finds were really props left
over from recordings of the Bergerac TV series. Really!

Harper later defended himself in a Belfast Telegraph article.149 He claimed that he had
been, either deliberately or otherwise, misrepresented. Warcup’s press conference said
nothing new. Harper had ruled out the ‘skull’ fragment months before due to its ages° and
never claimed to have credible evidence of murder but had treated the scene as a potential
homicide. The rusty metal was claimed to be shackles by the builders who found them in
2003. Others identified the metal as shackles, rusty or not. Closing down the investigation
failed to come to any conclusions one way or the other about homicide.

145 Michael Shrimpton interviewed on Bristol Community Radio; 11 January 2013.

146 A government bureau connected to the secret services, which is claimed to be infiltrated by Germans.
147 Deputy Chief Constable of Northumbria Police, who took over as Deputy Chief Officer.

148 Sun, Sea and Satan; Pienmash films.com

149 Belfast Telegraph; ‘Jersey Probe: Lenny Harper hits back’, Deborah Mcaleese, 13 November 2008.

150 In fact the suggestion that it was wood or coconut was only one of many professional suggestions. It also
had collagen in it, which is inexplicable if it was coconut as this is only found in mammals.
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Cellars that were denied to exist by Warcup can be seen in YouTube videos and this is
where children were locked away when they complained about abuse.’5* Harper never
called them ‘dungeons’, but affirmed that they are not voids as claimed by Warcup; they
were cellars which previously formed the ground floor. The victims called them cellars,
which is what they are. Warcup seemed to do everything possible, using lies and
misrepresentation, to denounce Harper’s investigation.

Harper complained that senior police officers thwarted the investigations of junior officers.
Furthermore, even his critics admit that at least three human bone fragments and
children’s teeth from between 10 and 65 children of all ages were found in the digs. They
are not from a cemetery and one anthropologist claimed they were about 20 years old.
There was enough evidence to continue the investigation.

MP John Henning stated that he had no doubt that there had been efforts to cover up. He
and Senator Stuart Syvret sought a judicial review of the UK Justice Secretary Jack Straw’s
decision not to intervene.

An American investigative journalist (Leah McGrath Goodman) that began researching the
truth in 2011 was prevented from access to the UK Jersey for two years. Even when MP
John Henning intervened on her behalf her access was prevented for a year (allowing for
removal of any evidence).

The sister residence, St Saviour’s Psychiatric Hospital, which was a home for mentally sick
people, is claimed to be part of the ring of abuse but this was closed down and made into a
listed building in September 2008. The regulations specifically state that no metal or
mineral detecting can take place on the site. Convenient!

Only a few low-level individuals have been convicted of any crime.’52 When the
investigation began, Jimmy Savile claimed to have never been to Haut de la Garenne until
a photograph was published showing him at the site with a group of children. No senior
public figure has been prosecuted.

There is no doubt that Haut de la Garenne was the centre of a UK-wide paedophile ring
that involved high level public figures still anxious to keep these deeds quiet. Some of these
carried out abuse on boats (like Heath) where murders are alleged to have occurred; other
children were no doubt trafficked elsewhere, while many were abused on site (this much
has been proved). The evidence of bones and teeth on site were suggestive but inconclusive
without further processing and excavation, which was terminated by the new police
enquiry team.

One man arrested by Harper was a senior figure in Jersey and was named by a victim, who
had also been abused by Savile. This man is still employed by the state in a senior position.
Harper gave the information to the authorities that he had raped two children at the home,
solid allegations that would have succeeded in the UK he said. Yet Jersey’s Attorney
General dropped the case. This man’s name aroused more fear in the victims than any

151 The Telegraph; ‘Jimmy Savile: ‘He was the tip of the iceberg’, Eileen Fairweather, 19 October 2012.

152 Michael Aubin sentenced to two years probation for indecent assault in 2009. Gordon Claude Wateridge
(78) was guilty of eight counts of indecent assault and given two years in prison. Claude Donnelly was
imprisoned for various sex offences unrelated to Haut de la Garenne as well as being charged with offences in
connection with it.
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other. He was bold enough to say that he was protected and that if he went down he would
take the Jersey government with him. This was what Savile had said. It seems to work.153

Whistle-blower

It was not just victims that testified to the crimes but a policeman called Detective
Constable Peter Cook gave information to a reporter who had previously exposed the
terrible abuse at Islington.154

Cook had uncovered a vicious sex ring with victims both in Britain and the Channel
Islands. He stated that his superiors had barred him from alerting them officially and he
wanted a reporter to get the information to the London police paedophile team. Repeatedly
enquiries by junior officers had been closed down.

Many in this ring were powerful and wealthy. The reporter he spoke to knew of these same
men from her investigations from separate sources. They included an aristocrat, clerics,
senior police officers and a social services chief. The reporter took the information to the
National Criminal-Intelligence Squad 12 years previously and nothing happened, until the
Jersey enquiry began.

Award winning journalist Eileen Fairweather explains that the murder of children in care
has characterised other scandalss5 but Haut de la Garenne is directly linked to the abuse
uncovered at Islington and involves the elite. Some of the staff at Islington were from the
Channel Islands or regularly took children there on unofficial visits. The sailing trips for
abuse of children, then delivering them to other abusers, characterised both Islington and
Jersey paedophilia.

Likewise the smearing of investigators and suppression of damaging reports occurred at
both places. Jersey social worker Simon Bellwood was sacked in 2007 for speaking out and
health minister Stuart Syvret was fired in 2007 for publicising the suppressed Sharp
Report into abuse allegations. Syvret then sought prosecution for politicians and police
involved in the cover up.

Individuals involved in the abuse included Neil Hocquart, who abused children in Britain
and Guernsey and supplied child pornography to a huge sex ring. A raid on his home in
1991 found hundreds of pornographic photos and videos of children; another man (Walter
Clack) was also arrested. The victims could never be identified because Hocquart
committed suicide after his arrest to avoid questioning. Where were these children from?

One was identified as a boy from Islington care, there were naked photos of this 10-year
old boy.

DC Cook explained that a senior police officer broke protocol and informed Clack that his
friend was dead. Clack then blamed Hocquart for everything and escaped with a fine and
inherited a third of Hocquart’s estate.

Apparently a number of suspects had died of heart attacks after leaving wills to others, like
Hocquart, who was suspected in their possible murder. No investigation occurred.

153 The Telegraph; ‘Jimmy Savile: ‘He was the tip of the iceberg’, Eileen Fairweather, 19 October 2012.

154 Mail Online; “I have known about Jersey paedophiles for 15 years”, says award-winning journalist’,
Eileen Fairweather, 2 March 2008.

155 14-year old Jason Swift, who had lived in Islington council’s Conewood Street home was killed in 1985 by

a paedophile gang. Mail Online; ““I have known about Jersey paedophiles for 15 years”, says award-winning
journalist’, Eileen Fairweather, 2 March 2008.
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Satan worshipper Edward Paisnel (‘the Beast of Jersey’) got a 30-year sentence in 1971 for
raping boys and girls. He played Father Christmas as Haut de la Garenne in the 60s.

Nicholas Rabet had connections with Jersey and two other Jersey born social workers
worked in Islington with young offenders. One arranged sailing trips to Guernsey, the
other sent kids to Rabet’s centre.

In 1995 Fairweather re-investigated Rabet and met DC Cook who had gone through
Hocquart’s papers and investigated other members of the paedophile ring. He found
paedophile after paedophile. A man who married a woman just to abuse her two boys. The
vicar who married them and knew about this but did not care as he was also a paedophile.
Cook found abused victims in Guernsey whom Hocquart had delivered to a local high-
ranking man to rape. He located a man in Wales who copied and distributed child
pornography. No action was taken on any account. Senior police officers told Cook to drop
his investigation and not to send his information anywhere. This was not the first time that
Fairweather had discovered that police officers were forced to drop investigations into
child abuse regarding a Channel Islands paedophile.

Fairweather took the information to NCIS on 4 January 1996 and copied it to Scotland
Yard. Cook is now retired and free to go on public record. Michael Hames, the former head
of Scotland Yard’s Obscene Publications Squad told Fairweather that he never doubted
that paedophiles were killing children in care.

Other information

¢ Birmingham City Council presented Jersey police with a list of children who were sent
to Haut de la Garenne but went missing.

e Allegations have been made that pictures of babies being raped were taken in Haut de
la Garenne and circulated by an international child porn ring.156

® Experts suspect that Haut de la Garenne was the place where 9,000 child abuse photos
were taken that were discovered in a raid in Holland in the 1990s (the ‘Zandvoort
stash’).157

® The child abuse enquiry has produced over 40 suspects.

® The local authorities failed to charge a couple accused of beating their foster children
with cricket bats.

® Disgraced headmaster Colin Tilbrook was in charge in the 1960s who died in 1988. His
foster daughter, Tina Blee aged 38, told how she was raped by him every week as a
child. She added that he was more than capable of murder.

® A builder has given evidence that he was asked to dig two lime pits in the grounds.
Lime pits are used to destroy bodies.

® In 2012, forensic examinations were made in a WWII bunker nearby which victims say
was used for abusing children. No evidence is available.

® According to lawyer Alan Collins, Jimmy Savile seriously sexually assaulted a 10-year
old boy in Haut de la Garenne.!58 Savile was named several times by victims but Jersey
police say that they had only received one complaint linking Savile to abuse there. They
deny that there is enough evidence to proceed.

156 Aangirfan; Blogspot, ‘Police cover-up of child murders’, 13 October 2012.
157 Aangirfan; Blogspot, ‘Police cover-up of child murders’, 13 October 2012.
158 BBC News Jersey; 12 October 2012.
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Oxford and Cherwell Valley College

The UK Column has published a series of articles exposing shocking physical and sexual
abuse occurring here for many years. Despite being threatened by the college, they
continued to expose multiple serious allegations.!59

Eton College

Eton was originally established as a school for poor children by King Henry VI. It provided
free education for seventy poor boys. In time it gradually became the poshest independent
boarding school (‘public school’) to send rich kids to.

Eton has a reputation for providing the ruling classes with fresh leaders. At this point in
time Cameron’s government has been repeatedly condemned for the high percentage of
Old Etonians in positions of power. In fact all Cameron’s closest aides are old schoolmates.
Even a Secretary of State has criticised this situation.160

It is common knowledge that children are sexually abused at this school. Many famous
people have admitted that they were abused there. However, only the occasional sacrificial
lamb reaches a court.161

The BBC is also full of managers who came from Eton. Thus the rife child abuse at the
BBC, that has been exposed by many witnesses,2 is merely the product of what is
considered normal behaviour at this school. The lifestyle that was perpetrated at Eton is
continued in the establishment where school leavers end up.

At one point the police planned a raid on Eton school but this was halted by ‘powerful
interests’.163

A victim’s story involving elite figures

Andrew Ash

Ash claims that he was taken from a government care home to drug-fuelled parties in
Westminster where boys and girls as young as 13 were sexually abused. Ash has given the
name of a female MP that abused him, when aged 13 in Parliament, to Scotland Yard. The
Security Services have also become involved due to the nature of the allegations.

He claims that the paedophile ring involved David Smith, Savile’s former chauffeur, who
killed himself before standing trial for sex offences.

The parties had plenty of cocaine and speed as well as champagne. The female that abused
him was drunk at the time and was goaded on by people around her.

The police have seized videos and photographs of an alleged sex party that may be
connected to Ash’s story. Ash also claims to have footage showing a senior male MP
involved. He has now spoken out to the Press because no action was taken after being

159 UK Column: ‘child abuse — the deafening silence of a cover up’, 8 October 2012.

160 Michael Gove, Sec, of State for Education. BBC News website, 15.3.14. He went on to say, ‘T don’t know
where you can find some such similar situation in a developed economy’, speaking to the Financial Times.

161 Such as Classics teacher Ian McAusian in 2004 or rowing coach David Rachel.

162 ych as Ben Fellows; UK Column, op. cit.

163 Ben Fellows; Before Its News, ‘Ken Clarke MP is above the law and cannot be questioned says
Metropolitan Police Paedophile Unit’, 10 May 2013. The Guardian; ‘The sheer scale of child abuse in Britain’,
Nick Davies, April 1998.



48

interviewed for 70 hours by the Metropolitan Police. Interviews were conducted in
Bridlington and London with police officers and national security members present. Dutch
intelligence officers also attended one interview because Ash told about being trafficked to
Amsterdam a number of times to be abused by paedophiles that included convicted child
killer Sidney Cooke. Ash also identified a big-name celebrity.

Ash cannot understand why no action has been taken when video footage of abuse is in the
possession of the police.164

Just one example of the suffering inflicted on children

I could not bear to offer any more than this, but it is a typical account that is similar to
many. There are stories around the world that are very similar, and many that are worse
(‘snuff films’).

The Guardian revealed an international police hunt for two unidentified men that made
the ‘Bjorn Tape’. This showed their relentless sexual assault on a Dutch teenager who was
hooded in front of the camera. Eventually, limp, he was strapped into a chair and attacked.

Dutch police traced Bjorn’s accent to an area in Holland where they combed through files
of child abuse and found him. He had contacted the authorities a year earlier to complain
that a Dutch man had been drugging and raping him since he was three-years old; latterly
with an Englishman. The Dutch man was tried but without evidence he was acquitted, He
then sued Bjorn for making a malicious complaint. Bjorn then collapsed into mental illness
and was taken to an orphanage.

The tape later proved that Bjorn was telling the truth but also confirmed the identity of the
Englishman as John Peters, a former soldier, who was charged with sexually assaulting a
14-year old boy in Sutton Coldfield. He was later convicted in Denmark of a similar
offence. However, Peters crossed the border and escaped justice. He is now believed to be
in Asia where poor children are a magnet for paedophiles.

Poor Bjorn’s entire life has been a traumatic tragedy that could not be more completely
ruined. This is what paedophilia is about.

The Guardian, which conducted the biggest investigation into child abuse of any
newspaper, estimated that there were over a million paedophiles in the UK in 1998, adding
that many academic reports suggest a much higher figure.165

Child abuse and satanic rituals

It is easy to find a number of reports that completely debunk satanic ritual abuse (SRA) of
adults and children.:¢¢ Indeed, I have no doubt that there have been claims about child
sacrifice and such like that are fabricated for some purpose. Sadly I have to admit that
certain gullible Christian groups have been responsible for poor judgment and foolish

164 Express; James Fielding, ‘Female MP abused boy in care’, 12 January 2014.
165 The Guardian; The Guardian; Nick Davies, ‘The sheer scale of child abuse in Britain’, April 1998.

166 Such as Fortean Times; Gareth J Medway, ‘Satan in suburbia’, November 2001. Or Rosie Waterhouse’s
pieces in Private Eye.
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reporting of things later proved to be false. Some of the testimony paperbacks by
‘converted’ witches did not help when statements were later proved to be false.

There also seem to be genuine cases where disturbed children have made up false claims
about parental abuse, which were later dismissed and that professionals were fooled. But
despite all these things, it is unwise to dismiss all the claims on the basis of a few false
ones. What is necessary is an unbiased investigation into all the claims of SRA. What is
needed is the truth followed by justice. Just as there are cases where social workers
wrongly removed children from parents, there are proved cases where social workers failed
to remove victims from abusers.167

Why SRA is hidden from view
Each case of SRA involves a conspiracy (there is rarely only one perpetrator); thus, by its
very nature, it becomes hard to prove victim’s stories.

® The activities of satanic abusers are secret and not easy to discover. They go to great
lengths to keep their activities hidden. Remember that ‘occult’ means ‘hidden’.

® (Cultists often plant disinformation into the minds of young abused children, such as
wrong dates or wrong names, along with real experiences. This produces questionable
testimony.

® When threatened with discovery, cultists destroy all the evidence; including murdering
victims.

® The cultists include many people in positions of power, both locally and nationally.
These are able to dismantle investigations, get good investigators sacked, or get
enquiries shelved or whitewashed.

Satanic child abuse not a myth as claimed

In 1994 a Conservative government report concluded that satanic abuse was a ‘myth’, in
the wake of testimonies from children in Nottingham, Rochdale and Orkney. However,
child protection agencies grew increasingly concerned that it was, actually, rife. In 2000 a
specially commissioned government report stated that satanic abuse does take place in
Britain.168

These experts affirm that child victims have actually suffered abuse in satanic rituals and
that they are not suffering from ‘false memory syndrome’. Dr John Hale (director of the
Portman Clinic) and psychotherapist Valerie Sinason studied the experiences of 50
children. This followed a police investigation into the sexual abuse of up to 4,000 children
in care homes in Devon.

Ms Sinason went so far as to say that ‘some children are born for the purpose of abuse and are
not registered on birth certificates’.1%9 She added that many of the 126 ritual survivors she has
treated were tortured.

The report was welcomed by Dr Joan Coleman, a Surrey psychiatrist who has spent 14
years treating victims. She said, ‘A /ot of children are born into satanic families who indulge in
this ritual abuse’ 170

167 Such as Devon County Council social services dept. which failed to remove two children from known but
later convicted paedophile. BBC News, Devon, Simon Hall, ‘Devon County Council criticised on girl’s sex
abuse’, 16 April 2014. A famous example is Victoria Climbie.

168 The Independent; Sophie Goodchild, ‘Satanic abuse not myth, say experts’, 30 April 2000.
169 Thid.
170 Tbid.
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Lee Moore, a barrister who founded the Association of Child Abuse Lawyers, (himself a
child abuse victim) explained that it was hard to persuade victims to give evidence,
especially after the 1994 report. This is why convictions, and thus confirmed evidence, are
difficult.

Evidence for ritual abuse
Despite the massive efforts of the establishment to cover up ritual child abuse (such as the
Tory 1994 report), the facts keep returning to haunt abusers. These include:

® The testimony of child victims.

The physical evidence on the bodies of children.

The testimony of adult victims who were ritually abused as a child.

The repeated discovery of mutilated bodies that show signs of satanic abuse.

The discovery of mass graves in the grounds of children’s establishments where ritual
abuse was claimed to occur.

The discovery of partial remains buried in children’s establishments suggesting foul
play.

The testimony of doctors and therapists who have studied the problem.

The capturing of videos that demonstrate actual ritual abuse of children.

The occasional testimony of an abuser.

The testimony of whistleblowers.

There is more than enough evidence to demonstrate that ritual abuse is going on in Britain.
The evidence discovered in other countries (such as America, Canada, Australia, Holland
and Belgium) is even more persuasive. The question is not does it happen, but rather how
widespread is it? Some chilling testimonies suggest that it is actually pervasive amongst
high-level figures in society and in Freemasonry circles.

Example: Savile

One example is that of Savile in 1975 who abused a terrified victim in a candlelit basement
where he chanted ‘Hail Satan’ in Latin as other robed devil worshippers joined in and
assaulted a girl at Stoke Mandeville hospital.7* The victim was one of the girls who testified
to Valerie Sinason, who first told the story in 1992.

Five years later (1980) Savile abused a second victim during another black mass ceremony
held at a house in a wealthy London street. The victim was forced to participate in an orgy
after the ceremony. She was also a patient of Sinason who told her story in 1993.

These victims did not know each other and lived in different parts of the country. Both
victims had reported the events to the police, who took no action. Sinason passed the
information on to Operation Yewtree.

Example: the Kidwelly cult

In 2011 four people from Kidwelly, Camarthenshire were convicted of serious sex offences
which were accompanied by satanic rituals.72 The leader of the cult was Colin Batley who
exercised complete control over his followers. These people abused children for over ten
years, despite the social services being warned, who took no action. Victims were
threatened with death if they spoke out and two of them gave birth as a result of abuse.
Batley’s house was dressed up with paraphernalia to form a satanic altar, with draped

171 Express; James Fielding, ‘Jimmy Savile was part of satanic ring’, 13 January 2013.
172 The Telegraph; Damian Thompson, ‘The Satanist sex abuser and his followers’, 10 March 2011.
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cloth, candles, tanks of snakes and satanic objects and symbols, in which to conduct black
masses. The members of the cult wore robes with hoods and upside-down crucifixes.

Some argue that Batley and Savile used this paraphernalia merely to terrify their victims
and suggest that they were not genuine Satan worshippers. But this does not matter, we
cannot enter into the mind of these criminals; that fact is that they performed these rituals
as they abused kids.

Example: lan Watkins

Watkins was the ‘Lost Prophets’ singer who pleaded guilty in 2013 to 13 offences at Cardiff
Crown Court, including attempting to rape an 11-month old baby.173 He was sentenced to a
29-year term. His crimes went back as far as 2004. One criminologist, Mark Williams-
Thomas, stated that Watkins was on a par with Fred and Rose West. A colleague of
Watkins later testified to Watkin’s depravity that included Satanism.

While we cannot say that Watkins was really a Satanist, what is certain is that his
paedophile fantasies bordered on the occult and his fans certainly offered themselves up to
him to be used in satanic rituals, knowing his proclivities.174

Example: Kincora

As well as the abuse which occurred on site (see earlier), children from the home would be
taken to castles and other homes of the rich or aristocracy. Some of these were connected
to the Irish branch of the Hellfire Club, a satanic network that was set up in the 1700s by
British politician Francis Dashwood, and aristocrat friends, plus Benjamin Franklin. The
Hellfire Club certainly promoted meetings that included satanic rituals. The investigation
by the police into child abuse at Kincora did not include these elite figures or look into
abuse occurring outside the boys home.

Example: Fred and Rose West
Everyone is well aware of the serial killer Fred West and his accomplice wife, yet fewer are
aware of the cover up involved.

The allegation is that Fred West was a procurer of victims for a Gloucestershire witchcraft
coven and that the deaths show signs of witchcraft. What are the facts?

The autopsy reports of the murder victims show clear signs of ritual killing. There were
digits and other bones missing from the skeletons, which were found under and around the
West’s home. For instance: one victim had 63 finger and toe bones missing; another had
42; another had 58 etc. etc.

Witches remove the fingers and hands of victims of sacrifice and bury them close to the
body for the purpose of enchantments. The hand of an executed person was greatly coveted
by devotees of witchcraft. Professor Margaret Murray (a leading Egyptologist and authority
on witchcraft) affirmed that there was no doubt that witchcraft was involved.

The Wests had a bar built in their home in Cromwell Street to service Rose’s clients of
prostitution, which was called ‘The Black Magic Bar’.

173 Wales Online; Ciaran Jones, ‘Tan Watkins: How Lost Prophets singer rejected women in their 20s as “too
old”, 1 December 2013.

174 One witness said, ‘ They were completely infatuated by him. ... they would do anything he wanted them to
do, even satanic stuff. Wales Online; op. cit.
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After his arrest, West was concerned, not about the police investigation but of shadowy
figures outside the enquiry. It is alleged that West told one journalist that he was covering
for others. He said that information of them would come out in the end, but he was scared
to say anything. Whilst in prison he was found hanged. This is despite being in a cell where
this was supposed to be impossible and whilst on suicide watch.

West’s brother, John, was also arrested and charged with multiple rape and was due to
appear in court when he was also found hanged ten months after Fred’s death. Does
anyone smell a rat?

Thus the Fred and John West cases never came to court.

Experts, such as Jim Cairns,'75 and authors who have looked into the case, claim that the
Wests were devil-worshippers and their victims were human sacrifices. Cairns previously
uncovered a satanic sect operating in Kilkenny which he claimed was responsible for the
disappearances of a number of people. Cairns said, ‘Myself and others believe that there is a
definite occult or satanic connection to the West murders. The murders reek of human sacrifice
with powerful connections’. Ivor Edwards (who has published a book explaining the black
magic rituals of Jack the Ripper) is also writing a book about the Wests claiming that they
supplied a Gloucestershire coven with human sacrifices.

Fred West’s official biography by Geoffrey Wansell (‘An Evil Love’) also included a passage
that mentioned Rose’s fascination with black magic.

There is far too much evidence here for the cover up of something even more sinister than
the torture, sexual abuse and killing of 12 innocent victims. There are clear signs of ritual
killing and circumstantial evidence of involvement in the occult. To this must be added the
convenient ‘self murder of two prime suspects before they could talk in court.

Testimonies

One difficulty, in this general paper, is detailing accounts of satanic abuse, as they are far
too graphic and disturbing for my readers. This paper is not the place to do that. The
accounts are like something out of a Hollywood horror film; sometimes even worse.
Amongst the less disturbing stories is that of a young girl sealed inside the cavity of a
disembowelled animal and then ‘re-birthed’ by her cultic captors during a ceremony. There
are several stories of infant sacrifices involving cannibalism by cult members. There are
also many stories of torturing and programming children (such as using electric shock) in
order to produce certain characteristics, such as animal personalities.76

Therapists in America state that over 200,000 survivors of SRA have reported such crimes
to their counsellors, with many stories corroborating each other despite no connection
between victims.177

Just one example is the terrible abuse and satanic torture suffered by a girl, now a middle
aged woman, in the Netherlands. She is a therapist called Toos Nijenhuis who names a
pope, a cardinal and royals as some of her abusers, as well as Freemason relatives. She also
states that abuse took place not only in Holland but also in Canaervon Castle in Wales and

175 One book was, ‘The Disappeared off the Face of the Earth’, firsthand experiences of covens in Ireland. He
is writing a book on the West murders.

176 Cultwatch (a Christian organisation); Bob and Gretchen Passantino, ‘The hard facts about Satanic ritual
abuse’. The article originally appeared in Christian Research Journal, Winter 1992. The article is sceptical
about SRA.

177 Tbid.
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near Fort William in Scotland perpetrated by high-level Freemasons.78 Again the crimes

perpetrated on her are too awful to recount here but this very credible witness deserves to
be heard.

Why are there multiple accounts of SRA today?
There are a number of reasons.

® It is a refection of the increasing sinfulness of man worldwide at the end that was
predicted by the Lord Jesus and his apostles. Human wickedness and degeneration
increases exponentially as we approach the end of the age. The end is a time of
increasing Satanism, both objectively and subjectively.

® Old-fashioned Christian values and moral conscience have crumbled, allowing
‘anything goes’.

e With the increasing permissiveness of society, that began in the 1950s and 60s, the
occult became more and more acceptable. Witchcraft became fashionable, instead of a
crime, and pure black magic Satanism became more widespread. Today you can readily
purchase black magic paraphernalia and books openly on the Internet. Before the web,
such things were extremely difficult to locate.

® The power of celebrities to boost interest in the occult; whether rock bands, authors,
actors, filmmakers etc.

e Family disorganisation: as society has changed and families have dispersed and broken
up, so there are more opportunities for abusers. Divorce and separation rates have
skyrocketed in the last 70 years. Single-parent families and co-habitation have
proliferated. Both parents are out working all hours so that children are left without
supervision. Pressure on families led to serious dysfunction; producing neglect, abuse,
incest, custody disputes, child abandonment and many kids being forced into care.

® Mental health diffusion: in the last 60 years mental health practice has been
fragmented to an unusual degree. In the past it was the province of accredited medical
doctors; today there are hordes of people dealing with specific issues and a massive rise
of counselling types and practitioners. There was a shift from intervention to reaction
as well as a wide diversity of belief and practice. Much of this has been unhelpful, but it
has highlighted case histories.

® Activist opposition to abuse: in the last 50 years there has been a rise of women’s rights
activism, opposition to pornography and exploitation of women, activists against child
abuse and so on. These have led to more information being made public about abuses.

Interim conclusion

One expert!79 avers that there are between 500 and 1,000 cults operating in the UK and
that it is a growing phenomenon. I think that such figures are a gross underestimate;
Brighton alone has dozens of covens, cults and sects. Even in the 1970s there were over a
dozen operating witchcraft covens in Brighton before the rise of New Age witchcraft. Even
a sleepy retirement town like Worthing has its own public witchcraft shop on the high
street. Cults are found everywhere, in rural as well as urban areas.

When evidence of ritual abuse arises, why is it soon covered-up; as in the case of Haut de la
Garenne? Why were accusations about Savile’s SRA ignored? Why is the testimony of
hundreds of SRA victims not developed into prosecutions? Ritual abuse is pervasive
enough today to warrant its own dedicated protection and advice services, such as ‘Ritual

178 ‘Child Sacrifice and Trafficking in Holland an eyewitness speaks out.” ITCCS.

179 Tan Haworth of the Cult Information Centre. BBC News Wales; ‘Sex abuse cult had “classic traits” says
expert’, 9 March 2011.
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Abuse Network Scotland’. We cannot avoid the conclusion that there is secret ritual abuse
of children going on in this country.

What is interesting is that all the arguments used to deny the existence of SRA were used of
Jimmy Savile. There were no shortages of allegations made against his child abuse from
1958 onwards and his proclivities were well known in his hometown early on. Yet no
prosecutions emerged. Over and over again those that came forward were treated as
disturbed personalities (who wouldn’t be?) whose testimony could not be trusted. The
memories were blamed upon imagination and personality disorders. But they were true. It
is only now as hundreds of credible cases confirm one another that it is clear that Savile
was indeed a monster who preyed on hundreds, perhaps thousands, of women, boys and
girls. In the same way, the allegations of SRA are denounced today. But if only 1% were
true, we still have huge numbers of victims who have no justice, and powerful perpetrators
that escape condemnation.

The scale of sexual child abuse

One measure of the extent of paedophile activity is to note the number of police operations
dedicated towards it. But first one must realise that it can take many years before an
operation even begins, and once begun the investigation is often very limited, despite there
being evidence of a wider conspiracy. For instance the operation into Jimmy Savile
(Yewtree) took 60 years to begin. The operations into the North Wales abuse were
restricted and limited, despite hundreds of allegations.

What this means in practice is that the occurrences of child abuse will be hundreds of
times greater than the number of operations. Yet the number of police investigations going
on is staggering. Here is a list.

Note: this is not a full list because certain police forces have refused to assist researchers.
These include: Cheshire Constabulary, Dorset Police, Durham Constabulary, Gwent Police,
Hampshire Constabulary, Lincolnshire Police, Northumbria Police, Nottinghamshire
Police, Staffordshire Police, Surrey Police, Sussex Police. Also the Metropolitan Police
refuse to admit more than the three operations listed below but other sources have
confirmed that there are more. The information below is up to September 2013.

Operation Kern

® Police force: Derbyshire Constabulary.

® TFocus: Derby. The sexual exploitation of girls.

e Results: two convictions in 2011, 8 convictions in 2012. Others await trial.

Operation Mansfield

® Police force: Devon & Cornwall Police.

® TFocus: launched in 2011 into sexual exploitation of girls in Torbay and Teignbridge.
® Results: one man jailed in 2011.

Operation Emotion

® Police force: Devon & Cornwall Police.

® Focus: launched in 1994 into William Goad.
® Results: nothing.
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Operation Faber
® Police force: Devon & Cornwall Police.

® Focus: launched in 2005 into William Goad’s accomplices, Eddie Pratt, Peter
Norsworthy and three others.

® Results: ?

Operation Banner
® Police force: Devon & Cornwall Police.

® Focus: launched in 2006 (?) after complaints that police allegations were not fully
investigated in enquiries undertook in 1987, 1995 and 2005.

® Results: conviction of Peter Norsworthy in 2006, jailed for 15 years.

Operation Lentisk
® Police force: Devon & Cornwall Police.
® Focus: launched in January 1988 into Devon children’s homes.

® Results: at least 650 children were allegedly abused in care homes over 16 years. Three
people awaiting trial.

Operation Span

® Police force: Greater Manchester Police.
® TFocus: a paedophile ring in Rochdale.

® Results: g jailed in 2012. 1jailed in 2013.

Operation Routh

® Police force: Greater Manchester Police.

® TFocus: sexual abuse of one girl by many people.
® Results: 9 charged at September 2013.

Operation Windermere

® Police force: Greater Manchester Police. Over 300 officers investigating child sexual
abuse. [Note the earlier comments about allegations of a paedophile ring in the
Manchester Police force.]

® Focus: trafficking and sexual exploitation in South Manchester.
® Results: 21 arrested, five charged.

Operation Freedom
® Police force: Lancashire Constabulary.

® TFocus: Operation by the ‘Freedom Team’ investigating abuse in Burnley, Pendle and
Rossendale.

® Results: ?

Operation Engage

® Police force: Lancashire Constabulary.

® TFocus: investigating abuse in Blackburn.
® Results: ?
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Operation Deter

® Police force: Lancashire Constabulary.
® TFocus: investigating abuse in Preston .
® Results: ?

Operation Cherish

® Police force: Lancashire Constabulary.

® TFocus: investigating abuse in Chorley, South Ribble, West Lancs.
® Results: ?

Operation Breakthrough

® Police force: Lancashire Constabulary.

® TFocus: investigating abuse in Lancaster, Morecombe, & Wyre.
® Results: ?

Operation Awaken

® Police force: Lancashire Constabulary.

® Focus: investigating abuse in Blackpool & Fylde.
® Results: ?

Operation Yewtree
® Police force: Metropolitan Police Service.

® TFocus: Investigation into historical abuse by Savile and others. 589 allegations, 450
against Savile. Began in October 2012.

® Results: At September 2013, 9 arrested. Trials ongoing.

Operation Fernbridge
® Police force: Metropolitan Police Service.

® TFocus: investigating alleged paedophile ring in Westminster involving MPs and VIPs.
Centres on Elm Guest House and Grafton House. Began in February 2013 as a result of
Operation Fairbank.

® Results: ?

Operation Fairbank
® Police force: Metropolitan Police Service.

® Focus: scoping exercise into other historical allegations against political figures. Began
in late 2012.

® Results: Operation Fernbridge.

Operation Pallial

® Police force: North Wales Police.

® Focus: investigating 105 victims at care homes, including Bry Estyn in Wrexham.
® Results: ?

Operation (name refused)
® Police force: Northamptonshire Police.



57

® TFocus: Three investigations into child sexual abuse. Locally an Operation Gizmo has
been mentioned.

® Results: ?

Operation Challenge

® Police force: Northamptonshire Police.

® TFocus: on violence in general but linked to sexual abuse of children.
® Results: ?

Operation (name unknown)
® Police force: Northamptonshire Police.

® Focus: The Independent Police Complaints Commission requested an investigation into
sexual abuse in Corby.

® Results: ?

Operation Globe

® Police force: South Wales Police.

® TFocus: abuse of a girl and possession of indecent images.
® Results: 2 charged.

Operation (name unknown)

® Police force: South Yorkshire Police.

® Focus: information restricted for operational reasons.
® Results:

Operation (name unknown)
® Police force: South Yorkshire Police.

® TFocus: Sex abuse in Rotherham. The council identified 58 kids at risk and apologised
for a ‘systemic failure’ to deal with abuse.

® Results: 5 men jailed in 2010.

Operation Racecourse

® Police force: Suffolk Constabulary.

® Focus: abuse at St George’s School, Wicklewood, Norfolk.
® Results: 4 arrested. Headmaster jailed.

Operation Oxenton

® Police force: Suffolk Constabulary.

® Focus: historical abuse at Oakwood School in Stowmarket, Suffolk.
® Results: one man jailed in 1987.

Operation (name unknown)
® Police force: Suffolk Constabulary.

® Focus: reviewing an investigation carried out in 1992 into alleged abuse at Kesgrave
Hall boarding school, Ipswich.

® Results: ?
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Operation Bullfinch

® Police force: Thames Valley Police.

® Focus: investigating a trafficking ring in Oxford. Began in May 2011.
® Results: 12 arrested.

Operation Ribbon

® Police force: Thames Valley Police.

® TFocus: investigating sex ring in High Wycombe.
® Results: 9 arrested.

Operation Chalice

® Police force: West Mercia Police.

® TFocus: sexual abuse in Telford, Shropshire.
® Results: 9 arrested; trial collapsed.

Operation (name unknown)

® Police force: West Yorkshire Police.
® Focus: sexual abuse at Leeds.

® Results: 12 arrested.

Operation (name unknown)

® Police force: West Yorkshire Police.
® Focus: sexual abuse at Bradford.

® Results: 10 arrested.

Considering that each operation can be investigating allegations against between one and
several hundred people, this list ought to cause readers to have serious concerns about the
picture it portrays.

Why do paedophiles commit such terrible crimes?

Suggestion 1: personal wickedness

The obvious answer is the inner corruption and iniquity of the criminal. Some men (and a
few women) can only find sexual satisfaction by abusing a pre-adolescent child. Whatever
the arguments about psychology, this is an act of gross wickedness which deserves
punishment.

The sorts of iniquity involved vary. There is the homosexual desire to abuse a same-sex
child. There is the heterosexual desire to sexually abuse a child. There is just plain cruelty;
the desire to inflict harm on people you can easily overpower. There are those that ‘love’
the child they abuse (or rather, love sex with the child) and there are those who hate
children and abuse them for that reason.

Suggestion 2: spiritual empowerment

Some suggest that there is a sort of New Age occult spirituality at work; that abusers seek
to drain the life force from an energetic child. The problem is that this, of course, is mere
nonsense. No one can drain energy from anyone else. If people do it for this reason they
are suffering from great delusions as well as committing gross wickedness.
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Suggestion 3: Satanism

Others have alleged, and there is evidence to support his, that some of the cases are ritual
abuses that can even lead to ritual torture and ritual killing. Some of the people involved
may not even be homosexuals and yet are willing to engage in a ritual that involves sex
with a young boy.

It is commonly reported that satanic cults often demand acts of paedophilia and abuse as
necessary rights of passage for new members or promoted members. In extreme cases
certain rituals involve child sacrifices.

Suggestion 4: Demon expulsion

Certain religious groups, particularly Black African Pentecostal cults, emphasise the need
to rid society of perceived witches and children that possess evil spirits. In Africa there are
repeated attempts to burn people suspected of being witches in local villages without any
sort of trial. In the same way children are tortured and attacked if they are suspected of
harbouring a demon. Triggers for this can range from epilepsy to just being naughty.

This travesty has infected Pentecostal groups in London where Black African Pentecostal
denominations are prolific. From time to time the abuse and death of an infant make the
headlines, where the cause was a perceived demon. In some cases the abusers are parents
who have been deluded by foolish teachings about demonology.

One such piece was by The Guardian in 2012.18° It gives the example of 15-year old Kristy
Bamu who was mutilated, teeth were missing and he was covered in cuts inflicted by a man
he called uncle and one of his own sisters, who were convinced he was a witch possessed by
evil spirits. He was also starved, sleep deprived, punched and kicked repeatedly; his teeth
were knocked out with a hammer, floor tiles and bottles were smashed on his head and his
ear twisted with pliers. The pair were convicted of murder and also abusing Kristy’s sisters.

Debbie Ariyo, executive director of Africans Unite Against Child Abuse warned that the
boom in Pentecostal churches?8! was leading to more children being accused of witchcratft.
Another famous example is the Victoria Climbie case. However, the 83 incidents in the last
decade are claimed to only scratch the surface of the real scope of the problem. Police deal
with an average of 8 cases a year in London, but this only reflects cases were the police
have got involved.

Why paedophiles are protected

The fact that the sexual abuse of children is so hidden is not entirely the result of the age of its
victims. This is also a crime of conspiracy, of the abuse of power and, from time to time, of
incidents which suggest that a paedophile with prestige may be more likely to escape justice than a
more humble offender.182

One of the greatest hindrances to justice is that many in the ruling class, or their cohorts
(the police, judges etc.) are members of various secret societies or cultic bodies that affirm

180 The Guardian, ‘Accusations of witchcraft are part of growing pattern of child abuse in UK’, Alexandra
Topping, 1 March 2012.

181 670 opened between 2005 and 2010 taking the total to 3,900.

182 The Guardian; Nick Davies, ‘The sheer scale of child sexual abuse in Britain’, April 1998.
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a greater loyalty to that body than to the justice system. In other words they can lie without
conscience to protect brothers. Some examples follow.

Talmudic Jews

Modern Judaism is the product of the Talmud,!83 not the Torah.84 The most authoritative
scriptures for modern Jews are the words of the Babylonian Talmud. This is confirmed by
the Jewish Encyclopaedia and other sources.185

The Talmud openly supports paedophilia. It was rampant amongst Pharisaic Jews (who
wrote the Talmud) and is endorsed by them. See these quotes from the Talmud [London,
The Soncino Press (1939)].

A maiden aged three years and a day may be acquired in marriage by coition, and if

her deceased husband'’s brother cohabits with her, she becomes his. [Sanhedrin 55b.]

Pederasty with a child below nine years of age is not deemed as pederasty with a child
above that. [Sanhedrin 54b]

When a grown up man has intercourse with a little girl it is nothing, for when the girl is
less than this — that is, less than three-years-old — it is as if one puts the finger into the
eye — tears come to the eye again and again, so does the virginity come back to the
little girl under three years. [Kethuboth, 11b]

More importantly, the Talmud has a vow, which when confessed, allows a Jew to openly
tell lies without losing righteousness. Indeed, one can deny all the Ten Commandments
and still be a faithful Jew. It is a ‘get out of jail free card’. Thus it is impossible to trust any
Jew that follows the Talmud. They can lie in court and still be righteous if they have
confessed this ritual.186

Jewish people dominate the entertainment and media industries and it is alleged that
these industries are riddled with paedophiles. Indeed, most of the recent criminal cases
have been of entertainers or people connected with the media. Detective Chief Inspector
Paul Settle (of the Paedophile Unit) said, ‘Child abuse has become an industry standard in the
entertainment industry’ 187 Jews also dominate the halls of power. Many MPs, cabinet
ministers, judges, lawyers, senior civil servants, leaders of commerce, and bankers are
Jews. This is not a racist statement it is just a plain fact.

A number of the powerful people mentioned in this paper with allegations to answer are
Jews but I have avoided specifically stating anyone’s ethnicity.

REASON 1: JEWS ARE ALLOWED BY THEIR RELIGION TO BE PAEDOPHILES AND THEY ARE ALSO ALLOWED TO TELL LIES
TO OTHERS WITHOUT CONDEMNATION.

183 Commentaries by rabbis.

184 The Five Books of Moses: Genesis, Exodus, Leviticus, Numbers, and Deuteronomy.

185 The Talmud itself teaches this: ‘be more careful in the observance of the words of the Scribes than in the
words of the Torah’. [Erubin, 21b] So do authoritative modern Jews: [The Talmud] is still the supreme
authority in religion.” [The Jewish Encyclopaedia, Vol 12, p26.]

186 The Kol Nidre (‘all vows’) prayer teaches that all vows can be ignored, all pledges rescinded, all
obligations refused and all commitments lied about, if this prayer is prayed first: ‘He who desires that none
of his vows made during the year shall be valid, let him stand at the beginning of the year, and declare
“every vow which I make in the future shall be null”. His vows are then invalid provided that he remembers
this at the time of the vow’. [Nedarim, 23a-23b.]

187 November 2012.
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Homosexuals
It is no secret that many paedophiles are homosexual men. This is not to tar all Gay men,
but it is certain that many paedophiles are homosexual.

Homosexuals have begun to dominate certain strata of society since the repeal of laws
against them in the 60s. Indeed, there was a concerted effort to do this by Gay Rights
activists, with a particular focus upon the media and entertainment industry. Thus we can
see a large number of Gay managers, performers and presenters within the BBC, for
example. Sometimes this centring on Gay people is over the top. For instance, until
recently, Radio 2’s four Saturday daytime programmes were dominated by three gay
presenters, followed by another one on Sunday.

There is the danger that the loyalty of homosexual men to each other sharing a cause, will
cover-up cases of child abuse that may arise. There are allegations that this was the case in
the BBC. If, in addition, you have powerful Gay people in government and high office at the
same time, the risk of cover-up is even greater. This is alleged to have been the case during
the government of New Labour, particularly regarding the Islington — Jersey scandals.

REASON 2: CLAIMS OF CONSPIRACY BY HOMOSEXUAL MEN IN PRIVILIGED POSITIONS TO COVER UP PAEDOPHILE
ACCUSATIONS.

Freemasons
The key problems of this group are a) they protect their own above all others; b) they are
endemic (a prevalent disease) in higher ranks of society.

Every Freemason is initiated by taking a blood-curdling oath whereby he swears that he
would rather have his entrails ripped out rather than betray a fellow freemason.:88 This
means that all masons will do anything to protect a fellow rather than obey a court of law.
Thus Masons will commit perjury in order to give another Mason an alibi rather than tell
the truth. Anything is allowed (lying, perjury, slander etc.) in order to protect a brother.

The problem is than Freemasons are so prevalent in the establishment. It is well known
that they pervade the royals, the aristocracy, Westminster, the police force, bankers, the
judiciary, town and borough councillors and magistrates, as well as many professions.

A personal testimony

For twenty years I worked in the Post Office; latterly (after the corporate split) in Royal
Mail. After working through the ranks I became a senior manager in HQ. While working as
a clerk in Brighton I became personally aware of the depth of involvement of Freemasons.

Personal friends and colleagues in the office were Masons and I was invited to become one,
which I refused. Because some of my colleagues were senior Masons, Masonic business
was often discussed or conducted in the office openly.

One of my colleagues at that time (early-mid 80s) was a man who was also the Lord Mayor
and a previous Labour MP (Dennis Hobden; the first Labour MP on the South Coast). He

188 Features include: rolling up one's trousers, wearing one shoe, baring a breast and repeating a blood oath,
swearing to be disembowelled and mutilated for betrayal of Masonic trust. The oaths are intended to instil
fear of betrayal. Initiating oaths of an entered Freemason includes this: ‘binding myself under no less
penalty than to have my throat cut across, my tongue torn out by the roots, and my body buried in the
rough sands of the sea.’ The Royal Arch degree mason swears: T will promote a companion Royal Arch
Mason's political preferment in preference to another of equal qualifications.’
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worked a few mornings in the office and then the rest of the time in the mayor’s office. As
well as being a spiritualist, Dennis was also the Grand Master of the local Freemason Hall.
Indeed, he arranged that we could have the office Christmas lunch there for several years,
which boasted a top chef. Note: the Lord Mayor of Brighton was then a senior Freemason
and a spiritualist.

However, virtually all the union reps were Freemasons. Of these several were Justices of
the Peace (magistrates) and one told me that all the magistrates were Masons. Most of the
Post Office managers were also Masons and I was told that promotion would be difficult
for me unless I became a Mason. [To become a higher manager I had to leave Brighton to
get opportunities in London HQ.] Also a very senior manager told me that I was a problem
to higher management because I wouldn’t tell lies.

As an example of the power of Freemasons, I once worked as a TV licence enquiry officer
(sub-contracted to the Post Office then). I nicked a senior public figure, who then was the
landlord of Brighton’s biggest public house. He had a flat above the premises and had no
TV licence. I processed the paperwork and was told by my boss that the case would not go
through. I asked why and he said nothing. The next thing I heard was that the Head
Postmaster of Brighton had stopped the case going to court. It was fine to prosecute poor
people, single parent families, and old ladies, but not a senior public figure. Lord Selwyn
Jones also had case papers in the office that never went further.

Freemasonry and Satanism

Freemasonry is ultimately a form of Satanism, though this is hidden from less than 3rd
degree Masons; it is also linked to the Jewish Kabbalah. Freemasonry recognises the value
of the Kabbalah and its writers note the Babylonian influence of oriental divination,
mystical interpretation and symbolism in it. Indeed it was the foundation of Freemasonry,
‘all the Masonic associations owe to it their secrets and their symbols’.*89 Senior freemasons
declare that the god of the Kabbalists and Freemasonry is Lucifer.190

Freemasonry is witchcraft
® The rituals of Freemasonry are almost identical to many rituals of Wicca.191

® Many Freemasons were also witches or magicians. For example, the infamous Satanist
Aleister Crowley'92 was a 33 degree Mason as was the founder of Wicca, Gerald
Gardner. Others include: A E Waite (occult writer), Alex Sanders (‘King of the
Witches’), Annie Besant (Leader of Theosophy), Dr Wynn Westcott and SL MacGregor
Mathers (founders of the Golden Dawn, an influential magic society!93), George
Pickinghill (Grand Master witch of 19thc. England) and many more.

e Anton LaVey (high priest of the Church of Satan) says, ‘Virtually every occult order has
many Masonic roots.’ 194

189 Albert Pike, Morals & Dogma, p744ff.
190 Pike, ibid, p321.
191 See Decker, The Dark Side of Freemasonry, Huntington House Pub. (1994) p164ff. for lists.

192 Crowley was called ‘the most wicked man alive’. All his wives and lovers ended up in insane asylums and
his son died during a secret ritual. He called himself the ‘Beast 666’. His depravity is legendary and includes
calling for child sacrifices. He was also a homosexual and a drug addict.

193 The Golden Dawn was heavily connected with Freemasonry and even used a Masonic building to meet in
early on. This group was said to be the biggest influence in the explosion of modern occultism. Men involved
wrote the foundational works on ritual magic and Satanism.

194 A S LaVey, The Satanic Rituals, New York, Avon Books (1972), p78.
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® CW Leadbetter was a 331 degree Mason and leader in Theosophy with Annie Besant.
He wrote showing that initiation into the different degrees brings with it demonic
invasion. He even names and describes the demons at each level.195

® Albert Pike explains that the light in Freemasonry is the Cabala (Jewish occult
mysticism);19¢ and Lucifer.197 Hall claimed that much of Pike's writings were taken from
the French magician, Eliphas Levi.»98 Foster Bailey declared that ‘Masonry in its true
and highest sense is magical work.’*99

® Pike extolled the power and virtues of magic and Satanism. In talking about this power
he says, ‘It was adored in the secret rites of the [witch’s] Sabbat or the [Egyptian] Temple,
under the hieroglyphic figure of Baphomet or the hermaphroditic goat of Mendes.’20¢ Pike
speaks much of ‘the great work’, which is a universal term for witchcraft, as well as
alchemy and Egyptian magic. He says, ‘The Occult science of the Ancient Magi was
concealed ... it is found ... in the Rites of the Highest Masonry.’201

® Masonry has taken on board many occult symbols: the pentagram, the Baphomet, the
pyramid, the ‘symbol of Solomon’ (Davidic star) etc. For instance, the emblem of the
Eastern Star lodge is the inverted five pointed star; this is the pentagram (or ‘pentacle’,
sometimes pictured within a circle); also note the symbol of the goat of Mendes, the
geometric symbol of the demon Baphomet (a form of Satan). This demon is also
pictured by Manly P Hall in his book Dark Secrets of All Ages.

® The heart of Masonry is communication with demons pretending to be angels of light:
‘The Master Mason ... is in communication with the unseen powers that move the destinies of
life.202 J F Newton eulogised the Masonic writer Arthur Edward Waite and commended
his books. Waite wrote many books on Black Magic and in one gives instructions for
conjuring up ‘Emperor Lucifer, master and prince of rebellious spirits.’203

This is significant for our purposes here since Satanism lies at the back of many paedophile
practices.

Powerful historic people who were Freemasons
® Benjamin Franklin.

® His Royal Highness Augustus Frederick, Duke of Sussex became Grand Master of the
Premier Grand Lodge in 1813.

® His Royal Highness Edward, Duke of Kent, became Grand Master of the Antients
Grand Lodge in 1813.

® Britain's Grand Master was Prince Michael of Kent (33 degree).
® Aleister Crowley.

In his book, The Brotherhood, Stephen Knight tells of a meeting with a judge and a very
senior civil servant who agreed to give information on the secrets of the UK Masons. There

195 CW Leadbetter, The Hidden Life in Freemasonry, Adyar, Madras; The Theosophical Pub. House, (1928)
p326, 334, 336.
196 pike, Morals And Dogma, p741ff.

197 Pike, ibid, p321.

198 Manly P Hall, Lectures on Ancient Philosophy, p413-414.

199 Foster Bailey, The Spirit of Masonry, p96-98.

200 Albert Pike, Morals & Dogma, p734-.

201 pike, Morals & Dogma, p639.

202 Manly P. Hall, The Lost Keys of Freemasonry, p57.

203 Newton, The Builders, p59. A E Waite, The Book of Black Magic, York Beach, Maine, Samuel Weisner
Inc., (1989), p244-248.
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are more than half a million brethren under the jurisdiction of the Grand Lodge. If only 5%
abuse their privileges for corrupt ends, there are 25,000 powerful people corrupting the
social institutions of the UK. The civil servant stated that more than 12% were abusing the
craft, which was originally run by good men, devoted to altruism and social stability.

A number of people named in this paper are Freemasons and it is suspected that many
others are as well.

REASON 3: THERE IS EVIDENCE THAT MANY PAEDOPHILES ARE MASONS. SINCE FREEMASONS ARE COMMITTED TO
PROTECTING EACH OTHER, AND SINCE THEY PERVADE THE RULING ESTABLISHMENT, IT GOES WITHOUT SAYING THAT
EVEN IF MASONS COME TO COURT ON CHARGES OF PAEDOPHILIA, THEY WILL GET OFF. IN MOST CASES THE
ESTABLISHMENT CURTAILS THEIR CASE BEFORE ANY CHARGES ARE MADE. FREEMASONRY IS CONNECTED TO JUDAISM
THROUGH THE KABBALAH AND IS ROOTED IN SATANISM.

Roman Catholic priests

Little needs to be said in this connection because so many cases of paedophile priests have
come into public light. It appears that there is likely to be thousands of cases worldwide
involving priests. Indeed, the Catholic Church has been repeatedly criticised for covering
up the level of child abuse at a senior level.

An evaluation of the breadth of paedophile priests would require a separate paper.

REASON 4: DUE TO CATHOLIC PRIESTS SUPPOSEDLY HOLDING THE POWER TO ADMIT OR WITHHOLD SALAVTION FROM
YOUNG PEOPLE, SUCH FOLK WOULD BE SCARED TO DEATH OF BRINGING ANY CHARGES AGAINST A PRIEST. IT HAS
TAKEN THE GREAT COURAGE OF ABUSED PEOPLE THAT HAVE NOW GROWN OLD TO FINALLY BLOW THE GAFFE ON WHAT
MUST HAVE BEEN GOING ON FOR CENTURIES.

The paedophiles that occupy places of high power

As identified in this paper, many people in the ruling classes are paedophiles. This means
that they have the power and authority to go to any lengths to stop their deeds becoming
public knowledge and to protect their own. These methods include, manipulating the
justice system, controlling the police, censoring the media, threatening victims, beating up
victims threatening to go public and murdering victims that are considered too risky.

REASON 5: MANY PAEDOPHILES ARE SO POWERFUL IN SOCIETY, OR HAVE PWOERFIL FRIENDS, THAT THEY CAN EASILY
MANIPULATE THE JUSTICE SYSTEM AND THE PRESS.

The closure of police investigations

Whistle-blowers to activist groups, such as The UK Column, have reported that individual
investigations of serious child abuse by good policemen have been closed down by senior
officers and locked away in safes. This paper has demonstrated many cases of alleged
corruption by police.

REASON 6: POLICE CORRUPTION AT SENIOR LEVELS.
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Common Facts arising

Institutions where child abuse was rife continued for decades abusing kids despite the
repeated allegations of victims and some staff.

Brave, resourceful, caring individuals crusading to get justice for the abused children are
hampered at every turn by powerful ruling elite bodies.

Whistleblowers that demonstrated child abuse got sacked afterwards. Even a cabinet
member in Jersey got fired and jailed for exposing paedophilia at high levels.

Many councils are implicated in the guilt of paedophiles and have protected them at every
turn. There is a national scandal in the covering up of child abuse by councils (e.g.
Sunderland or North Wales).

High levels of the police force are allegedly directly implicated in the guilt of paedophile
rings and have covered up credible allegations of abuse by victims over and over again.
Allegations against senior public figures or people connected to the police in some way
(e.g. Cyril Smith, Savile or via Freemasonry) have been dropped and ignored on multiple
occasions.

Certain judges have given extremely lenient sentences to paedophiles. Indeed, many are
acquitted or receive suspended sentences. Some judges have acquitted known offenders
despite hard evidence.

The CPS has frequently not pursued a case despite hard evidence. In some cases the
offender has struck again and subsequently been convicted.

Independent researchers into high-level child abuse routinely get smeared, intimidated by
officials or even jailed.

Some people with questions to answer

Margaret Hodge

When council leader at Islington, why did she allegedly protect paedophiles named by
reporters? Why did she denounce an award-winning journalist204 (winning the award for
this story) as ‘right-wing gutter press’ who bribed children to lie, when a government enquiry
proved the story was true? Did she know about the suppression of documents by the Asst.
Director of social services, Lyn Cusack, outed by the White Enquiry for losing files?

David Cameron
Accused by Ben Fellows as leading a conspiracy to cover up the ‘Cash for questions’
scandal, which also protected Ken Clarke. Why has he not sued Fellows?

Ken Clarke
Accused by Ben Fellows for sexual abuse of a minor. Why has he not sued fellows? Why did
the police threaten Fellows? Why did the police say the Clarke was ‘above the law’?

204 Ejleen Fairweather.
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Deputy Chief Constable David Warcup

Why was Lenny Harper misrepresented, as claimed by Harper in the Press? Why were
both Harper and Power discredited when they had the support of their team, professional
bodies and the internal investigation exonerated them? Why was the multiple evidence of
potential violent abuse, torture and possibly murder not investigated further? Who applied
pressure to you?

The Director General of the BBC

Since there have been multiple allegations of a paedophile ring operating in the BBC for
many years, and since the actions of Savile and others were common knowledge, why are
you denying that the BBC was an alleged home for paedophiles? What has been done to
stop the alleged common practice of assaulting hopeful actors by casting agents and
producers in the BBC?

Leader of Sunderland Council
When are you going to come clean and admit the details of widespread child abuse in care
homes which the council allegedly covered up?

Leaders of the councils at Clwyd and Gwynedd
When are you going to apologise publicly for the way you treated Alison Taylor and
allegedly covering up multiple child abuse for kids in your care?

Sir Ronald Waterhouse QC
Why were the names of public figures, who were accused of child abuse, eliminated from
your enquiry by the police?

Attorney General Sates of Jersey

Why did you allegedly cover up child abuse and murder at Haut de la Garenne? Why did
you allegedly smear Lenny Harper and arrange a whitewash new police enquiry? How
many paedophiles are you allegedly protecting in Jersey?

Chief Constable of North Wales 1994
Why did you refuse to co-operate with the Jillings Enquiry? Why did you refuse to share
data and witness statements with the Jillings Enquiry?

The director of Special Branch
Why did you cover up the evidence gathered on Cyril Smith’s child abuse?

Chief Constable of the Metropolitan police in 1982

When a party in Elm Guest House was raided in 1982, which led to the conviction of Kasir
for running a disorderly house, why was the evidence given by victims of child abuse by
prominent people not pursued?

Head of Special Branch in the early 1980s

Why did you do nothing with the evidence collected into child abuse by senior figures at
Elm Guest House? What happened to Kasir’s logbooks, names, times, dates and pictures of
visitors?

Det. Chief Spt. Hamish Campbell
When temporarily put in charge of ‘Yewtree’; why did the imminent arrest of a former
cabinet minister suddenly stop?
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The police in general
Why were the hundreds of sex abuse allegations against Jimmy Savile, going back to the
1950s, covered-up?

Note

There are many websites out there which name all sorts of people as being paedophiles,
torturers and murderers of children; this includes three prime ministers and many royals.
More than one website claims to know who ordered the kidnapping of Madeleine McCann
and who the European politician was who abused her and ordered her murder in Morocco.
Many of the pieces of testimony appear to be credible but often do not give source data that
can be used to sustain proof. So, while I am personally convinced of a number of these
claims, I cannot include them in this paper due to insufficient evidence. This is usually
because the evidence has been covered up. What is certain is that various police forces
have files on some of these people that are being kept hidden away.

A key part of the evidence in child abuse cases is in video format and some of these are
more convincing than others. It is impossible to rule out the fact that some supposed
witnesses are just fantasists or liars. However, many videos are clearly very credible
indeed; especially when witnesses appear to be suffering emotional pain just trying to tell
their story. Only the best actors in the world could fake this; these people are telling the
truth. Just one example is the terrible abuse and satanic torture suffered by the
aforementioned therapist Toos Nijenhuis2°5 who is a thoroughly reliable witness.

Timeline of UK recent child abuse

This list will focus primarily on British facts, though there could be similar lists given for
America, Australia, Europe and many other countries. The evil of child abuse is not
restricted to the UK. I will occasionally add information on a certain foreign country if it
has direct links to UK cases. This is just select data and not a fully comprehensive survey.

Child Abuse in the UK206

1950s-1960s | Claims of Nazi style abuse of children in Northern Ireland children’s care homes. The Sisters of Nazareth order of
nuns who oversaw St Joseph’s Home in Termonbacca (Londonderry) bathed the children in Jeyes fluid (toilet
detergent). Some children were forced to eat their own vomit. Homes were said to be like concentration camps.

1955 Earliest recorded instance of child abuse by Jimmy Savile in a dance hall in Manchester.

Late 1950s Savile was suspected of working for MI5; visited Moscow.

1961 Tory Monday Club founded by lan Greig, Paul Bristol, Cedric Gunner and Anthony Maclaren.

1961 Names that appear as visitors to EIm Guest House include: Harvey Proctor, John Rowe, Peter Campbell, Richard

Miles, Peter Glencross, Charles Irving and Stan Matthews.

1963-1968 Abuse at Kincora boys home. Claimed to be a boy brothel run by MI5.

1963 Male victim claims Savile raped him in Chesire but is told by the police to ‘forget about it'.
1963 Lord Boothby introduced to the Kray twins, who allegedly supplied boys to the elite.
1964 Police intelligence files link Savile to notorious paedophile ring. Police ledger mentions premises in Battersea

Bridge Road where two men were prosecuted for living off immoral earnings. Girls from Duncroft School were
visiting as well as Savile.

1964 William Combes claims that he witnessed the abduction of ten fellow residential school children by the Queen and
Prince Philip in October. They were never seen again. [UK Column: children’s issues/time abuse timeline.]
1965-1988 Savile is a volunteer porter and fundraiser at Stoke Mandeville hospital. He had his own room there and claims of

205 ‘Child Sacrifice and Trafficking in Holland an eyewitness speaks out.” ITCCS.
206 Compiled from various sources.
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Satanic abuse have arisen.

1965 Greystone Heath aproved school for boys in Warrington being used by a paedophile ring.

1966 Lord Mountbatten introduces Savile to Prince Philip.

1966 Savile awarded honorary green beret by the Royal Marines.

1967 Prince Edward begins service as Grand Master of the United Grand Lodge of England, the governing body of
Freemasons in England and Wales.

1967 Guy Marsden (Savile’s nephew) aged 13 is taken to celebrity houses in London where men sexually abused girls
and boys as young as 10 with Savile present.

1967 Decriminalisation of Sexual Offences Act — allows homosexual acts in private over 21-years old.

1969 Savile visits Jersey.

1969 Warwick Spinks is caught on camera offering to supply a video in which a 10-year old boy was killed and one
featuring the horrific abuse of a young boy.

Early 1970s Soldier John Peters (participant in the Bjorn tape) goes AWOL after being charged with having sex with a 14-year
old boy. Goes to Denmark where he is later convicted of a separate offence of child abuse.

Early 1970s Snuff films begin to appear; name derived from Charles Manson.

1970s-80s Child abuse rampant in Islington Care Homes under the watch of Margaret Hodge. Abuse in childrens’ homes
becomes a national epidemic.

1970s Savile becomes a regular visitor to Haut de la Garenne in Jersey. Though he denied this during the enquiry,
photographs show him there posing with children. He was named by several victims.

Abuses 14-year old girl in Jersey (Dee Coles) and her friend in a campervan.

1970 The Spartacus International Gay Pride Guide is published. It lists child brothels worldwide.

1970 First recorded abuse by Savile at Duncroft school in Surrey.

1970 Edward Heath is a regular visitor to Jersey and becomes Prime Minister.

1970 December: photograph of Savile with Prince Charles.

1971 Claire McAlpine (a young dancer at the BBC) commits suicide at 15. Her diary names showbusiness personalities
who raped her. All allegations were denied by the BBC and Savile.

1973 Michael Trestrail (linked to ElIm Guest House) becomes the Queen’s bodyguard.

1973-1982 Children from Grafton Close children’s homes are abused at ElIm Guest House by establishment figures.

1974-1990 Child abuse at a number of North Wales care homes. Thatcher’s friend Sir Peter Morrison is reportedly involved.

Mid 1970s PIE starts campaign to legalise sex with children over four. Supported by Harriet Harman and Pat Hewitt.

1974 Saville involved with Broadmoor; authorised by Health Minister David Owen.

1975 Prince Edward becomes president of the Scout Association.

1975 Savile reportedly beat and raped a girl at Stoke Mandeville as part of a satanic ritual with other adults in the
basement. He is alleged to have chanted, ‘Hail Satan’ in Latin. The girl spoke out in 1992,

1975 Savile was a suspect in the Yorkshire Ripper murders and was questioned by West Yorkshire Police. The eventual
convicted killer was a friend of Savile’s.

1975 CGHE (Conservative Group for Homosexual Equality) formed by Prof. Peter Campbell which is affiliated to the Tory
Party. Campbell named as visitor to ElIm Guest House. Minutes from founding meeting show that the group was a
paedophile organisation. Campbell was a long-time researcher to David Cameron and also helped other Tory PMs
preparing PMQs.

1975 Norman Fowler MP rasies concern in Parliament how Roger Gleaves could secure government and council funding
for three charities andf a hostel despite being a paedophile with a criminal record.

1976 Savile at Haut de la Garenne and sexually abuses ‘John’ aged 10. Two top police officers (Harper and Power) claim
that the home was at the heart of a ‘well-protected paedophile ring'.

1976 Savile in Belfast, site of Kincora Boys Home.

1976 Paul Kidd, a paedophile, is appointed as royal butler to the Queen. After six years he serves the Queen Mother until
1984.

1977 A victim aged 11 abused by Peter Righton and other members of PIE in London until aged 16. Other celebrities
(including Cyril Smith) allegedly involved.

1977 Ripper victim number three — Roundhay murder of Irene Richardson, within yards from Savile’s flat overlooking the
park. Police view Savile as a suspect. David Wilson calls for an enquiry.

1978 Savile thrown off luxury cruise liner SS Canberra after an assualt on a 14-year old girl.

1979-81 A ‘Vincent' was abused at ElIm Guest House aged 11, and also at a house in Sea Road, Bexhill.

1979 Nicholas Fairbairn (named as vistor at EIm Guest House) appointed Solicitor General for Scotland, the second most
senior law officer.

Late 70s Savile forms relationship with Prince Charles.

1980s Female MP sexually abuses Andrew Ash aged 13. He was brought from a government children’s home to
Parliament to be abused. The female was part of a paedophile ring in the heart of government that included Savile.

1980s Peter Hatton-Bornshin was taken from Grafton Close children’s home and forced to take part in drug-fuelled orgies

at EIm Guest House which involved the elite. When he was older he was sent to Broadmoor mental hospital where
he died in mysterious circumstances.
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Early 1980s Derek Laud becomes first black member of the Tory Monday Club.

1980 Savile abuses a victim during a black mass ceremony and orgy in a wealthy London street.

1980-87 lan Harvey (former junior foreign minister) is president of CGHE.

1981 The Portuguese police accused the caretaker of a Casa Pia state-run children’s home of raping dozens of children
over 30 years. Later police dropped their investigation and officials destroyed the documents. In 2004 news reports
appearing in the Jornal de Noticias claimed that Portuguese President Jorge Sampaio and Portugal’s European
Commissioner Antonio Vitorino had been mentioned in anonymous letters sent to magistrates investigating the
Casa Pia child abuse scandal. The scandal has alleged conections to the Madeleine McCann case.

1981 Three senior care staff at Kincora Boys Home are jailed for abusing 11 boys.

1981 The boy Vishal Mehrotra goes missing within a few hundred yards of Elm Guest House. His body was found in
1982 in Sussex woodland. Martin Allen also disappeared near the site.

1981 October: king and queens party held at EIm Guest House. Many senior people come to abuse children. Carole
Kasir took photos.

1982 John Rowe (MI5) and Terry Dwyer persuade Carole Kasir to change her Elm Guest House into a boy brothel.

1982 An advert for ElIm Guest House is placed in Spartacus International Gay Magazine.

1982 John Rowe takes boys in care, including a ‘Rusty’, to Amsterdam. Rowe organised trips to Holland for the Monday
Club,

1982 The London police Special Patrol Group of 60 officers raid the EIm Guest House. A 17-year old rent boy is
detained.

1982 At least three MPs, a member of Buckingham Palace and leading lawyers, doctors and businessmen are
questioned as part of enquires into a vice-ring in a brotherl in ‘a smart London suburb’.

1982 April: Geoffrey Prime arrested for three counts of indecent assault on young girls. He pleads guilty.

1982 May: Auberon Waugh's diary notes that Thatcher only listens to Ferdinand Mount and Jimmy Saville.

1982 June: CGHE strongly recommends EIm Guest House in newsletter. First actual proof of Tory link.

1982 June: The Met. raids EIm Guest House, Relatively few people present.

1982 July: Geoffrey Prime (ex GCHQ) in court on spying charge.

1982 July: Home Sec. Willie Whitelaw tells Parliament that Michael Trestrail (police officer closest to Queen) has
resigned due to relationship with a male prostitute. Trestrail also linked to ElIm Guest House.

1982 August: Story breaks on Elm Guest House. At least 3 MPs, a member of Buckingham Palace, leading lawyers,
doctors and city businessmen are questioned regarding a vice ring. After ten days newspapers are silenced by libel
threats.

1982 November: Geoffrey Prime jailed for 35 years for spying and three years for indecent assault on young girls.

1983 April: The Kasirs, owners of EIm Guest House, are given suspended sentences for keeping disorderly house.

1983 August: 6-year old boy attacked and abused by three men in Brighton. PIE members questioned but attack
unsolved. Over 1 million people sign petition demanding new legislation to make groups like PIE illegal but new
home secretary Leon Brittan does nothing.

1983 November: Geoffrey Dickens MP alleges paedophilia at Buckingham Palace by an employee. Demands Brittan
investigates.

1984 Savile acepted as a member of the Athenaeum, a gentleman’s club, proposed by Cardinal Basil Hume.

1984 Geoffrey Dickens MP hands over 50-page dossier on VIP child abuse with links to EIm Guest House to Leon Brittan
(Home Sec.). File is then lost.

1984 PIE disbands following the jailing of two executive members.

1984 June: Mark Tildsley aged 7 is murdered by Sydney Cooke and gang. No prosecutions made. Cooke’s role not
investigated until 1999.

1985 A former government minister is linked to Sydney Cooke who tortured and killed 14-year old Jason Swift in 1985.
Swift was from an Islington care home. Cooke’s accomplices were Leslie Bailey, Robert Oliver and Steven Barrell.

1985 First public allegation of child abuse in Islington care homes by Demetrius Panton to Margaret Hodge.

1986 The minister linked to Jason Swift was photographed at premises in North London were boys were taken from
Kings Cross to be raped. A detective stated that at the time 16 top people were due to be arrested but the police
operation was suddenely closed down.

1986 After Operation orchid into Cooke disbands, a former officer returned to check the files which contained
photographic evidence of high-profile figures going in and out of buildings where abuse was taking place. He
discovered that the evidence had vanished along with any mention of the names of the men, which inlcuded Savile.

1986 The Sunday Times exposes Spartacus offering young boys from the Philippines.

1986 Alison Taylkor makes a series of complaints about abuse in Gwynedd care homes to police.

1986 lan Muir, deputy head of Bryn Alyn, convicted of sex abuse with a girl. Six month sentence.

1986 Haut de la Garenne closes as a home. Used in TV series Bergerac.

1986 Scotland Yard founded their exclusive Masonic Lodge (number 9179) known as ‘the Manor of St James’. One of
the founder members was Gilbert Kelland who was in charge of all London’s 3,000 detectives when he was Asst.
Commissioner for Crime (1977-84).

1987 Beat Meier and Roger Lawrence (PIE member) caught by UK customs trafficking a 3-year old boy on the Ostend-
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Dover ferry.

1987 David Gillison (care worker at Bryn Estyn) jailed for three and a half years for abuse.

1987 Plans drwn up to appoint Savile to run a taskforce overseeing Broadmoor hospital during a meeting at the
Athenaeum.

1987 Daniel Morgan assassinated in Sydenham after investigating a police corruption probe.

1987 May: Harvey Proctor resigns as MP for Billericay after being involved in spanking sessions with young male
prostitutes and being fined for indecency. His lawyer (Sir David Napley) was on an EIm Guest House list. Napley
also represented Trestrall.

1988 Police raid David Hamilton-Grant's boatyard and house. He was the ringleader in a paedophle porn ring.

1988 Roger Gleaves convicted, sentenced to 15 years for rape of boys.

1988 Chris Denning jailed for three years for indecent assault on boy.

1988 August: Savile appointed chair of task force overseeing management of Broadmoor Hospital after suspension of
board members, by junior health minister Edwina Currie.

1989 Leon Brittan knighted and resigns as MP to be European Commissioner. It is alleged that this was to remove him
from the local scene after repeated allegations of child abuse.

1989 Robert Oliver found guilty of Jason Swift's manslaughter. Sentenced to 15 years in jail but only served 8. Released
in 1997 and is not on the child offender’s register.

1989 Colin Peters, Alan Delaney, Ernest Warrington and Victor Burnett were sentenced at the Old Bailey for involvement
in a child sex ring. [Operation Hedgerow.] Police believed that the ring extended into Westminster and Whitehall
resembling the Mafia in its organisation. The judge stated that it was possibly connected to the Mafia. Peters was a
barrister and former Foreign Office official who was also linked to EIm Guest House.

1989 Sydney Cooke sentenced to 19 years in jail for the manslaughter of Jason Swift. It was claimed that Cooke handed
boys over to a former top cabinet minister.

1989 Alleged incident involving Prince Charle’s servant George Smith being raped at Kensington Palace. In 2002 Smith
claims that he saw a ‘shocking incident’ with Charles and a male servant in the early 1990s.

1989-1991 Michael Johnson of Azimuth Trust assaults two boys (9 and 11) 50 times.

1990s Scallywag magazine names Alastair (Lord) McAlpine as an abuser of children form a care home in North Wales. He
does not sue. This claim is repeated in many websites, none are sued.

1990 Stephen Norris is jailed for 12 years for rape and indecent assault in North Wales (Cartrefle home, Clwyd).

1990 Carol Kasir gives a list of top people in the brothel to a whistleblower. Soon afterwards she is found dead.

1990 Savile is given a papal knighthood.

1990 In Rochdale 20 children are taken from their homes after social services believe them to be involved in occult ritual
abuse.

1990 Investigations into Elm Guest House reveal that Richmond Social Services and the police have been wrongfully
taking children into care and falsfying evidence, boys were supplied to a number of MPs.

1990 UK police are informed of Alan Williams trafficking boys into Amsterdam and Warwick Spinks selling a video of a
boy 8 or 9 being tortured by two men. Spinks leaves Holland and lives in Hastings when he was charged for
abducting and raping two boys from London and selling one of them to a Dutch brothel. Sentenced to five years.

1990 ‘A’ (a teenage abuse victim) contacted NAYPIC claiming he was forced to film snuff movies in Amsterdam by a
British paedophile ring. He was pulled into a van outside NAYPIC’s Mary Moss’ home and disappeared.

1991 Police discover that Rabet's Sussex children’s centre is part of a ring of well-connected paedophiles.

1991 Social worker Alison Taylor submits a dossier of allegations from over 100 people to North Wales police, the local
authority and the Welsh Office. She had first given evidence in 1986. No charges made.

1992 Five separate police investigations into allegations of abuse at separate homes in North Wales. The enquiry by
Clwyd Council was never published.

1991 Frederick Rutter (former Bryn Estyn worker) jailed for 12 years for raping residents at a hostel in Connah’s Quay.

1992 Operation Pallial reveals: 125 male victims and 15 female victims. 18 care homes investigated. 75 alleged male
abusers and 9 alleged female abusers.

1992 Home of Charles Napier reveals paedophile images from Amsterdam and correspondence.

1992 Adrian Jones, a key witness in the child abuse at Bryn Estyn, is killed in a fire in Palmeira Avenue, Brighton. Family
demands enquiry. Trevor Carringtom survived the fire but hours after confessing to starting it was run down and
killed by a truck. Fire officers stated that the fire was started in three places at once.

1992 Peter Righton guilty of importing / possessing obscene material. Tom Watson later claims the file of evidence
contained clear evidence of a paedophile ring. Righton fined £900!

1993 2,600 witness statements and 300 cases sent to CPS re. North Wales abuse. 7 people prosecuted.

1993 Savile assaults another 14-year old girl on a cruise ship in the Med.

1993 Stephen Norris (Bryn Estyn) given suspended jail sentence for sexual offences against 9 boys.

1994 Police launch investigation into child abuse at homes in Cheshire and Merseyside.

1994 Homosexual age of consent lowered to 18.

1994 Peter Howarth (Bryn Estyn) sentenced to 7 years for abuse of boys; dies in prison.

1994 December: Alan Langshaw (formerly Greystone Heath and St Vincent's) jailed for 10 years for abuse of boys.
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1995 John Allen, head of Bryn Alyn community schools in North Wales, is convicted of sexual offences and jailed for 11
years..

1995 Warwick Spinks is sentenced to 7 years in jail, reduced to 5 years but Spinks fled the country after 30 months and
settled in Prague. It is thought that, like Savile, he worked for the security services.

1995 Adrian John's brother Lee was found dead.

1995 Charles Napier (treasurer of PIE) convicted of sexual assault against minors.

1995-6 John Jillings carried out first enquiry into child abuse rings in North Wales children’s homes. The report is not
published.

1995-6 In the Belgian Dutroux Affair, which alleged that the highest level of politicians and senior figures were involved in
paedophile rings and ritual murder, information emerged that a cabal of top European people (judges, lawyers,
bankers, prime ministers and aristocrats) were able to place their own people in investigations into child abuse and
dismantle them from the inside.

1996 The Dunblane School Massacre where Hamilton killed 16 children. Thomas Hamilton was supplying pornography
and boys to top people, including policemen and politicians. He had access to Queen Victoria School where boys
were being sexually abused and taken out by ‘toffs’ on trips. A teacher at this school kept files of abuse and warned
parents in 1991. As a result he was fired and police raided his home and confiscated the files. A book by paramedic
Sandra Uttley claims that the police were part of a paedophile ring and covered up what really happened. Central
Scotland Police should never have been involved in an independent enquiry. The police had allegedly previously
protected Hamilton from numerous allegations of physical abuse at boy’s camps and clubs that he ran. Lord
George Robertson was the referee on Hamilton’s shotgun licence and supported him despite claims that he was
not fit to have one. Blair covered up the scandal further by moving Robertson out of the country to NATO HQ. Lord
Cullen led enquiries into the shooting even though he had walked Hamilton to the scene of the massacre. The
Press claimed it was a Masonic conspiracy. Indeed, a top Scottish Freemason (former Grand Master Lord Burton)
has said that the Cullen enquiry was a cover-up. Cullen is a member of an elite Freemasonry group based at
Edinburgh University called ‘The Speculative Society’. It turns out that a friend of Malcolm Rifkind, and Chairman of
his constituency party in Edinburgh Pentlands (Robert Bell), sold guns and ammunition to Hamilton weeks before
the shootings [Edinburgh Evening Standard News, 23 March 1996]. Prince Philip was Patron of the Board of
Directors of the school, as was the then Lord Justice Clerk .

1996 Waterhouse enquiry starts into care homes in Clyd and Gwynedd. 700 allegations of abuse involving 170
individuals. 80 perpetrators.

1996 Eileen Fairweather hands police a list of paedophiles and trafficking linking Jersey / Islington / Guernsey. No police
investigation followed.

1996 Judge Anthony Russell QC resigns his recordership following revelations about his frequenting a Gay brothel.
Reinstated in 2001.

1996 Taped interview made by Princess Diana of male servant George Smith’s rape claim at Kensington. The tape later
vanished from home of Diana’s former butler Paul Burrell.

1997 Broadmoor hospital is the subject of an enquiry following allegations of a child pornography ring operating there.

1997 Chris Denning (BBC) jailed in Prague for three and a half years after paedo-investigation.

1997 Princess Diana is murdered in Paris. Some have speculated that she had threatened to reveal networks of
paedophilia in the Royal family.

1998 Justin Fashanu is found hanged in a London garage. The People newspaper stated that he gave them the names
of two cabinet ministers he had sex with. He was introduced to the MPs by a third party linked to a powerful
paedophile ring.

1988 Roger Gleaves rapes two 14-year olds and is jailed for 15 years.

1998 Savile meets with Tony Blair.

1998 David Icke names Lord McAlpine in his book, ‘The Biggest Secret’. No legal action follows.

1999 Brice Taylor published book detailing her abuse by her father and particpation in orgies & rituals. She said that she
was then sold in a slave auction to Bob Hope.

1999 Savile invites Prince Charles to his Glencoe cottage.

1999 Sydney Cooke sentenced to two life sentences for 18 sex offences.

2000 The Waterhouse Report concludes that ‘widespread sexual abuse of boys occurred in children’s residential
establishments in Clwyd in North Wales between 1974 and 1990'.

2000 Homosexual age of consent in England and Scotland lowered to 16 (N Ireland 17).

2003 Following a report into the death of former Bryn Estyn clients, police start a new investigation in which John Allen is
cleared of a further 36 offences when a judged ruled that he would not receive a fair trial under EU human rights
legislation.

2003 Neville Husband, who worked at the Medomsley juvenile detention centre as a prison officer, is jailed for sex abuse.
The centre was used as a boy’s brothel.

2004 Savile had dinner with Tony Blair.

2007 Death of Baby P (Peter) in Haringey, London. It is alleged that the facts of this were covered-up and formed part of

a top paedophile ring.
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2007 Former social worker Simon Bellwood makes an official complaint about the care of children on Jersey. He is later
sacked. Social Services Minister of Jersey Stuart Syvret acts on the complaint. He is later jailed after trying to
expose the child abuse scandal.

2007 Madeleine McCann goes missing in Portugal.

2008 Police under Lenny Harper start investigation at Haut de la Garenne. Potential evidence of torture and murder are
found. Harper stated that children were being loaned out to prominent people where they were savagely abused
and raped.

2009 A child sex abuse allegation was made about Savile to Jersey police. They did not charge him and had no access
to information uncovered in the Battersea Ring ledger of 1964.

2009 Savile is interviewed by Surrey police investigating an alleged assault at Duncroft School on four children. The CPS
took no action.

2009 11-year old Dylan McDonald is found dead at a children’s home.

2011 Savile dies.

2012 Victim Steve Messham is interviewed on Newsnight and does not mention Lord McAlpine. McAlpine sues the BBC.

2012 October: Operation Yewtree to investigate sexual abuse allegations against Savile.

2012 October: Police launch Operation Fairbank, a secret scoping exercise into allegations of historic sexual abuse in the
80s by politicians and VIPs — the result of Tom Watson’s questions to PM.

2013 Police launch Operation Fernbridge into a paedophile ring involving politicians. Centres on Elm Guest House.

2013 Met. detectives link Savile with ElIm Guest House.

2013 Cardinal Keith O'Brien resigns amid allegations of ‘inappropriate acts’. He had bragged of his friendship with Savile
in the past.

2013 Scotland Yard Commander Peter Spindler quits in the middle of the high-profile investigation into Savile and others.
Det. Chief Spt. Hamish Campbell (who led the Dando cover-up) is temporarily put in charge of ‘Yewtree'. Imminent
arrest of a former cabinet minister suddenly stops.

A layman’s suggestions

Clearly the system is not working. Despite enquiry after enquiry there is no significant
clamp-down on paedophiles, just a few sacrificial abusers are incarcerated and the general;
abuse goes on. Thousands of victims of child abuse, whose lives are ruined, receive no
justice. What could be done?

Suggestion 1: A new investigative body

Clearly, as has been proved many times, we cannot trust the police to investigate other
police. What is the point of one corrupt police force investigating allegations of corruption
in another police force? Furthermore the IPCC is useless and ought to be scrapped.

What is needed is a new investigative body that needs to recruit officers from outside
police forces. It needs to be headed up by a person of indisputable integrity (if that can be
found) and it needs to have powers with teeth. Furthermore, a constituent of recruitment
needs to be no affiliation with Freemasonry.

The results of investigations needs to be fast-tracked through the court system, if necessary
by establishing a new set of judges found to be of impeachable character (if possible) and
with no Freemasonry ties. Since most paedophiles are male, perhaps the judges and head
of the new investigation should be female.

Suggestion 2: amnesty

Bill Maloney has suggested that one way to get new information on the scale of paedophile
rings is to promise amnesty to paedophiles that come forward to spill the beans. In return
for informing on the breadth of the networks, they personally will receive lighter sentences
or full immunity. This is probably the only way that we will ever penetrate the fulness of
paedophile rings.
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Suggestion 3: severe sentences for corruption

The scale of police corruption in this country is getting beyond belief. There needs to be
extremely harsh sentencing for police officers found guilty of corruption. A new deterrent
is required to make it not worth while to commit misconduct. Covering-up crimes, losing
evidence, destroying evidence, lying, perjury, threatening victims etc. need to be severely
punished.

When the victims of serious crimes cannot trust the police force, or when victims are
treated like criminals by the people licensed to protect them, then society is in serious
trouble. Bent coppers must be severely punished.

Conclusion

Investigating this subject has been distressing. What is most shocking is that, with only a
little research, one soon finds that the sheer number of children being abused is
astronomical and universal. The whole world is colluding in the sexual and violent abuse of
children as young as infants under three-years old. The reason that this carries on is that
people in high power in many countries are either involved in the crime or are protecting
those involved.

Paedophilia is endemic in the ruling classes. Indeed, the sheer scale of the problem is so
huge that some have claimed that international paedophile rings of wealthy people really
form the global cabals that control nations, the EU, NATO, the UN and many more. I have
only looked at the UK in this paper, but there is information regarding other nations that is
even more shocking, that includes royals from other countries; Belgium and The
Netherlands are prime examples.

The shocking truth is that it is likely that there is a paedophile ring operating within a
reasonable distance of your house. This ring will include high-level, influential members of
the local community and the police will likely be covering it up.

Despite many people being in the know about this, the media consistently fails to publish
stories about high level people for fear of retaliation. Some aver that the death of Jill
Dando was meant to be a threat to journalists to keep quiet. Certainly young and ordinary
people have either disappeared or died in mysterious circumstances when they were
perceived by the powers that be to be a threat. Even conscientious police officers have
found that their investigations are shut down when they become too provocative for the
establishment (e.g. Haut de la Garenne) or are filed away and de-activated.

While it appears that Tory MPs have predominately figured in paedophile rings in the past,
there is evidence that there are also some Labour MPs and a few LibDem MPs that are also
guilty. The number of judges, media figures, bankers, aristocrats, royals, policemen etc.
can only be guessed at. What is certain to all researchers on this subject is that the
establishment is up to its neck in guilt.

Christians need to be aware that in the past they may have voted for paedophile MPs,
MEPs and even a paedophile Prime Minister. They may have supported policies that
advantaged paedophiles and perhaps even placed children in institutions where
paedophiles have been active. Its time for the church to wake up.
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The ruling establishment is in league with Satan and follows his destructive strategies to
increase iniquity. We must avoid all forms of evil and that means distancing ourselves from
wicked governments.

I have long known about the powers that exist above national governments and these
global institutions are predominately occupied by bankers, rich individuals and certain
corporation heads (such as arms manufacturers). I used to think that the glue that held
these people together (apart from their common aims) was Freemasonry and the Occult,
however, I now believe that a key ingredient is paedophilia (which fits in with Freemasonry
and the Occult).

In paedophile rings there is a rich mix of all sorts of exclusive people that would not
normally fellowship together: entertainers with bankers, politicians with policemen
aristocrats with civil servants, etc. Take a look at the guest list at Elm Gust House for a
classic example. Not only does paedophilia allow powerful people to meet up, but it also
provides the best form of blackmail to make people cowtow.

A good example of a secret cabal influencing royalty and national government, and nearly
breaking a country apart is the Belgian TV series Salamander. This is a useful caricature of
what is happening worldwide, greased by the oil of paedophilia.

It is clear that Satan’s prime choice of vehicle to bring about his global end-time empire is
paedophilia (at a personal level), plus international finance and global corporations (at a
structural level). Believers need to know what is going on and start being salt in the world.

Disclaimer: what is written here is an attempt to research information regarding UK child abuse and to state
this information clearly and truthfully as retrieved. Sources have been given wherever possible, often
multiple sources. However, the writer does not claim responsibility for this information, which may not
necessarily express his own views. This information does not, in any way, shape or form, implied or
otherwise, necessarily express or suggest endorsement or support of any such material or parts therein.
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